
           

City of Lubbock, Texas
Regular City Council Meeting

October 26, 2021
Daniel M. Pope, Mayor
Steve Massengale, Mayor Pro Tem, District 4
Juan A. Chadis, Councilman, District 1
Shelia Patterson Harris, Councilwoman, District 2
Jeff Griffith, Councilman, District 3
Randy Christian, Councilman, District 5
Latrelle Joy, Councilwoman, District 6

    W. Jarrett Atkinson, City Manager
Chad Weaver, City Attorney

Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

http://www.mylubbock.us

City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

City of Lubbock City Council Meetings are available to all persons regardless of disability. If you require special assistance, please
contact the City Secretary's Office at (806)775-2061 or write to Post Office Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457 at least 48 hours in
advance of the meeting.

Note: On occasion the City Council may consider agenda items out of order.
 

1:00 p.m. - City Council convenes in City Council Chambers in Work Session regarding items for
presentation and discussion on such issues that may require in-depth consideration by the City
Council. No action will be taken by the City Council in Work Session.
 

           

1. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to
appear in person before the meeting of the City Council, regarding Item 2.1 on the Work
Session Agenda, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the meeting, no later than
1:00 p.m. on October 26, 2021.  Citizen Comments is an opportunity for citizens to make
comments and express a position on agenda items. Any comment received that is in the
nature of asking a question will be referred to an appropriate member of the City staff
for a response.

  

 

2. Hear and discuss presentations regarding the following and provide guidance to staff as
appropriate.

  

 

2. 1. COVID Grant Summary - Public Health Services, Community Development, Airport, Citibus   

 

At the completion of the Work Session, City Council recesses into Executive Session.
 

3. Executive Session   

 

3. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071, with
legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement agreement and
on matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional
Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

  

 

3. 1. 1. Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) Turnover Program   

http://www.mylubbock.us


 

3. 1. 2. Waivers for Utility Infrastructure Requirements (when platting land)   

 

3. 1. 3. Connection Requirements to Water and Wastewater Infrastructure   

 

3. 1. 4. Lot 305-A, Midway Park Addition   

 

3. 1. 5. Lease Agreement No. GS-07P-LTX00024 between the City of Lubbock and the United
States of America

  

 

3. 1. 6. Planned Parenthood of Greater Texas Surgical Health Services, et al v. City of Lubbock,
Texas, Case No.5:21-cv-114 in the United States District Court for the Northern District
of Texas, Lubbock Division

  

 

3. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section 551.072, to
deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property.

  

 

3. 2. 1. Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) Turnover Program   

 

3. 2. 2. Lot 305-A, Midway Park Addition   

 

3. 2. 3. Lease Agreement No. GS-07P-LTX00024 between the City of Lubbock and the United
States of America

  

 

3. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074, to
discuss personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the
Lubbock Central Appraisal District Board of Directors.

  

 

Adjourn from Executive Session
 

4:30 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in Open Session in City Council Chambers.
 

4. Ceremonial Items   

 

4. 1. Invocation   

 

4. 2. Pledges of Allegiance   

 

4. 3. Proclamations and Presentations   

 

4. 3. 1. Presentation of a Special Recognition in support of Chiropractic Health Awareness Month   

 



Call to Order
 

5. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to
appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the
meeting, no later than 5:00 p.m. on October 26, 2021.  Citizen Comments is an
opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items.  Any
comment received that is in the nature of asking a question will be referred to an
appropriate member of the City staff for a response.

  

 

6. Minutes   

 

6. 1. August 17, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board
September 28, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting
September 29, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Parks Master Plan Open House
September 30, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - TML Region 3 Regional Meeting

 

7. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without
separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

  

 

7. 1. Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution expressing intent to finance expenditures to be
incurred for various capital projects and equipment, which were approved by the City Council
in the FY 2021-22 Budget and Capital Program, and to reimburse the City from the proceeds of
obligations that will be issued after the expenditure of funds, to pay costs of such projects and
equipment.

 

7. 2. Budget Amendment Ordinance 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2021-O0148, Amendment 2, amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes
respecting the Grant Fund to accept and appropriate funding from the FY 2021 Federal Transit
Administration Section 5310 Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriation
Act Grant and Airport Capital Fund, to appropriate additional funding for Capital Improvement
Project 92717, replace Aircraft Rescue Fire Fighting (ARFF) Vehicle; providing for filing; and
providing for a savings clause.

 

7. 2. 1. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the acts of the City
Financial Officer, in ratifying FY 2021 Federal Transit Administration Section 5310
Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act Grant, Project ID
TX-2021-106-00, for the mobility of elderly individuals and individuals with disabilities.

 

7. 3. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0149, abandoning
and closing an easement, located in Lot 22A, Tanglewood Addition, Lubbock County, Texas,
at 4601 23rd Street.

 

7. 4. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing a
20-foot alley right-of-way, located in Block 7, Original Town of Lubbock, Lubbock County
Texas, at 5th Street and Avenue J.

 



 

7. 5. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Parking
Lease Agreement between the City of Lubbock and Cast Iron Grill, for the use of a City-owned
parking lot at 1801 Crickets Avenue.

 

7. 6. Resolution - Planning: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Dedicatory
Deed, associated Easements, and all related documents, in connection with property described
as Tract A, Milwaukee EST Addition, Lubbock County, Texas, located south of 104th Street
and west of Milwaukee Avenue.

 

7. 7. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution ratifying the actions of the Mayor, in
executing Contract 16224, an agreement and related documents, with the Texas Water
Development Board (TWBD), for a grant utilizing TWBD Category 1 Flood Infrastructure
Funds (FIF) associated with the project Flood Protection Planning of Watersheds.

 

7. 8. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Construction Service Contract 15944, with Garney Companies, Inc., for improvements at Pump
Station No. 4, including pumps, motors, and starters.

 

7. 9. Resolution - Public Works: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Change
Order No. 1 to Contract 15875, with MH Civil Constructors, Inc., for the construction of the
brick paving project at the intersection of 13th Street and Texas Avenue.

 

7. 10. Resolution - Public Works: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an
Advanced Funding Agreement, Contract 16170, between the City of Lubbock and the State of
Texas, acting through the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT), for the Pedestrian
and Bicyclist Connectivity Project inside Loop 289, at various locations.

 

7. 11. Resolution - Water Utilities: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute the
Third Amendment to the Raw Water Lease, between the City of Lubbock and the Lake Alan
Henry Water District.

 

7. 12. Resolution - Public Works Streets: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement, Contract 15344, with Infrastructure
Management Services, for an extension of time.

 

7. 13. Resolutions - Public Works Streets: Consider two resolutions authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 16197, with MUDco Ready Mix, LLC, and Contract 16093, with West
Infrastructure Construction, LLC, to establish the annual pricing of concrete products.

 

7. 14. Ordinance 1st Reading - Traffic Management: Consider an ordinance amending Section
20.05.103 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock, with regard to school zones.

 

7. 15. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution approving the Upland Crossing
Public Improvement District (PID) Board Bylaws, as reviewed and recommended by the
Upland Crossing PID Advisory Board.

 

7. 16. Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to



7. 16. Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 16151, and all related documents, between the City of Lubbock Community
Development Department and the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, for
the Community Development Block Grant.

 

7. 17. Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 16152, and all related documents, between the City of Lubbock Community
Development Department and the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, for
the Emergency Solutions Grant.

 

7. 18. Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 16153, and all related documents, between the City of Lubbock Community
Development Department and the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, for
the Community Housing Development Organization.

 

7. 19. Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Amendment
No. 6 to Contract 15200, with RS&H, Inc., for the Security Systems Upgrade at Lubbock
Preston Smith International Airport.

 

7. 20. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 15860, with Southern Tire Mart, LLC, for the supply of tires for Citibus paratransit
vans and staff support vehicles.

 

7. 21. Resolution - Health Benefits: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute the
renewal of Contract 14820, by and between the City of Lubbock and Dearborn National Life
Insurance, to enhance services by adding the SelerixBenSelect benefits administration system.

 

7. 22. Resolution - Facilities Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 16057 with BFD Interiors, dba Built for Dreams, for purchase and installation of
furniture for the newly constructed Lubbock Power and Light GIS addition.

 

7. 23. Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase
Order 31062145, with C&C Manufacturing, LLC, for the purchase of a new 2022 Aljon
Landfill Compactor, for Solid Waste Landfill.

 

7. 24. Resolution - Parks and Recreation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Amendment No. 5 to the Lease Agreement, with Joyland Amusement Park, to extend the term
until December 31, 2021.

 

7. 25. Resolution - Civic Center: Consider a resolution approving the recommendation from the
Cultural Arts Grant Review Committee and the Civic Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors, for the
2021 Live Music Performance Grant Program using Hotel Occupancy Tax funds collected at
the end of FY 2019-20.

 

7. 26. Resolution - Lubbock Power & Light: Consider a resolution ratifying the Second
Amendment to the Master Sales Agreement, by and between the City of Lubbock acting by and
through its Electric Utility Board and City Council, and Itron, Inc., regarding the installation,
maintenance, and support services relating to automatic meters and metering.



 

8. Regular Agenda   

 

8. 1. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider a resolution authorizing the City Council to
cast votes for candidates to the Lubbock Central Appraisal District Board of Directors.

 

8. 2. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Airport Board.
 

8. 3. Public Hearing - Business Development: Hold a public hearing on the proposed 2022
assessment rate for the Northwest Passage Public Improvement District (PID), and consider an
ordinance reviewing classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for
the services and improvements of property in the Northwest Passage PID; approving, adopting,
and filing with the City Secretary the assessment roll; levying 2022 assessments for the cost of
certain services and improvements to be provided in the district during FY 2022-23; fixing
charges and liens against the property in the district and against the owners thereof; and
providing for the collection of the assessment.

 

8. 4. Public Hearing - Business Development: Hold a public hearing for the City Council to
consider the creation of a Public Improvement District for Willow Bend Villas, which covers a
portion of an area in the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, generally bounded by 19th
Street on the north, Kelsey Avenue on the east, and railroad tracks on the south and west.

 

8. 5. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution making findings and authorizing
establishment of the Willow Bend Villas Public Improvement District (PID), which covers a
portion of an area in the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, generally bounded by 19th
Street on the north, Kelsey Avenue on the east, and railroad tracks on the south and west.

 

8. 6. Public Hearing - Business Development: Hold a public hearing regarding the proposed
creation of the City of Lubbock Property Assessed Clean Energy Program (Lubbock City
PACE).

 

8. 7. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution to establish the City of Lubbock
Property Assessed Clean Energy Program (Lubbock City PACE).

 

8. 8. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 16202, with Texas Property Assessed Clean Energy Authority (Texas PACE
Authority), for administrative services for the City of Lubbock Property Assessed Clean
Energy Program (Lubbock City PACE).

 



 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 1. 
10/26/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
August 17, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board
September 28, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting
September 29, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Parks Master Plan Open House
September 30, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - TML Region 3 Regional Meeting

Item Summary
August 17, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board
September 28, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting
September 29, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Parks Master Plan Open House
September 30, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - TML Region 3 Regional Meeting

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

Attachments
8.17.2021 S EUB 
9.29.2021 S Parks Open House 
9.28.2021 
9.30.2021 S TML 



CITY OF LUBBOCK
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING

August 17, 2021
11:00 A.M.

The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in special session on the 17th of August, 2021, in
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas, and via video conference and
teleconference at 11:00 a.m.

11:05 A.M.  CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas and via video
conference and teleconference

Present: Mayor Daniel M. Pope; Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale; Council Member Randy Christian;
Council Member Jeff Griffith; Council Member Latrelle Joy; Council Member Shelia
Patterson Harris; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City Secretary Rebecca Garza; City
Attorney Chad Weaver
Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris attended via video conference.

Absent Council Member Juan A. Chadis

This was a meeting of the Electric Utility Board. A quorum of Council Members attended and participated in
discussions during the meeting in which the board considered the following topics as shown below.

Note:      The Electric Utility Board addressed agenda items in the following order: 
Executive Session
No quorum, of City Council, was present for all other items.

1. PUBLIC COMMENT

1. 1. This period, of up to thirty minutes, is dedicated to public comment. Each member of the public
will have three minutes to speak. Any member of the public that requires the assistance of a
translator will have six minutes to speak. Comments must be limited to only those items posted on
the Electric Utility Board agenda. Any member of the public wishing to speak shall sign up on the
public comment sheet on the day of the Electric Utility Board Meeting. The Electric Utility Board
shall follow the order of persons wishing to speak as listed on the sign-up sheet. If everyone who
signed up to speak has been given an opportunity to speak and the thirty minutes designated for
public comment has not been exhausted, the Electric Utility Board may, at its discretion, open the
floor to anyone else wishing to address the Electric Utility Board, subject to all the same
procedures and guidelines.

*This item was deleted.

1. 2. Alternatively, any member of the public wishing to address the Electric Utility Board, regarding



1. 2. Alternatively, any member of the public wishing to address the Electric Utility Board, regarding
any matter posted on the Electric Utility Board Agenda, may submit a public comment by email
at  lplcitizencomments@mylubbock.us beginning at the time this agenda is publicly posted and no
later than 9:00 a.m. on August 17, 2021. Each comment will be read aloud for a period of time not
to exceed three minutes, in accordance with the practices and procedures of the Electric Utility
Board.

*This item was deleted.
 
2. EXECUTIVE SESSION

This meeting was called into a closed session at 11:06 a.m. under the provisions of Section
551, Texas Government Code. The meeting was called back into a public session at 1:17 p.m.
and adjourned.

 
2. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government Code § 551.086, to discuss

and deliberate, on the following competitive matters of Lubbock Power & Light, reasonably
related to the following categories:

 
2. 1. 1. Generation unit specific and portfolio fixed and variable costs, including forecasts of those

costs, capital improvement plans for generation units, and generation unit operating
characteristics and outage scheduling.

 
2. 1. 1. 1. Discuss and deliberate generation unit matters.
 
2. 1. 2. Bidding and pricing information for purchased power, generation and fuel, and Electric

Reliability Council of Texas bids, prices, offers, and related services and strategies.
 
2. 1. 2. 1. Discuss and deliberate issues regarding Electric Reliability Council of Texas prices and

related services and strategies.
 
2. 1. 2. 2. Resolution No. EUB 2021-R0054 regarding purchased power bidding and pricing.

 
Motion by Edwin Schulz, seconded by Kevin McMahon, to approve Resolution
No. EUB 2021-R0054.

 
Vote: 8-0 Motion carried by the Board.
 
Other: Greg Taylor (ABSENT)

 
2. 1. 3. Effective fuel and purchased power agreements and fuel transportation arrangements and

contracts.
 
2. 1. 3. 1. Discuss and deliberate purchased power matters.  
 
2. 1. 4. Risk management information, contracts, and strategies, including fuel hedging and storage.
 
2. 1. 4. 1. Discuss and deliberate risk management strategies.

Special City Council Meeting 
August 17, 2021 Page 2 of 6

mailto:lplcitizencomments@mylubbock.us


 
2. 1. 5. Plans, studies, proposals, and analyses for system improvements, additions, or sales (other

than transmission and distribution system improvements inside the service area for which the
public power utility is the sole certificated retail provider).

 
2. 1. 5. 1. Discuss and deliberate plans, studies, proposals, and analyses for system improvements,

additions, or sales.
 
2. 1. 6. Customer billing, contract, and usage information, electric power pricing information, system

load characteristics, and electric power marketing analyses and strategies.
 
2. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government Code § 551.071, seeking the

advice of its legal counsel about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement offers and hold a
consultation with the attorney on matters in which the duty of the attorney to the Electric Utility
Board under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas
conflicts with Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code: 

 
2. 2. 1. Legal advice and counsel regarding the Application of the City of Lubbock, acting by and

through Lubbock Power & Light for authority to establish initial wholesale transmission rates
and tariffs before the Public Utility Commission of Texas and the State Office of
Administrative Hearings, PUC Docket No. 51100, SOAH Docket 473-21-0043, and
associated Tariff Filing No. 52011, proceeding before the Public Utility Commission of Texas.

 
2. 2. 2. Legal issues regarding contract(s) herein listed on the agenda.
 
2. 2. 3. Legal advice and counsel regarding matters identified in Section 2.1-2.1.6 of this Agenda.
 
2. 2. 4. Legal advice and counsel regarding statutory changes.
 
2. 2. 5. Schumacher vs. City of Lubbock, Cause No. 2020-541,386, proceeding in the 72nd District

Court of Lubbock County, Texas.
 
2. 2. 6. Application of the City of Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock Power & Light, for

Interim Update of Wholesale Transmission Rates, PUC Docket Number 52390, proceeding
before the Public Utility Commission of Texas.

 
2. 2. 7. Application of the Electric Reliability Council of Texas, Inc. for a Debt Obligation Order to

Finance Uplift Balances under PURA Chapter 39, Subchapter M, and for a Good Cause
Exception, PUC Docket No. 52321, proceeding before the Public Utility Commission of
Texas.

 
2. 2. 8. Application of the Electric Reliability Council of Texas, Inc., for a Debt Obligation Order to

Finance Uplift Balances Under PURA Chapter 39, Subchapter N, and for a Good Cause
Exception, PUC Docket No. 52322, proceeding before the Public Utility Commission of
Texas.

 
2. 2. 9. Proceeding for Eligible Entities to File an Opt Out Pursuant to PURA § 39.653(d) and for

Special City Council Meeting 
August 17, 2021 Page 3 of 6



2. 2. 9. Proceeding for Eligible Entities to File an Opt Out Pursuant to PURA § 39.653(d) and for
Load-Serving Entities to File Documentation of Exposure to Costs Pursuant to the Debt
Obligation Order in Docket No. 52322, PUC Docket No. 52364, proceeding before the
Public Utility Commission of Texas.

 
2. 2. 10. Legal issues regarding customer choice and Texas Utilities Code, Chapter 40.
 
2. 2. 11. Claims related to alleged property damage on or about February 13-22, 2021.
 
2. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government Code § 551.074 to deliberate

the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, and duties of a public officer or employee
(Director of Electric Utilities, General Counsel, Chief Financial Officer, Director of Customer
Service).

 
2. 4. Hold an executive session in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government Code § 551.074 to deliberate

the appointment of a public officer or employee (Electric Utility Board).
 
12:00 p.m. – Approximately - Following completion of the Executive Session, the Electric Utility Board will
reconvene in open session to discuss the items listed below. It is anticipated that the open session will begin at 
12:00 p.m. However, this is an approximation and the Board may begin the open session earlier or later
depending on when the Executive Session is complete.
 
 
3. REGULAR SESSION
 
3. 1. The Board will approve the minutes from the Regular Electric Utility Board Meeting of July 20,

2021.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 2. Presentation and discussion of the update/report by the Director of Electric Utilities, or his

designee, regarding customer service, business center practices, procedures and policies, customer
concerns and complaints, billing system, forms, and procedures, status of transmission and
distribution projects, mutual aid, weather events, outage, and restoration efforts, staffing levels,
regulatory matters, and operational performance metrics.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 3. Presentation and discussion of financial and capital statements, financing options, audits, and

financial policies of Lubbock Power & Light relating to debt issuance issues, reserve account
funding, cost allocation, revenue and expense projections, power cost recovery factor, customer
metering, tariff and billing, service and administrative issues.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 4. Presentation and discussion of a preliminary plan of finance and rating matters related to the

Special City Council Meeting 
August 17, 2021 Page 4 of 6



3. 4. Presentation and discussion of a preliminary plan of finance and rating matters related to the
upcoming sale of Electric Light & Power System Revenue Bonds, Series 2021, the related
refunding of interim obligations, and action taken on same by the City Council of the City of
Lubbock.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 5. Presentation and discussion regarding the extension of the Commitment Expiration Date of the

Note Purchase Agreement for City of Lubbock, Texas, Electric Light and Power System Revenue
Revolving Notes, the reduction of the Available Commitment under such Agreement, the
amendment of the substitute index for floating rate notes, and other necessary and appropriate
amendments approved by the City Council of the City of Lubbock.  

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 6. Presentation and discussion of the Lubbock Power & Light FY 2021-22 Operating Budget and

Capital Program, any action taken by the City Council of the City of Lubbock, and any updates
regarding same.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 7. Presentation and discussion by the Director of Electric Utilities, or his designee, regarding updates

on the legislative and regulatory matters regarding ERCOT and/or the electric utility industry, and
the status of any legislation, legislative hearings, rulemakings, and/or regulatory or administrative
action regarding same.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 8. Presentation and discussion by the Director of Electric Utilities, or his designee, regarding updates

on potential for providing customer choice to LP&L customers, the need for a provider of last
resort, and other related matters regarding competition of retail electric service in Lubbock Power
& Light’s certificated retail service area.

*This item was deleted.
 
3. 9. Discussion and the Board will take possible minuted action for date, time, and location of a

possible Special Meeting in August, 2021, if needed.

*This item was deleted.
 
4. CONSENT AGENDA
 
4. 1. The Board will consider a resolution approving Lubbock Power & Light’s form Interconnection

Agreement, as revised and amended in the Interconnection Agreement attached to the Resolution,
and repealing Lubbock Power & Light’s form Interconnection Agreement for all interconnections
entered into on or after August 17, 2021, previously adopted by Resolution EUB 2015-R0054, and
as amended in EUB 2018-R0072, and any prior form interconnections for Lubbock Power & Light.

Special City Council Meeting 
August 17, 2021 Page 5 of 6



*This item was deleted.
 
4. 2. The Board will consider a resolution delegating authority to the Director of Electric Utilities to

enter into and execute Purchase and Sale agreements for the sale of renewable energy credits
(“RECs”) when the Director of Electric Utilities determines that doing so is in the best interest of
LP&L and its ratepayers.

*This item was deleted.
 
4. 3. The Board will consider a resolution authorizing the Director of Electric Utilities, or his designee,

to execute that certain Amendment to the Payment Services Agreement, by and between the City
of Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock Power & Light, and Western Union Financial
Services, Inc. regarding certain services related to payment processing and remittance.

*This item was deleted.
 
4. 4. The Board will consider a resolution authorizing the Purchasing Manager, or his designee, to

execute a Purchase Order by and between the City of Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock
Power & Light, and Texas Electric Cooperatives, RFP# 7135-21-ELD, regarding LP&L 80’
Concrete Poles.

*This item was deleted.
 

1:17 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, the meeting was adjourned.

 
The August 17, 2021 Special City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 26th
day of October, 2021.

 
  ____________________________________

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

 

*This item was discussed, by the Board, without a quorum of Council Members present.

Special City Council Meeting 
August 17, 2021 Page 6 of 6



CITY OF LUBBOCK
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING

September 29, 2021
5:30 P.M.

 
The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in special session on the 29th of September, 2021,
at the Lubbock Memorial Civic Center, 1501 Mac Davis Lane, Banquet Hall, Lubbock, Texas.

  
6:00 P.M. 
            

CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
Lubbock Memorial Civic Center, 1501 Mac Davis Lane, Banquet Hall, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope; Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale; Council Member Randy Christian;
Council Member Jeff Griffith; Council Member Latrelle Joy; Council Member Shelia Patterson
Harris; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City Attorney Chad Weaver; Deputy City Secretary
Courtney Paz 

Absent:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis 
 

Note:      City Council addressed agenda items in the following order: 
1.1-1.3

1. Regular Agenda
 
1. 1. Introduction & Opening Remarks - Mayor Daniel M. Pope

Mayor Daniel M. Pope and Colby VanGundy, director of parks and recreation, gave opening
remarks, welcomed those in attendance, and introduced the consultant, Halff Associates, Inc. 

 
1. 2. Presentation of the Parks, Recreation, and Open Spaces Master Plan by Halff Associates, Inc.

Aaron Tuley, with Halff Associates, Inc., gave a presentation on the Parks, Recreation, and Open
Spaces Master Plan.

 
1. 3. Question & Answer Session

Parks and Recreation staff and representatives with Halff Associates, Inc. were available to answer
questions from those in attendance. 

 

6:22 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, the meeting was adjourned.

 



The September 29, 2021 Special City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the
26th day of October, 2021.

 
  ____________________________________

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

 

Special City Council Meeting 
September 29, 2021 Page 2 of 2



CITY OF LUBBOCK
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

September 28, 2021
1:00 P. M.

 
The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in regular session on the 28th of September, 2021,
in City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas at 1:00 p.m.

  
1:08 P.M. CITY COUNCIL CONVENED

City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope; Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale; Council Member Juan A. Chadis;
Council Member Randy Christian; Council Member Jeff Griffith; Council Member Latrelle Joy;
Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City Secretary
Rebecca Garza; City Attorney Chad Weaver 

 

Note:       City Council addressed agenda items in the following order:
Citizen Comments 1; 2.1-2.3; Executive Session; 4.1-4.4; Citizen Comments 5; 6.1; 7.1-7.15;
7.17-7.28; 7.16; 8.1-8.3; 8.7; 8.9-8.11; 8.13-8.16; 8.4-8.6; 8.8; 8.12; 8.17-8.20.
Item No.'s 8.4, 8.8, and 8.12 failed. 

               
1. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to

appear in person before the meeting of the City Council, regarding Items 2.2 and 2.3 on
the Work Session Agenda, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the meeting, no
later than 1:00 p.m. on September 28, 2021.  Citizen Comments is an opportunity for
citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items. Any comment received
that is in the nature of asking a question will be referred to an appropriate member of the
City staff for a response.

Sign ups: 

Aric Lampert; and Jarrod Miller, with First United Methodist Church, appeared before City
Council to speak in favor of item 2.3 (Civic Park Discussion).

 
2. Hear and discuss presentations regarding the following and provide guidance to staff as

appropriate.
 
2. 1. Wellness Program

Clifton Beck, director of human resources, gave a presentation on the proposed City of Lubbock
employee wellness program and answered questions from City Council. Topics discussed
included: the purpose of the wellness program, medical claims trends, prescription medication
trends, program requirements, incentives, and next steps. Additionally, Mr. Beck introduced Gil



Hartsfield, president & CEO of IA Wellness; Meghan Gandy, director of wellness with IA
Wellness; and Sharon Grant, also with IA Wellness, who were in attendance during the
presentation. 

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.
 
2. 2. Presentation of Parks, Recreation, and Open Space Master Plan Update

Colby VanGundy, director of parks and recreation, introduced the item, gave comments, and
answered questions from City Council. Fatima Wajahat, with Halff Associates, gave a
presentation on Chapters one and two of the Parks, Recreation, and Open Space Master Plan and
answered questions from City Council. Topics discussed included: Lubbock demographic
profiles, the master plan approach, provisional goals, NRPA facility and equipment standards, an
overview of existing parks and facilities, and the proposed parkland dedication ordinance. Aaron
Tuley, with Halff Associates, gave a presentation on the Canyon Lakes Master Plan provisional
program and answered questions from City Council. Meegan Honeyman, parks and recreation
public relations coordinator, gave an update on the Parks Master Plan survey and answered
questions from City Council. 

Council Member Latrelle Joy, chair of the Unified Development Code (UDC) Sub-Committee,
gave comments and answered questions from City Council. 

 
2. 3. Civic Park Discussion

Brianna Gerardi, director of business development, introduced the item, gave a presentation, and
answered questions from City Council. Ms. Gerardi presented on an update of the Downtown
Master Plan as it relates to the establishment of a Downtown Civic Park and Civic Park project
history.

Suzanne Blake, member of the Civic Park Advisory Committee; and Robert Taylor, chair of the
Central Business District Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone Board of Directors, gave
a presentation and answered questions from City Council on the history of the Civic Park
Advisory Committee; the recommendation, as approved by both bodies, of establishing the
Downtown Civic Park at the 1301 Broadway location; funding options; and fundraising
strategies. Mont McClendon, City of Lubbock's downtown master developer/McDougal
Properties, gave a presentation on the projected economic impact of the Downtown Civic Park
on the downtown area and answered questions from City Council. 

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; Bill Howerton, deputy city manager; and Colby VanGundy,
director of parks and recreation, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

 
 
At the completion of the Work Session, City Council recessed into Executive Session.
 
3. Executive Session

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 28, 2021 Page 2 of 18



3. Executive Session

The meeting recessed at 3:34 p.m. and reconvened in Executive Session under the
provisions of Section 551, Texas Government Code. City Council reconvened in open
session at 4:49 p.m., and the meeting was called to order at 5:04 p.m.

 
3. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071, with

legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement agreement and on
matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional
Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

 
3. 1. 1. Discuss Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code
 
3. 1. 2. Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) Turnover Program
 
3. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section 551.072, to

deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property.
 
3. 2. 1. Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) Turnover Program
 
3. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.074, to

discuss personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the
Building Board of Appeals, Electric Utility Board, Health/Educational Facilities Development
Corporation Board of Directors, Lubbock Central Appraisal District Board of Directors, LECD
Board of Directors, Planning and Zoning Commission, Urban Design/Historic Preservation
Commission, and the Water Board of Appeals.

  

 
 
 
4:30 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in Open Session in City Council Chambers.

City Council reconvened at 4:49 p.m.
 
4. Ceremonial Items
 
4. 1. Invocation

Senior Chaplain Josh Reglin, with Covenant Health System, led the invocation.
 
4. 2. Pledges of Allegiance

Pledges of Allegiance, to the United States and Texas Flags, were led by Mayor Pro Tem Steve
Massengale.

 
4. 3. Proclamations and Presentations
 
4. 3. 1. Presentation of a Special Recognition in support of the 5-5-5 Move Over and Slow Down

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 28, 2021 Page 3 of 18



4. 3. 1. Presentation of a Special Recognition in support of the 5-5-5 Move Over and Slow Down
Rally at the South Plains Mall on October 9, 2021

Shaun Fogerson, fire chief, presented a Special Recognition in support of the 2021 5-5-5
Move Over and Slow Down Rally. Chief Fogerson gave comments, thanked City Council
for their support, and invited all Lubbock residents to attend the 5-5-5 Move Over and Slow
Down Rally at the South Plains Mall on October 9, 2021, from 10:00 a.m. to 2:00
p.m. Additionally, Chief Fogerson introduced Mark and Susan Hill, parents of Lt. Eric Hill
who was killed in the line of duty, and thanked them for their support and dedication in
their development of the 5-5-5 foundation.

 
4. 3. 2. Staff Recognition - Lubbock Fire Rescue - AHA Mission: Lifeline EMS Gold Plus Award

Shaun Fogerson, fire chief, presented a staff recognition to Lubbock Fire Rescue in
recognition of their American Heart Association (AHA) Mission Lifeline EMS Gold Plus
Award, which was awarded jointly to Lubbock Fire Rescue and UMC EMS. Chief
Fogerson gave comments on the award's requirements and significance in the field of
emergency medical services and answered questions from City Council. Chief Fogerson
also recognized Deputy Fire Chief Nick Wilson, who was in attendance, and is responsible
for overseeing Lubbock Fire Rescue's EMS operations.   

 
4. 4. Board Recognitions: Presented by Council Member Jeff Griffith

Lubbock Reese Redevelopment Authority Board of Directors: 
George McMahan
John T. Hamilton

  

 
Call to Order

The meeting was called to order at 5:04 p.m.
 
5. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to

appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the
meeting, no later than 5:00 p.m. on September 28, 2021.  Citizen Comments is an
opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items.  Any
comment received that is in the nature of asking a question will be referred to an
appropriate member of the City staff for a response.

Sign ups: 

Stephen Faulk, with MWM Architects; Taylor McAlpine; Tara Newton; George
Hardberger; and Ryan Reeber appeared before City Council to speak in favor of items 8.1
(resolution approving the Civic Park project to be located at 1301 Broadway Avenue) and
8.2 (a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Grant Agreement and related
documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and the CH Foundation).

 
6. Minutes

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 28, 2021 Page 4 of 18



 
6. 1. August 24, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting

August 26, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Joint Meeting with the Planning & Zoning
Commission
September 7, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Budget

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Juan A. Chadis, seconded by Council Member Latrelle Joy to

approve the August 24, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting minutes; the August 26, 2021
Special City Council Meeting - Joint Meeting with the Planning & Zoning Commission
minutes; and the September 7, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Budget minutes.  

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without

separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Jeff

Griffith to approve items 7.1-7.15 and 7.17-7.28. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. 1. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0129,

Amendment 43, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Lake
Alan Henry Fund, Health Benefits Fund, the Storm Water Operating and Capital Funds to
establish Capital Improvement Project 8667 Flood Protection Study, and the Grant Fund; to
accept and appropriate funding from the U.S. Department of Transportation Federal Aviation
Administration for the Airport Rescue Grant; providing for filing; and providing for a savings
clause.

  

 
7. 2. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0130, 

Amendment 44, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Grant
Fund to accept and appropriate funding from the Texas Department of State Health Services.

  

 
7. 3. Budget Amendment Ordinance 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0135,

Amendment 1, amending the Adopted FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Pay Plans; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

  

 
7. 4. Resolution - Finance: Resolution No. 2021-R0365 authorizing the Mayor to execute an

amendment to the Grant Management Agreement between the City of Lubbock and Market
Lubbock, Inc., dated January 25, 1996.

  

 
7. 5. Resolution - Risk Management: Resolution No. 2021-R0366 authorizing and directing the

City Manager to purchase, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, Network Security Privacy
Insurance coverage from a carrier as yet to be determined, for which the premium amount shall
not exceed $114,393.

  

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 28, 2021 Page 5 of 18



7. 6. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2021-O0131, abandoning and closing
an Underground Water Line Easement on Lot 45-C, Northridge Addition, located at 3106
Canyon Road, Lubbock County, Texas.

  

 
7. 7. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2021-O0132, abandoning and closing

a portion of a Drainage Easement, located in Section 1, Block AK, Viridian Addition, Lubbock
County, Texas.

  

 
7. 8. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2021-R0367 authorizing the Mayor to execute a

Street Use License/City Public Grounds Monitor Well Permit, with Daniel B. Stephens and
Associates, Inc., a Geo-Logic Company, for installation of a groundwater monitoring well in the
right-of-way of Vanda Avenue and 44th Street, Lubbock, Texas.

  

 
7. 9. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2021-R0368 authorizing the Mayor to execute a

Street Use License/City Public Grounds Monitor Well Permit, with the Air Force Civil
Engineering Center, for installation and maintenance of two groundwater monitoring wells, for
collecting water samples near the former Reese Air Force Base.

  

 
7. 10. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2021-R0369 authorizing the Mayor to accept, on

behalf of the City of Lubbock, three Street and Public Use Dedication Deeds out of Sections 30
and 34, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas, to be utilized for the Upland Avenue Roadway
Expansion Project.

  

 
7. 11. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2021-R0370 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Contract 15838, with Plummer Associates, Inc., for design services associated with the Reese
Water Line Improvements Capital Improvements Project.

  

 
7. 12. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2021-R0371 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Change Order No. 2 to Contract 15325 with Red River Construction, Co., for the construction of
the Southeast Water Reclamation Plant, Plant 3 Improvements Project.

  

 
7. 13. Resolution - Public Works Streets: Resolution No. 2021-R0372 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Public Works Contract 16027, with Lone Star Dirt and Paving, Ltd., for rebuilding
sections of Frankford Avenue and Alcove Avenue.

  

 
7. 14. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0373 ratifying the acts of

the Mayor in executing Amendment No. 1 to the Texas Health and Human Services
Commission (HHSC) Contract HHS000780500002 and related documents, under the Substance
Use Disorder Community Health Worker program, by and between the City of Lubbock and the
State of Texas, acting by and through HHSC.

  

 
7. 15. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0374 ratifying the acts of the

Mayor in executing Contract HHS001081400001 and all related documents, under the Substance
Use Disorder Prevention Grant Program, by and between the City of Lubbock and the State of
Texas, acting by and through the Texas Health and Human Services Commission.

  

 
7. 16. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0387 authorizing the Mayor to   

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 28, 2021 Page 6 of 18



7. 16. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0387 authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 15629 and all related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock, with
Methodist Children's Hospital d/b/a Covenant Children's Hospital of Lubbock, to provide
Network of Substance Use Disorder Treatment Services.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Council Member Juan A. Chadis to

approve Resolution No. 2021-R0387. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope (RECUSE) 

 
7. 17. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0375 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Purchase Order 364432, with OfficeWise Commercial Interiors, in accordance with
Purchasing Association of Cooperative Entities (PACE) Contract 00154, for the purchase of
cubicles for the Health Department.

  

 
7. 18. Resolution - Fleet Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0376 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Purchase Order 31061849, in accordance with BuyBoard Contract 617-20, with Farber Specialty
Vehicles, for the purchase of a 2021 Mobile Medical Health Vehicle, for the Health Department.

  

 
7. 19. Resolution - Facilities Management: Resolution No. 2021-R0377 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Public Works Contract 16023, with Johnson General Contractors Group, LLC, for the
renovations of the Abernathy Landfill Gate House, located at 17304 North FM 2528,
Abernathy, Texas.

  

 
7. 20. Resolution - Facilities Management: Resolution No. 2021-R0378 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Professional Services Agreement 16135, with Parkhill, for remaining construction
administration professional services, for the Municipal Parking Garage project.

  

 
7. 21. Resolution - Facilities Management: Resolution No. 2021-R0379 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Purchase Order 10024401, with OfficeWise Commercial Interiors, in accordance with
Purchasing Association of Cooperative Entities (PACE) Contract P10045, Omnia Contract
BNR105, and Sourcewell Contract 121919-HMN, for replacement furniture, fixtures, and
equipment at Citizens Tower and the Utilities Customer Services Center damaged by the flood
event of March 12, 2021.

  

 
7. 22. Resolution - Fleet Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0380 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Purchase Order 31061756, with Deere & Company, in accordance with Sourcewell Contract
032119-JDC, for the purchase of a 2018 John Deere 300G LC FT4 Excavator, for alley
maintenance.

  

 
7. 23. Resolution - Information Technology: Resolution No. 2021-R0381 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Purchase Order 33001539, with Dell Marketing LP, for the purchase of the Pluribus
Unified Network Management and Automation Software, for the City's voice and data networks.

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 28, 2021 Page 7 of 18



 
7. 24. Resolution - Police: Resolution No. 2021-R0382 approving the renewal of the Local

Administrative Agreement Between the Constituent Agencies of the Lubbock Metropolitan
Special Crimes Unit, an interlocal agreement between the City of Lubbock, on behalf of the
Lubbock Police Department, and Lubbock County, on behalf of the Lubbock County Sheriff and
the Lubbock County Criminal District Attorney, in order to enhance the ability of local law
enforcement agencies to identify, investigate, and deter violent criminal activity throughout
Lubbock County.

  

 
7. 25. Resolution - Police: Resolution No. 2021-R0383 authorizing the Mayor to execute an

agreement by and between the City of Lubbock, the United States Department of Justice, and
the United States Drug Enforcement Administration, for participation in the FY 2022-High
Intensity Drug Trafficking Area (HIDTA) Task Force Agreement and any associated
documents, including an Asset Sharing Agreement, to disrupt illicit drug traffic in the Lubbock
area. 

  

 
7. 26. Resolution - Police: Resolution No. 2021-R0384 authorizing the Mayor to execute an

agreement, by and between the City of Lubbock, the United States Department of Justice, and
the United States Drug Enforcement Administration, for participation in the FY 2022
Program-Funded State and Local Task Force Agreement - Task Force Group (Lubbock) and any
associated documents, including an Asset Sharing Agreement, to disrupt illicit drug traffic in the
Lubbock area.

  

 
7. 27. Resolution - Police: Resolution No. 2021-R0385 authorizing the Mayor to execute an

agreement, and any associated documents, by and between the City of Lubbock, the United
States Department of Justice, and the United States Drug Enforcement Administration,
for participation in the FY 2022 - SURGE-Asset Forfeiture Sharing Agreement, to combat
trafficking in narcotics and dangerous drugs in the Lubbock area.

  

 
7. 28. Resolution - City Manager: Resolution No. 2021-R0386 authorizing the Mayor to execute an

agreement, by and between the City of Lubbock and the State of Texas, acting through the
Texas Department of Transportation, for the temporary closure of State right-of-way during the
2021 Mayor's Marathon.

  

 
8. Regular Agenda
 
8. 1. Resolution - City Manager: Resolution No. 2021-R0388 approving the Civic Park project to be

located at 1301 Broadway Avenue utilizing the Wind + Water design as created by TBG
Partners and as recommended by the Central Business District Tax Increment Financing
Reinvestment Zone Board. 

Brianna Gerardi, director of business development, gave a presentation and answered questions
from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Juan A.

Chadis to approve Resolution No. 2021-R0388. 
  Vote: 5 - 2 Motion carried

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 28, 2021 Page 8 of 18



  Vote: 5 - 2 Motion carried

  NAY:  Council Member Latrelle Joy 
  Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris 

 
8. 2. Resolution - City Manager: Resolution No. 2021-R0389 authorizing the Mayor, to execute a

Grant Agreement and related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and the CH
Foundation, for receipt of Grant Funds for the construction of a Downtown Civic Park, located
at 1301 Broadway.

Brianna Gerardi, director of business development, gave a presentation and answered questions
from City Council. Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered questions from
City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Juan A.

Chadis to approve Resolution No. 2021-R0389. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 3. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Resolution No. 2021-R0390 to nominate board

members to serve as Appraisal District Directors for the Lubbock Central Appraisal District.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Latrelle Joy, seconded by Council Member Jeff Griffith to

approve Resolution No. 2021-R0390, nominating Sonny Garza, Greg Jones, Bobby
McQueen, Brady Goen, and Noe Reynolds to the Board of Directors of the Lubbock
Central Appraisal District.  

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 4. Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 0335-C, a request of Rudy and

Elida Morin, for a Specific Use for a Dance Hall on property zoned Commercial District (C-4),
at 1813, 1815, and 1819 East Broadway, located north of East Broadway and west of Teak
Avenue, Gearhart Addition, Block 2, Lots 20-23, and consider an ordinance.

This item failed.

Kristen Sager, planning and zoning manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from
City Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 6:38 p.m.

No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition. 

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 6:39 p.m.

  

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 28, 2021 Page 9 of 18



  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve
Massengale to approve this item. 

  Vote: 0 - 7 Failed

  NAY:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope 
  Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale 
  Council Member Juan A. Chadis 
  Council Member Randy Christian 
  Council Member Jeff Griffith 
  Council Member Latrelle Joy 
  Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris 

 
8. 5. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0144, for Zone Case 2690-D, a request of

AMD Engineering, LLC for KWTHEM, LLC, for a zone change from Family Apartment
District (A-1) and General Retail District (C-3) to Local Retail District (C-2) with a Specific Use
for a Self-Storage Facility, at 2501 Iola Avenue, located east of Iola Avenue and north of 26th
Street, West End North Addition, Tract D1, and consider an ordinance.

Kristen Sager, planning and zoning manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from
City Council. Cory Dulin, with AMD Engineering, gave comments and answered questions from
City Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 6:45 p.m.

Gary Andrews, with GRACO Real Estate, appeared to speak in favor. 

John Chosa, Mike Haggard, and Lisa Chosa appeared to speak in opposition.

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 7:05 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Juan A. Chadis, seconded by Council Member Jeff Griffith to

approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0144. 
  Vote: 4 - 2 Motion carried

  NAY:  Council Member Latrelle Joy 
  Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris 
Other:  Council Member Randy Christian (AWAY) 

 
8. 6. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0145, for Zone Case 2904-H, a request of

Ingenium Civil Engineering, Inc. for Inn of South Plains, LLC, for a zone change from Interstate
Highway Commercial District (IHC), Commercial District (C-4), and Multi-Family District
(R-3) to IHC, at 301, 303, 305, 307, 309, 311, and 313 Avenue R and 302, 304, 306, and 310
Avenue Q, located north of Marsha Sharp Freeway and west of Avenue Q, Roberts &
McWhorter Addition, Block 3, Lot 1 and part of Lot 2, and Tracts A-C and the north part of
Tract D, and Dodson Addition, Block 3, Lots 1-5, and the south 16 feet of Lot 6, and consider an

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 28, 2021 Page 10 of 18



ordinance.

Kristen Sager, planning and zoning manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from
City Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 7:23 p.m.

Jeremy Pettit, with Ingenium Civil Engineering, appeared to speak in favor. 

No one appeared to speak in opposition. 

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 7:27 p.m.
 
  Motion by Council Member Juan A. Chadis, seconded by Council Member Jeff Griffith to

approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0145. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 7. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0136, for Zone Case 2904-I, a request of

Stough Real Estate Holdings, LLC for Isom E34, LLC, for a zone change from General Retail
District (C-3) and Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) to Interstate Highway
Commercial District (IHC) with a Specific Use for a Blood Bank and Blood Plasma Center, at
5120 34th Street, located east of Slide Road and north of 34th Street, Eckerd Addition, Tract A,
less 3,585 square feet of right-of-way, and consider an ordinance.

Kristen Sager, planning and zoning manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from
City Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 6:27 p.m.

Laura Pratt, with Brady & Hamilton, LLP, representing Stough Real Estate Holdings, LLC,
appeared to speak in favor. 

No one appeared to speak in opposition. 

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 6:35 p.m. 

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Jeff

Griffith to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0136. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 8. Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 2904-J, a request of Fusion LED

Displays DBA Sign-Express for Behold the Signs, for a Specific Use for a billboard on property
zoned Heavy Manufacturing District (M-2), at 901 Marsha Sharp Freeway, located south of
Marsha Sharp Freeway and west of Texas Avenue, Original Town of Lubbock Addition, Block
7, part of Lots 22-24, and consider an ordinance.

This item failed.

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 28, 2021 Page 11 of 18



This item failed.

Kristen Sager, planning and zoning manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from
City Council. Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; and Chad Weaver, city attorney, gave comments
and answered questions from City Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 7:36 p.m.

Justin McCray, the proponent, appeared to speak in favor.

Mont McClendon, city of Lubbock's Downtown Master Developer/McDougal Properties; Mary
Crites; Stephen Faulk; Sam Scheef; and Jane Henry appeared to speak in opposition.  

 
  Motion by Council Member Randy Christian, seconded by Council Member Jeff Griffith to

postpone this item to the December 14, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting.  
  Vote: 2 - 5 Failed

  NAY:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope 
  Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale 
  Council Member Juan A. Chadis 
  Council Member Latrelle Joy 
  Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris 

 
  Motion by Council Member Juan A. Chadis, seconded by Council Member Latrelle Joy to

approve this item.  
  Vote: 0 - 7 Failed

  NAY:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope 
  Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale 
  Council Member Juan A. Chadis 
  Council Member Randy Christian 
  Council Member Jeff Griffith 
  Council Member Latrelle Joy 
  Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris 

 
8. 9. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0137, for Zone Case 3135-B, a request of

Westar Commercial Realty for TopHat Operators, LLC, for a zone change from General Retail
District (C-3) to Commercial District (C-4) Specific Use for a bar at 11824 Indiana Avenue,
Suites #400 and #500, located west of Indiana Avenue and south of 118th Street, Cooper Plaza
Addition, Tract C, and consider an ordinance.

Kristen Sager, planning and zoning manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from
City Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 6:27 p.m.

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 28, 2021 Page 12 of 18



Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 6:27 p.m.
 
No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition. 

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 6:35 p.m. 
 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Jeff

Griffith to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0137. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 10. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0138, for Zone Case 3257-M, a request of

Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for 1585 Development, LLC and Rocket Partners I, LLC, for a
zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use to Single-Family District (R-1) with
a Specific Use for Townhomes, generally located south of 137th Street and west of Elgin
Avenue, on 3.4 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 1, and consider an ordinance.

Kristen Sager, planning and zoning manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from
City Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 6:27 p.m.

No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition. 

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 6:35 p.m. 

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Jeff

Griffith to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0138. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 11. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0139, for Zone Case 3308-D, a request of

AMD Engineering, LLC for Dreambuilt Homes, Inc., Bushland Springs, LLC, Bo Properties,
and HomeMakers Building Group, LLC, for a zone change from Single Family District (R-1) to
Single Family District with Reduced Setbacks (R-1A), at 7211 through 7224 23rd Street, located
east of Upland Avenue on the north and south sides of 23rd Street, Bushland Springs Addition,
Lots 245-258, and 1.48 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 43, located at the
northeast corner of Upland Avenue and 26th Street, and consider an ordinance.

Kristen Sager, planning and zoning manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from
City Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 6:27 p.m.

No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition. 

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 6:35 p.m. 

  

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 28, 2021 Page 13 of 18



  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Jeff
Griffith to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0139. 

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 12. Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 3314-A, a request of SK

Architecture Group, for a zone change from Garden Office District (GO) to General Retail
District (C-3), at 14101 Quaker Avenue, located east of Quaker Avenue and north of 142nd
Street, on 3.097 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 4, and consider an ordinance.

This item failed.

Kristen Sager, planning and zoning manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from
City Council. 

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 8:03 p.m.

No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition.

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 8:04 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Jeff

Griffith to approve this item.  
  Vote: 0 - 7 Failed

  NAY:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope 
  Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale 
  Council Member Juan A. Chadis 
  Council Member Randy Christian 
  Council Member Jeff Griffith 
  Council Member Latrelle Joy 
  Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris 

 
8. 13. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0140, for Zone Case 3443, a request of Dr.

Piyush Mittal and Greg Garrett for JKLM Investments, for a zone change from Restricted Local
Retail District (C-2A) to Local Retail District (C-2), at 10301 Indiana Avenue, located east of
Indiana Avenue and south of 103rd Street, on 0.8193 acres of unplatted land out of Block E2,
Section 19, and consider an ordinance.

Kristen Sager, planning and zoning manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from
City Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 6:27 p.m.

Greg Garrett, the proponent, appeared to speak in favor.

No one appeared to speak in opposition.

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 28, 2021 Page 14 of 18



No one appeared to speak in opposition.

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 6:35 p.m.
 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Jeff

Griffith to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0140. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 14. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0141, for Zone Case 3444, a request of

AMD Engineering, LLC for Escondido Lubbock, LLC, for a zone change from Transition
District (T) to Two-Family District (R-2), at 5802 Upland Avenue, located west of Upland
Avenue and south of 58th Street on 32.63 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 34,
and consider an ordinance.

Kristen Sager, planning and zoning manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from
City Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 6:27 p.m.

No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition.

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 6:35 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Jeff

Griffith to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0141. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 15. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0142, for Zone Case 3445, a request of

Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for Lubbock Economic Development Alliance, for a zone
change from Transition District (T) to Heavy Manufacturing District (M-2), located east of East
Loop 289 and south of 4th Street on 407.3 acres of unplatted land out of Block O, Section 6, and
consider an ordinance.

Kristen Sager, planning and zoning manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from
City Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 6:27 p.m.

No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition. 

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 6:35 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Jeff

Griffith to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0142. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 28, 2021 Page 15 of 18



 
8. 16. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0143, for Zone Case 3446, a request of

AMD Engineering, LLC for NWP EB-5 Project, LLC, for a zone change from Single-Family
District (R-1) to Two-Family District (R-2) and High-Density Apartment District (A-2), at 5601
Ursuline Street, located south of Ursuline Street and east of Frankford Avenue, on 134.45 acres
of unplatted land out of Block JS, Section 6, and consider an ordinance.

Kristen Sager, planning and zoning manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from
City Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 6:27 p.m.

No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition. 

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 6:35 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Jeff

Griffith to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0143. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 17. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0146, for Zone Case 3447, a request of

AMD Engineering, LLC for NWP EB-5 Project, LLC, for a zone change from Single-Family
District (R-1) to General Retail District (C-3) with a Specific Use for a Self-Storage Facility,
generally located east of Frankford Avenue and south of Princeton Street, on 4.21 acres of
unplatted land out of Block JS, Section 6, and consider an ordinance.

Kristen Sager, planning and zoning manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from
City Council. Cory Dulin, with AMD Engineering, gave comments and answered questions from
City Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 8:10 p.m.

Cory Dulin, with AMD Engineering, appeared to speak in favor.

No one appeared to speak in opposition. 

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 8:11 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Juan A. Chadis, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0146. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 18. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0147, amending Chapter 40 “Zoning” of the   

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 28, 2021 Page 16 of 18



8. 18. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0147, amending Chapter 40 “Zoning” of the
City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances, amending Section 40.01.003 “Definitions” to add a
definition for “Office/Warehouse”; amending Division 15 “C-3 General Retail District” to
update General Provisions and Permitted Uses; and amending Section 40.03.2233 “C-4
Permitted Uses” to add “Office/Warehouse” setting forth regulations for outside storage in the
“Office/Warehouse” use.

Kristen Sager, planning and zoning manager, gave comments and answered questions from City
Council. Gary Andrews, with GRACO Real Estate, gave comments and answered questions from
City Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 8:20 p.m.

No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 8:21 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0147. 
  Vote: 6 - 1 Motion carried

  NAY:  Council Member Randy Christian 

 
8. 19. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0133, pursuant to Chapter 43 of

the Texas Local Government Code, for annexation of the property located south of 34th Street
and west of Upland Avenue, containing approximately 7.867 acres, out of Section 39, Block AK,
Lubbock County, Texas, and commonly identified by the Lubbock Central Appraisal District
Reference Number R126622.

Kristen Sager, planning and zoning manager, gave comments and answered questions from City
Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Latrelle Joy, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0133. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 20. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2021-R0391 making findings that the

Willow Bend Villas Public Improvement District Petition meets the requirements of Chapter
372 of the Texas Local Government Code; accepting the Willow Bend Villas Public
Improvement District Petition, which covers a portion of an area in the City of Lubbock,
Lubbock County, Texas, generally bounded by 19th Street to the north, Kelsey Avenue to the
east, and railroad tracks to the south and west; and calling for a public hearing to receive public
comment on the formation of a public improvement district in the area depicted and described. 

Brianna Gerardi, director of business development, gave a presentation and answered questions
from City Council.

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 28, 2021 Page 17 of 18



 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Juan A.

Chadis to approve Resolution No. 2021-R0391. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 

8:43 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor Pope adjourned the meeting.

 
The September 28, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the
26th day of October, 2021.

  
  ____________________________________

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 28, 2021 Page 18 of 18



CITY OF LUBBOCK
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING

September 30, 2021
6:30 P.M.

 
The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in special session on the 30th of September, 2021,
in City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas at 6:30 p.m.

  
6:35 P.M. 
            

CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope; Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale; Council Member Jeff Griffith;
Council Member Latrelle Joy; Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris; City Manager W.
Jarrett Atkinson; City Secretary Rebecca Garza; City Attorney Chad Weaver 

Absent:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis; Council Member Randy Christian 
 

Note:      City Council addressed agenda items in the following order: 
1.1-1.9

1. Regular Agenda
 
1. 1. Call to Order & Welcome - Mario Martinez, TML Region 3 President

Mario Martinez, president of TML Region 3, called the TML Region 3 Regional Meeting to
order and welcomed those in attendance.

 
1. 2. Invocation

Tommy Murillo, homeland security program specialist with the South Plains Association of
Governments (SPAG), led the invocation.

 
1. 3. Opening Remarks - Evan Weiss, TML Region 3 First Vice President

Evan Weiss, first vice president of TML Region 3, gave opening remarks.
 
1. 4. Introductions & New Business - Mario Martinez, TML Region 3 President

Mario Martinez, president of TML Region 3, introduced TML Region 3 Board Members in
attendance and gave comments on new business. 

 
1. 5. TML Board Report - Council Member Latrelle Joy, TML Region 3 Regional Board Director



1. 5. TML Board Report - Council Member Latrelle Joy, TML Region 3 Regional Board Director

Council Member Latrelle Joy, regional board director for TML Region 3, presented the TML Board
Report.

 
1. 6. Keynote Speaker - Monty Wynn, Director of Grassroots & Legislative Services for TML

Monty Wynn, director of grassroots & legislative services for TML, gave the keynote speech for the
TML Region 3 Regional Meeting regarding a legislative update.

 
1. 7. Host City Introduction - Mayor Daniel M. Pope, City of Lubbock

Mayor Daniel M. Pope gave a welcome and introduction on behalf of the City of Lubbock, as the
host city for the TML Region 3 Regional Meeting.

 
1. 8. Host City Presentation - City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson, City of Lubbock

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave a presentation on the Citizens Tower Complex.
 
1. 9. Closing Remarks/Adjournment - Kelly Davila, South Plains Association of Governments (SPAG)

Regional Services Director
(Tours of Citizens Tower will commence immediately following the meeting.)

Kelly Davila, regional services director with the South Plains Association of Governments (SPAG),
gave closing remarks and thanked the City of Lubbock for hosting.

 

7:23 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, the meeting was adjourned.

 
The September 30, 2021 Special City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the
26th day of October, 2021.

 
  ____________________________________

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

 

Special City Council Meeting 
September 30, 2021 Page 2 of 2



 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 1. 
10/26/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution expressing intent to finance expenditures to be incurred for
various capital projects and equipment, which were approved by the City Council in the FY 2021-22
Budget and Capital Program, and to reimburse the City from the proceeds of obligations that will be issued
after the expenditure of funds, to pay costs of such projects and equipment.

Item Summary
The City will issue bonds during FY 2021-22, to fund projects that the City Council approved in the FY
2021-22 Capital Program. To allow capital projects to be completed within prescribed time frames, design,
engineering, and construction costs may be incurred prior to delivery of the bond proceeds. For the costs to
be eligible for reimbursement with bond proceeds, the City must declare its intent to reimburse
bond-funded costs that are incurred prior to the bond issuance.
 
Total cost of $53,960,727 is divided into 4 categories: 

General Fund is $3,000,000.
Internal Service Fund is $5,100,000.
Water/Wastewater Fund is $8,200,000.
Lubbock Power & Light is $37,660,727.

The annual debt service is budgeted through the annual operating budget process and is included in long
term financial planning and rate models. The annual payments are made from the annual revenues of the
respective Enterprise and Governmental Funds where the projects are incurred.

Fiscal Impact
The total cost of projects funded is $53,960,727, and the maximum principal amount of Obligations to be
issued will not exceed $59,300,000.

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Resolution & Exhibit A 



 4146-4457-0930.1 
 

RESOLUTION EXPRESSING INTENT TO  
FINANCE EXPENDITURES TO BE INCURRED 

WHEREAS, the City of Lubbock, Texas (the "Issuer") is a political subdivision of the State of 
Texas authorized to finance its activities by issuing debt obligations, including obligations the interest on 
which is excludable from gross income under Section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended (collectively, the "Obligations"); 

WHEREAS, the Issuer will make or has made, not more than 60 days prior to the date hereof, 
payments for capital expenditures with respect to the acquisition, construction, renovation, improvement 
and equipment of the projects listed on Exhibit A attached hereto; 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has concluded that it does not currently desire to issue Obligations to 
finance costs associated with the projects listed on Exhibit A attached hereto; 

WHEREAS, the Issuer desires to reimburse itself for capital expenditures associated with the 
projects listed on Exhibit A attached hereto from the proceeds of Obligations to be issued subsequent to 
the date hereof; and 

WHEREAS, the Issuer reasonably expects to issue Obligations to reimburse itself for the costs 
associated with the projects listed on Exhibit A attached hereto. 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that: 

Section 1. The Issuer reasonably expects to reimburse itself for capital expenditures that have 
been or will be paid subsequent to the date that is 60 days prior to the date hereof and that are to be paid 
in connection with the acquisition, construction, renovation, improvement and equipment of the projects 
listed on Exhibit A attached hereto from the proceeds of Obligations to be issued subsequent to the date 
hereof. 

 
Section 2. The Issuer reasonably expects that the maximum principal amount of Obligations 

issued to reimburse the Issuer for the costs associated with the projects listed on Exhibit A attached hereto 
will not exceed $59,300,000.  
  



 4146-4457-0930.1 
 

ADOPTED THIS 26th day of October, 2021 by the City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas. 
 
 
 
             
       DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR 
 
 
 
 ATTEST: 
 
 
  
       
 Rebecca Garza 
 City Secretary 
 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 
 
 
 
      
D. Blu Kostelich 
Chief Financial Officer 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
      
Jerry V. Kyle, Jr. 
Bond Counsel 
 

        



 4146-4457-0930.1 
 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
 
 



 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 2. 
10/26/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Amendment Ordinance 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No. 2021-O0148,
Amendment 2, amending the FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Grant Fund to
accept and appropriate funding from the FY 2021 Federal Transit Administration Section 5310
Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriation Act Grant and Airport Capital Fund, to
appropriate additional funding for Capital Improvement Project 92717, replace Aircraft Rescue Fire
Fighting (ARFF) Vehicle; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
On October 12, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

I. Accept and appropriate $37,933 from the Federal Transit Administration for the FY 2021 Section 5310
Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriation Act Grant.  
II. Amend CIP 92717, replace ARFF Vehicle, and increase the appropriation and funding by $75,000, from
$800,000 to $875,000. The additional funding will come from CARES Act Grant.

Fiscal Impact
Included in item summary.

Staff/Board Recommending
Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Ordinance 







 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 2. 1. 
10/26/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Transit Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the acts of the City Financial
Officer, in ratifying FY 2021 Federal Transit Administration Section 5310 Coronavirus Response and
Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act Grant, Project ID TX-2021-106-00, for the mobility of elderly
individuals and individuals with disabilities.

Item Summary
The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) has allocated $37,933 in FY 2021 Section 5310 Coronavirus
Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act (CRRSAA) Grant funds to the City of
Lubbock/Citibus to for the mobility of elderly individuals and individuals with disabilities.
 
These funds will be used for funding trips outside of Citibus’ required ADA service area and regular fixed
route service hours.  Funds will also be used to assist with the funding of free services for all individuals
needing transportation to and from the Health Department for COVID-19 testing, as well as the free
services being provided to all individuals needing transportation to and from COVID-19 treatment
facilities.  The free services have been implemented to prepare, prevent, and respond to the COVID-19
pandemic. 
 
FTA regulations require that all grants must be applied for and executed electronically. The grant has been
electronically executed by the Chief Financial Officer of the City of Lubbock.

Fiscal Impact
100% of this grant is federal funding and therefore, does not require a local match. Acceptance of this grant
will result in no additional cost to the City of Lubbock.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Chris Mandrel, General Manager of Citibus
Public Transit Advisory Board

Attachments
Resolution - FTA 5310 CRRSAA FY 2021 
Citibus - FTA FY 2021 Section 5310 CRRSAA 



























 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 3. 
10/26/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0149, abandoning and closing
an easement, located in Lot 22A, Tanglewood Addition, Lubbock County, Texas, at 4601 23rd Street.

Item Summary
On October 12, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

The City of Lubbock is in receipt of a request to abandon and close a 10-foot easement, located in Lot
22-A, Tanglewood Addition, Lubbock County, Texas. The easement was dedicated by re-plat and is no
longer needed.
 
All City departments and franchise utility companies are in agreement with the closure.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Ordinance Abandon and Close a 10-foot Easement - Tanglewood Addition 
Exhibit A - 10-foot Easement, Tanglewood Addition 
Plat- Lot 22-A Tanglewood Addition 







28A

23A

25A

22A

17A

19A

18A

24A

27A

26A

2
3

4

1

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code,  this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Closure of a 10' Easement,
Located in Lot 22A, Tanglewood Addition

0 100 20050
Feet

Digital Orthophotography - April 2020

TO
LE

D
O

 A
V

E

MARSH
A SH

ARP FW
Y

MARSH
A SH

ARP FW
Y    

US 8
2/6

2

23RD ST

TO
LE

D
O

 A
V

E

TANGLEW
OOD

SALEM
 AVE

Proposed 10' Easement to be Closed
V. 797 P.324

23RD ST

BROWNFIE
LD

 DR
TO

PE
K

A
 A

V
E

US 6
2/8

2

27TH ST





 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 4. 
10/26/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing a 20-foot alley
right-of-way, located in Block 7, Original Town of Lubbock, Lubbock County Texas, at 5th Street and
Avenue J.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock is in receipt of a request to abandon and close a 20-foot alley, located in Block 7
Original Town of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas.  
 
The total area being closed is 2,389 square feet. The Right-of-Way Department valued the closure of 2,389
square feet, at $1.00 per square foot, based on adjacent property land values, for a total value of $2,389.00
due to the City of Lubbock.
 
All City departments and franchise utility companies are in agreement with the closure.

Fiscal Impact
$2,389.00 revenue to the General Fund

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Ordinance Abandon and Close an Alley Right-of-Way - Block 7 Original Town 
Exhibit A - Closure Alley ROW - Blk 7 Original Town 
Map- Closure of Alley Blk 7 Original Town 







18797
Text Box
EXHIBIT "A"







 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 5. 
10/26/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Parking Lease
Agreement between the City of Lubbock and Cast Iron Grill, for the use of a City-owned parking lot
at 1801 Crickets Avenue.

Item Summary
The lease agreement renewal between the City of Lubbock and the Cast Iron Grill, located at 620 19th
Street, is for the use of 72 parking spaces on City-owned Property at 1801 Crickets Avenue. Cast Iron Grill
requested the lease to provide employees and customers additional parking between the hours of 6:00 a.m.
and 2:00 p.m., Monday through Friday. The term of the lease is 2 years.
 
The City will receive $480 per month calculated as follows: $20 per space (the current market rental rate
for downtown parking) x 72 spaces x 1/3 day (8 hours) = $480 a month.

Fiscal Impact
$480 monthly revenue to the General Fund

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution - Parking Lot Lease Agreement - Cast Iron Grill 
Parking Lot Lease Agreement - Cast Iron Grill 
Exhibit A -Parking Lot Lease Agreement - Cast Iron Grill 















15

15

1

8

14

2

16

2

24

15

7

20

9

1

7

11

6

1

1

13
12

10

18

5
17

46

21

12

19

2

10

22

11

45

4 4

12

44

10

14

4

4 4

13

22

13
7

20

1

9

2

43

3

16

18

7

7

1

19

TR A

5

21

17

6

17

12

3

6 6

11

19

19 6

18

8

20

11

11

20

23

18

3

11

22

9

47

8

3

TR A

16 9

9

15 10

41

3

1

37

23

8

10

6

8

12

5

13

3

2

40

17

12

9

17

8

16

7

6

39

11
9

5

4

21

24

18

16

4

14

5 5

48

13

38

20 5

3

15

19

23

14

12

14

42

2

10

19

24

20

10

8

2

7

20'

75
'

100'

100'

75
'

20'

20'

20'

75
'

75
'

100'

75'

15
'

15
'

75
'

75
'

20'

20'

20'

100'

75
'

75'

75'

20'

20'

100'

75'

15
'

100'

75
'

75
'

75
'

20'

20'

100'

20'

100'

15
'

20'

75
'

18
'

75
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

125'

26
'

26
'

125'

26
'

125'

125'

125'

24
4.3

6'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

12
1.4

6'

26
'

26
'

26
'

43.25'

26
'

20'

26
'

125'

125'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

125'

26
'

125'

26
'

26
'

125'

26
'

26
'

26
'

24.29'

26
'

125'

26
'

150.47'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

21
1.8

6'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

27
.18

'

26
'

26
'

26
'

125'

26
'

125'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

125'

26
'

26
'

150.2'

26
'

135.25'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

125'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'26
'

26
'

26
'

125'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

125'

R=85'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

125'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

125'

125'

120.07'

85.72'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

13
5'

125'

26
'

125'

125'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

26
'

125'

26
'

26
'

20'

125'

26
'

125'

26
'

28
2.6

3'

26
'

26
'

26
'

22
7.3

'

125'

26
'

26
'

26
'

125'

26
'

26
'

26
'

CAMERON

ORIGINAL TOWN

OF LUBBOCK

C & C

JOHNSON

SOUTH SIDE

MERRILL'S
SOUTH

SIDE

HARRIS UNDERWOOD

BOWLES

ORIGINAL TOWN

OF LUBBOCK

ELMS

MANSON

McKEE C & P

DEPOT

DISTRICTMRS
I A
BOYD

W C WOOD

WHEELOCK'S

SECOND

KEITH

GARLAND

DUPREE

HARRIS

UNDERWOOD

MERRILL'S

FAULKS

ORIGINAL TOWN

OF LUBBOCK

HIGH

IMPACT

W C WOOD

FIRE

STATION
#1 HART

A W
JACKSON

WILSON

ORIGINAL TOWN

OF LUBBOCK

LUBBOCK

GIN

ASH

CARPENTER

PAPER

WHEELOCK'S

SECOND

ROY

LUBBOCK

COTTON OIL

COMPANY

As required by SECTION 1. Chapter 2051, SUBCHAPTER D. GEOSPATIAL DATA PRODUCTS of the Government Code, the City of Lubbock hereby provides notice that the data
on this map was created by the City of Lubbock. Any data that appears to represent property boundaries is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be 
suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

19TH ST

³
Proposed Parking Lot Lease for Cast Iron Grill

Proposed Parking
Lot Lease

Cast Iron Grill
IH 

27

CR
IC

KE
TS 

AV
E

US
 87

19TH ST

IH 
27

US
 87

18 ST

CR
IC

KE
TS 

AV
E

AV
E F

0 100 200 300 400
Feet Digital Orthophotography - June 2016

17TH ST

23RD ST

AV
E K



 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 6. 
10/26/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Planning: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Dedicatory Deed,
associated Easements, and all related documents, in connection with property described as Tract A,
Milwaukee EST Addition, Lubbock County, Texas, located south of 104th Street and west of Milwaukee
Avenue.

Item Summary
The plat of Milwaukee EST Addition, Tract A, which is for an elevated water storage tank, was approved
by the Planning and Zoning Commission with conditions, on May 2, 2019. Hugo Reed and Associates,
Inc. submitted a revised plat on June 22, 2021, which satisfied the required conditions. The plat has been
reviewed and approved by City staff and is now ready for recording. The Dedicatory Deed is required for
the plat to be recorded with the County Clerk's Office. The Dedicatory Deed dedicates the streets, alleys,
easements and other public properties shown on the plat, to the public for public use.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Resolution 
Dedicatory Deed 
Plat 





THE STA TE OF TEXAS § 

DEDICATION DEED 

§ KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:
COUNTY OF LUBBOCK §

That CITY OF LUBBOCK is the Owner (hereinafter referred to as the "Owner") of the 
following described real property: 

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION of the plat limits of Tract "A", Milwaukee EST 
Addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, being further described as follows: 

BEGINNING at an "X" cut in concrete set in the South right-of-way line of 104th Street and the 
West right-of-way line of Milwaukee Avenue both being described in Volume 1237, Page 531 of 
the Deed Records of Lubbock County, Texas (DRLCT), for the Northeast corner of this tract 
which bears S. 01°50'43" W. a distance of 2142.93 feet and N. 88°08'50" W. a distance of 50.00 
teet from the Northeast corner of Section 22, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas; 

THENCE S. 01 °50'43" W., along the West right-of-way line of said Milwaukee Avenue, a 
distance of 200.66 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with cap (marked "Hugo Reed & Assoc.") set in the 
Northern boundary of a 0.8279 acre tract of land as described under County Clerk File Number 
(CCFN) 2008022864 of the Official Public Records of Lubbock County, Texas (OPRLCT), for 
the Southeast comer of this tract; 

THENCE N. 88°07'33" W., along the Northern boundary of said 0.8279 acre tract, a distance of 
269.98 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with cap (marked "Stevens 4439") found in the Eastern boundary 
of a 5.1788 acre tract of land as described under CCFN 2008022863, OPRLCT, at the Northwest 
corner of said 0.8279 acre tract and the Southwest corner of this tract; 

THENCE N. 01°49'42" E .. along the Eastern boundary of said 5.1788 acre tract, a distance of 
200.55 feet to a 1/2" iron rod with cap (marked "Hugo Reed & Assoc.") set in the South right-of
way line of said 104th Street for the Northwest comer of this tract; 

THENCE S. 88°08'50" E., along said South right-of-way line, a distance of 270.04 feet to the 
POINT OF BEGINNING (the "Property). 

That Owner does hereby plat and dedicate the Property into the lots. designating streets, 
alleys, easements and other public properties, as shown on and in accordance with the attached map 
prepared by Hugo Reed and Associates, a licensed surveyor for the State of Texas, on the 5th day of 
April, 2019 and approved by the City Planning Commission of the City of Lubbock, County of 
Lubbock, State of Texas, on the 2nd day of May, 2019;

That Owner desires to have the Property platted, dedicated and duly filed for record as 
required by law, all as shown on the attached map; and 

Dedication Deed 

Page I 

170156
Rectangle



That in consideration of the premises and special benefits to the remainder of the Property 
in the area, Owner does hereby DEDICATE all the streets, alleys, easements and other public 
properties (surface and/or underground) thereon shown and designated upon said map to the 
PUBLIC FOR PUBLIC USE FOREVER; and by these presents does impress the name of"TRACT 
"A" MILWAUKEE EST ADDITION an Addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, 
Texas" upon the Property for the correct reference and description thereof as indicated upon the 
attached map, and does hereby adopt the name hereinabove stated and impress the same upon the 
Property, incorporating said map as a part of this dedication. 

This instrument shall not be construed as an instrument of conveyance of any type, and the 
Owner shall continue to own, subsequent to the dedication and platting, the same interest in the 
same parcel as owned prior to this dedication and platting. 

EXECUTED as of this _____ day of _________ � 2021. 

THE STA TE OF TEXAS § 
§ 

COUNTY OF LUBBOCK § 

CITY OF LUBBOCK 

BY: 

TITLE: _____________ �--

Before me ____________________ on this day personally 
appeared __________________ , ____________ _ 
of CITY OF LUBBOCK, known to me OR proved to me on the oath of ________ _ 
OR through ___________ to be the person whose name is subscribed to the 
foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she executed the same on behalf of CITY OF 
LUBBOCK for the purposes and consideration therein expressed. 

Given under my hand and seal of office this ____ day of _________  
A.D., 2021.

Dedication Deed 

Page 2 

Notary Public, State of Texas 





 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 7. 
10/26/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution ratifying the actions of the Mayor, in executing Contract
16224, an agreement and related documents, with the Texas Water Development Board (TWBD), for a
grant utilizing TWBD Category 1 Flood Infrastructure Funds (FIF) associated with the project Flood
Protection Planning of Watersheds.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock proposes completion of flood protection planning activities for restoration of the
Canyon Lakes System on the City of Shallowater-Yellow House Draw HUC-10 (1205000113) and the
Buffalo Springs Lake-North Fork Double Mountain Fork Brazos River HUC-10 (1205000301).
 
The watershed study will include the development of comprehensive hydrologic and hydraulic models that
will serve as planning tools to define and map flood hazard risks within the designated areas. The models
will also provide a platform for developing and evaluating improvement alternatives. The updated models
will be compared to the existing Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) floodplain maps and
all differences will be noted. Coordination with FEMA will occur throughout the process so that the
submitted data complies with the latest FEMA requirements.
 
The proposed flood protection planning study will include the development of new hydrologic and
hydraulic models or update existing models for the study area. The models will utilize the latest estimates
of rainfall for the area (Atlas 14), which will develop inundation maps representing existing conditions for
the 2-yr, 5-yr, 10-yr, 25-yr, 50-yr, 100-yr, and 500-yr storm events. It will also identify areas at risk for
structural and major roadway flooding due to riverine conditions. This study will also assist with
community outreach and education of the public about study purpose, findings, and project
recommendations.
 
Following Council approval, staff will submit the executed resolution to the TWDB to complete the
application.

Fiscal Impact
The City of Lubbock will be responsible for contributing $187,500, which is 25% of the total project cost
of $750,000.  Approval of the grant application enables the City to benefit from TWDB Category 1 Flood
Infrastructure Funds (FIF) grant funding.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution (r) - TWDB Grant 



FIF- Grant -TWBD 







































































 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 8. 
10/26/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Construction Service
Contract 15944, with Garney Companies, Inc., for improvements at Pump Station No. 4, including pumps,
motors, and starters.

Item Summary
Pump Station No.4 is a critical part of the water supply system in Lubbock, and as demand for water
grows, the equipment at this station needs to be updated to provide reliable and efficient supply for the
years to come. Two of the four current pumps will be replaced with more efficient 15 million-gallon-per
day centrifugal units. The motor control center will also be replaced to ensure reliable and safe pump
startup and operation. Garney Companies, Inc. will install and set up the new pumps, motors, starters and
motor control centers.

In response to RFP 21-15944-TF, proposals were opened on September 8, 2021, and were as follows:
  

Contractor Amount
Garney Companies, Inc., North Kansas City, Missouri $1,504,000

Staff recommends the award of the contract to Garney Companies, Inc. Garney was the only bidder for this
project and the evaluation committee agreed that the price proposed was within the proposed budget for
this project, and the contractor has shown to be qualified to perform the work outlined in the plans and
technical specifications.
  
Time for substantial completion is 450 calendar days and final completion is 510 calendar days. Liquidated
damages are set to $1,000 per day and will increase to $2,000 per day after substantial completion.

Fiscal Impact
This contract in the amount of $1,504,000 is funded in Capital Improvements Project 92513, Pumping
System Improvements Phase II.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution 
Construction Contract 
Location Exhibit 
Budget Detail 



CIP Detail 
Project Summary Sheet 













As required by SECTION 1. Chapter 2051, SUBCHAPTER D.
GEOSPATIAL DATA PRODUCTS of the Government Code,
the City of Lubbock hereby provides notice that the data on
this map was created by the City of Lubbock. Any data that
appears to represent property boundaries is for informational
purposes and may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not
represent an on-the-ground survey and represents only the
approximate relative location of property boundaries.

IN
TERSTATE 27

MASSENGALE DR

MUNICIPAL DR

IN
TER

STATE 27 IN

IN
TE

R
ST

AT
E 

27
 O

F

IN
TERSTATE 27 O

N

Pump Station 4 ¯

0 100 200 300 400
Feet



Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended Budget

City of Lubbock Staff Time 3,773$                                 

Pump System Improvements - In House 120,627

Agenda Items, October 26, 2021

1,504,000

Encumbered/Expended To Date 1,628,400

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Pump Station Improvments 371,600

Remaining Appropriation 371,600

Total Appropriation 2,000,000$                             

Contract 15944 - Replacement Pumps, Motors, and Starters for Pump 

Station No. 4

Pump System Improvements Phase II  

City of Lubbock, TX

Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail

October 26, 2021

92513



97 FY 2021-22 Operating Budget and Capital Program



FY 2021-22 Operating Budget and Capital Program 98



 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

 

Project Summary 

 
RFP 21-15944-TF 

Replacement Pumps, Motors, and Starters for Pump Station No. 4 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on July 25 & August 1, 2021. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on BidSync.com and Bonfire.com from July 26 to September 8, 2021. 

13 individuals attended the pre-proposal meeting. 

122 vendors viewed using BidSync.com and Bonfire.com.  

77 vendors downloaded the documents. 

10 vendors were notified separately.  

1 vendor submitted a proposal. 

 



 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 9. 
10/26/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Works: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Change Order No. 1
to Contract 15875, with MH Civil Constructors, Inc., for the construction of the brick paving project at the
intersection of 13th Street and Texas Avenue.

Item Summary
Contract No. 15875 was awarded to MH Civil Constructors, Inc. on June 8, 2021, in response to RFP
21-15875-TF, for the reconstruction of the13th Street and Texas Avenue intersection, to smooth out the
ride of the roadway, address drainage, and rebuild aging infrastructure.

This change order will fully reconcile all quantities for final payout of the project, and balance project over
and under run quantities.  The change order amount is for an additional $68,813 and is 9.53% of the
original contract amount of $722,000.  Final completion of the project was accomplished on October 8,
2021.

Fiscal Impact
The cost of Change Order No. 1 is $68,813 and is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92697, Street
Maintenance 2021.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Division Director of Public Works

Attachments
Resolution 
Change Order 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 









Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended Budget

Contract 15647 2021 Asphalt Repair 1,543,596$                    

Contract 15648 2021 Concrete Repair 1,445,700                      

Contract 14517, Amendment Rejuvinator 2021 994,800                         

Contract 15772, 2021 MicroSurfacing 3,538,696                      

Contract  15778, Wausau Avenue (S. of 82nd St) Rebuild 337,471                         

Contract 15796, Nuisance Branches and Trees Service 

Contract- Asplundh Tree Expert LLC 29,962                            

Contract 15875, Brick Paving Project 13th and Texas-MH 

Civil Constructors Inc. 722,000                         

Contract 15964, MLK Ave. Rebuild 709,950                         

Contract 16027 Rebuild Frankford & Alcove Avenues 1,224,680                      

In-house Mill and Re-lay 500,000                         

Plotter 5,843                              

Bid Cost 933                                 

City of Lubbock Staff Time 3,137                              

Agenda Items, October 26, 2021

Contract 15875 Change Order 1 - 13th & Texas 68,813                            

Encumbered/Expended To Date 11,125,581                    

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Street Maintenance 10,729,434                    

Remaining Appropriation 10,729,434                    

Total Appropriation 21,855,015$                  

Street Maintenance 2021

City of Lubbock, TX

Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail

October 26, 2021

92697



Project Name Street Maintenance 2021 Project Number 92697

Managing Department

Project Manager

Project Classification

Project Status

Project Scope

Streets

Mike Gilliland

Upgrade/Major Maintenance

Approved

Micro-surfacing, asphalt rejuvenation, asphalt milling, asphalt milling and overlay, full or partial depth pavement repair, total 

reconstruction, patching, crack sealing, concrete joint sealing, and brick street repair.

Project Justification

The project is a preventive maintenance program to help preserve and maintain our street infrastructure.  The maintenance program is 

an essential tool to help extend the useful life of the pavement.  Used early in a pavement's life, preventative maintenance corrects 

small problems before they become big problems, saves money, and improves safety and rideability.  At some point, all roads require 

total rehabilitation as they near the end of their useful life.  Total rehabilitation is completed when funding is available.

Project History

$10,000,000 was appropriated in the FY 2020-21 Budget, Ord. No. 2020-O0123, October 1, 2020.

$1,155,015 was appropriated in FY 2020-21, BCR# 2021-9, April 23, 2021.

Reduced appropriation by $300,000 in FY 2020-21, BCR# 2021-13,  May 17, 2021.

Unappropriated Planning Years

Appropriation Detail

Appropriation to

Date

Total Project 

Amount
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

Construction  10,855,015  11,000,000  12,000,000  13,000,000  14,000,000  15,000,000  0  75,855,015 

Total Project Appropriation  10,855,015  11,000,000  12,000,000  13,000,000  14,000,000  15,000,000  0  75,855,015 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Funding to

Date

Total

FundingFunding Detail
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

FY 2020 General Fund Cash  855,015  0  0  0  0  0  0  855,015 

FY 2021 General Fund Cash  10,000,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  10,000,000 

FY 2022 General Fund Cash  0  11,000,000  0  0  0  0  0  11,000,000 

FY 2023 General Fund Cash  0  0  12,000,000  0  0  0  0  12,000,000 

FY 2024 General Fund Cash  0  0  0  13,000,000  0  0  0  13,000,000 

FY 2025 General Fund Cash  0  0  0  0  14,000,000  0  0  14,000,000 

FY 2026 General Fund Cash  0  0  0  0  0  15,000,000  0  15,000,000 

Total Funding Sources  10,855,015  11,000,000  12,000,000  13,000,000  14,000,000  15,000,000  0  75,855,015 



 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 10. 
10/26/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Works: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an Advanced
Funding Agreement, Contract 16170, between the City of Lubbock and the State of Texas, acting through
the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT), for the Pedestrian and Bicyclist Connectivity Project
inside Loop 289, at various locations.

Item Summary
The Lubbock Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) approved the use of Category 9 "Transportation
Alternatives" Program (TAP) funding, for the construction of the City of Lubbock Pedestrian and Bicyclist
connectivity project within Loop 289. This is an Advanced Funding Agreement (AFA) between the City of
Lubbock and the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT), which will allocate federal funds for this
purpose. The costs will be allocated based on 80% federal funding with the remaining 20% funded by the
City of Lubbock. The total cost of the project is estimated at $1,000,962, and the City's 20% portion of the
project is $222,369.

Fiscal Impact
The AFA allows for the use of MPO funding on this project through the City Capital Improvement
Program. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Division Director of Public Works

Attachments
Resolution 
AFA Contract 



RESOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK:

THAT the Mayor of the City of Lubbock is hereby authorized and directed to execute fo
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, an Advanced Funding Agreement Contract No. 1 61 70 fo
the City of Lubbock Ped/Bike Connectivity Project, by and between the City of Lubbock and th
Texas Department of Transportation, and related documents. Said Agreement is attached heretc
and incorporated in this resolution as if fully set forth herein and shall be included in the minutes
of the City Council.

Passed by the City Council on

___________________________

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

ErQ’L./)
Jesica cEachern, Assistant City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Yi%ait1
I4elli Leisure, Assistant City Attorney

ccdocs/RES.AFA Agrmt -- COL Ped/Bike
10.0 1.2



TxDOT: Federal Highway Administration:

CSJ # 0905-06-1 20 CFDA No. 20.205

District # LBB- 05 CFDA Title Highway Planning and Construction

Code Chart 64 # 25650

Project Name COL PedlBike Connectivity AFA Not Used For Research & Development

STATEOFTEXAS §

COUNTYOFTRAVIS §

ADVANCE FUNDING AGREEMENT
FOR A TRANSPORTATION ALTERNATIVES

S ET-ASI DE (TASA) PROG RAM P ROJ ECT
MPO-Selected Off-System

This Advance Funding Agreement for a Transportation Alternatives Set-Aside (TASA) Program Project
(“Agreement”) is made between the State of Texas (State), acting through the Texas Department of
Transportation, and the City of Lubbock (Local Government), acting through its duly authorized officials.

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, federal law establishes federally funded programs for transportation improvements to implement
its public purposes, and

WHEREAS, the Texas Transportation Code, Section 201 . I 03 establishes that the State shall design, construct
and operate a system of highways in cooperation with local governments, and Section 222.052 authorizes the
Texas Transportation Commission to accept contributions from political subdivisions for development and
construction of public roads and the state highway system within the political subdivision, and

WHEREAS, Federal law, 23 USC §134 and 49 USC §5303, requires that State and Metropolitan Planning
Organizations (MPOs) develop transportation plans and programs for urbanized areas of Texas, and

WHEREAS, Federal and state laws require local governments to meet certain contract standards relating to
the management and administration of State and federal funds, and

WHEREAS, the Texas Transportation Commission has codified 43 TAC, Rules 15.50-15.56 that describe
federal, state, and local responsibilities for cost participation in highway improvement and other transportation
projects, and

WHEREAS, the rules and procedures for the Transportation Alternatives Set-Aside Program (TASA) are
established in 23 USC §1 33(h), and 43 Texas Administrative Code, Part I , Chapter 1 1 , Subchapter G,
§11.4OO— 11.418, and

WHEREAS, the Local Government prepared and submitted to the State or Metropolitan Planning Organization
(MPO) a project nomination package for TASA funding consideration, which is briefly described as COL
Ped/Bike Connectivity (Project), and

WHEREAS, the Texas Transportation Commission (Commission) passed Minute Order Number 115814 (MO)
dated August 27, 2020 awarding funding for TASA projects in the TASA Program Call of the Lubbock MPO,
including Project, and

WHEREAS, the governing body of the Local Government has approved entering into this Agreement by
resolution or ordinance dated October 26th 2021, which is attached to and made a part of this Agreement as
AFA TASA (2020) Page 1 of 16 Rev. 04/22/2021



TxDOT: Federal Highway Administration:

CSJ # 0905-06-1 20 CFDA No. 20=205

District # LBB- 05 CFDA Title Highway Planning and Construction

Code Chart 64 # 25650

Project Name COL PedlBike Connectivity AFA Not Used For Research & Development

Agreement as Attachment A, Resolution or Ordinance. A map showing the Project location appears in
Attachment B, Project Location Map, which is attached to and made a part of this Agreement, and

NOW, THEREFORE, the State and the Local Government agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

I . Period of Agreement and Performance
A. Period of Agreement. This Agreement becomes effective when signed by the last party whose

signing makes the Agreement fully executed. This Agreement shall remain in effect until
terminated as provided below.

B. Period of Performance.
I . The Performance Period for each phase of work begins on the date specified in the

Federal Project Authorization and Agreement (FPAA) for that phase of work. Local
Government may not begin work until issued the State Letter of Authority (SLOA) for that
phase of work.

2. The Performance Period for each phase of work ends on the date specified in the FPAA
for that phase of work.

2. Scope of Work and Use of Project
A. The scope of work for Project consists of the installation of Pedestrian Hybrid Beacons,

pavement markings, signs, curb ramps, and sidewalk tie-ins to make safer and more
accessible multi-modal connections along the established pedestrian and bicycle routes
along Canyon Lakes, Avenue U, 13th Street, and 26th Street..

B. Any project changes proposed must be submitted in writing by Local Government to State.
Substantive changes may also require an amendment to this Agreement and the approval of the
FHWA, State, MPO, or the Commission. Any changes undertaken without written approval and
amendment of this Agreement may jeopardize not only the federal funding for the changes, but
the federal funding of the entire Project.

3. Project Sources and Uses of Funds
The total estimated development cost of the Project is shown in Attachment C, Project Budget Estimate
and Source of Funds (Attachment C).
A. If Local Government will perform any work under this Agreement for which reimbursement will

be provided by or through the State, the Local Government must complete training. If federal
funds are being used, the training must be completed before federal spending authority is
obligated. Training is complete when at least one individual who is working actively and directly
on the Project successfully completes and receives a certificate for the course entitled “Local
Government Project Procedures and Qualification for the Texas Department of Transportation”
and retains qualification in accordance with applicable TxDOT procedures. Upon request, Local
Government shall provide the certificate of qualification to State. The individual who receives
the training certificate may be an employee of Local Government or an employee of a firm that
has been contracted by Local Government to perform oversight of the Project. State in its
discretion may deny reimbursement if Local Government has not continuously designated in
writing a qualified individual to work actively on or to directly oversee the Project.

AFA TASA (2020) Page 2 of 16 Rev. 04/22/2021



TxDOT: Federal Highway Administration:

CSJ # 0905-06-1 20 CFDA No. 20.205

District # LBB- 05 CFDA Title Highway Planning and Construction

Code Chart 64 # 25650

Project Name COL PedlBike Connectivity AFA Not Used For Research & Development

B. The total estimated project cost as shown in Attachment C incudes the Local Government’s
estimated itemized cost of real property, utilities, environmental assessments, construction, and
other construction related costs. To be eligible for reimbursement or as in-kind contribution,
costs must have been included in the nomination form approved by the Texas Transportation
Commission or MPO in consultation with State. Local Government must submit to State
evidence of payment for eligible in-kind costs at least once per calendar quarter using the
State’s In-Kind Match Reporting form.

C. State and the Federal Government will not reimburse Local Government for any work performed
outside the Performance Period. After federal funds have been obligated, State will send to
Local Government a copy of the formal documentation showing the obligation of funds including
federal award information. Local Government is responsible for I 00 percent of the cost of any
work performed under its direction or control before the federal spending authority is formally
obligated.

D. The Project budget and source of funds estimate based on the budget provided in the
application is included in Attachment C. Attachment C shows the percentage and estimated
dollar amounts to be contributed to Project by state and local sources, as well as the maximum
amount in federal TASA funds assigned by the Commission or MPO in consultation with State.
This Agreement may be amended from time to time as required to meet the funding
commitments based on revisions to the TASA, FPAA, or other federal documents.

E. State will be responsible for securing the federal share of funding required for the development
and construction of Project, in an amount not to exceed 80 percent of the actual cost of the work
up to the amount of funds approved for Project by the Texas Transportation Commission or
MPO in consultation with State. Federal funds will be reimbursed on a cost basis. Project costs
incurred prior to issuance of the SLOA are not eligible for reimbursement.

F. The Local Government will be responsible for all non-federal or non-State participation costs
associated with the Project, unless otherwise provided for in this Agreement or approved
otherwise in an amendment to this Agreement. For items of work subject to specified
percentage funding, the Local Government shall only in those instances be responsible for all
Project costs that are greater than the maximum State and federal participation specified in
Attachment C and for overruns in excess of the amount specified in Attachment C to be paid by
the Local Government.

G. The budget in Attachment C will clearly state all items subject to fixed price funding, specified
percentage funding, and the periodic payment schedule, when periodic payments have been
approved by the State.

H. When fixed price funding is used, the Local Government is responsible for the fixed price
amount specified in Attachment C. Fixed prices are not subject to adjustment unless (1)
differing site conditions are encountered; (2) further definition of the Local Government’s
requested scope of work identifies greatly differing costs from those estimated; (3) work
requested by the Local Government is determined to be ineligible for federal participation; or (4)
the adjustment is mutually agreed to by the State and the Local Government.
Following execution of this Agreement, but prior to the performance of any plan review work by
State, Local Government will pay to State the amount specified in Attachment C for plan review.
At least 60 days prior to the date set for receipt of the construction bids, Local Government shall
remit its remaining local match as specified in Attachment C for State’s estimated construction
oversight and construction cost.

J. In the event State determines that additional funding is required by Local Government at any
time during Project, State will notify Local Government in writing. Local Government is
responsible for the percentage of the authorized Project cost shown in Attachment C and 100

AFA TASA (2020) Page 3 of 16 Rev. 04/22/2021



TxDOT:
— Federal Highway Administration:

CSJ # 0905-06-1 20 CFDA No. 20.205

District # LBB- 05 CFDA Title Highway Planning and Construction

Code Chart 64# 25650

Project Name COL PedlBike Connectivity AFA Not Used For Research & Development

percent of any overruns above the federally authorized amount. Local Government will make
payment to State within 30 days from receipt of State’s written notification.

K. Whenever funds are paid by Local Government to State under this Agreement, Local
Government will remit a warrant made payable to the “Texas Department of Transportation”.
The warrant will be deposited by State and managed by State. Funds may only be applied by
State to Project.

L. Upon completion of Project, State will perform a final accounting of Project costs. Any funds due
to Local Government, State, or the Federal Government will be promptly paid by the owing
party.

M. In the event Project is not completed, State may seek reimbursement from Local Government of
the expended federal funds. Local Government will remit the required funds to State within 60
days from receipt of State’s notification.

N. If any existing or future local ordinances, commissioners court orders, rules, policies, or other
directives, including but not limited to outdoor advertising billboards and storm water drainage
facility requirements, are more restrictive than state or federal regulations, or if any other locally
proposed changes, including but not limited to plats or re-plats, result in increased costs, then
any increased costs associated with the ordinances or changes will be paid by Local
Government. The cost of providing right of way acquired by State shall mean the total expenses
in acquiring the property interests through negotiations, including, but not limited to, expenses
related to relocation, removal, and adjustment of eligible utilities.

0. The state auditor may conduct an audit or investigation of any entity receiving funds from the
State directly under the Agreement or indirectly through a contract or subcontract under the
Agreement. Acceptance of funds directly under the Agreement or indirectly through a contract or
subcontract under this Agreement acts as acceptance of the authority of the state auditor, under
the direction of the legislative audit committee, to conduct an audit or investigation in connection
with those funds. An entity that is the subject of an audit or investigation must provide the state
auditor with access to any information the state auditor considers relevant to the investigation or
audit.

P. State will not pay interest on any funds provided by Local Government.
Q. State will not execute the contract for the construction of Project until the required funding has

been made available by Local Government in accordance with this Agreement.
R. Local Government is authorized to submit requests for reimbursement by submitting the original

of an itemized invoice in a form and containing all items required by State no more frequently
than monthly, and no later than 90 days after costs are incurred. If Local Government submits
invoices more than 90 days after the costs are incurred, and if federal funding is reduced as a
result, State shall have no responsibility to reimburse Local Government for those costs.

S. If Local government is an Economically Disadvantaged County (EDC) and if State has approved
adjustments to the standard financing arrangement, this agreement reflects those adjustments.

4. Termination of the Agreement
A. This Agreement may be terminated by any of the following conditions:

I . By mutual written consent and agreement of all parties;
2. By any party with 90 days written notice; or
3. By either party, upon the failure of the other party to fulfill the obligations as set forth in

this Agreement. Any cost incurred due to such breach of contract shall be paid by the
breaching party.

B. If the potential termination of this Agreement is due to the failure of Local Government to fulfill
its contractual obligations, State will notify Local Government that possible breach of contract

AFA TASA (2020) Page 4 of 16 Rev. 04/22/202 1



TxDOT:
— Federal Highway Administration:

CSJ # 0905-06-1 20 CFDA No. 20.205

District # LBB- 05 CFDA Title Highway Planning and Construction

Code Chart 64 # 25650

Project Name COL PedlBike Connectivity AFA Not Used For Research & Development

has occurred. Local Government should make every effort to remedy the breach within a period
mutually agreed upon by both parties.

C. The Agreement may be terminated by the State because the parties are not able to execute a
mutually agreeable amendment when the costs for Local Government requested items increase
significantly due to differing site conditions, determination that Local government requested
work is ineligible for federal or state cost participation, or a more thorough definition of the Local
Government’s proposed work scope identifies greatly differing costs from those estimated. The
State will reimburse Local Government remaining funds to the Local Government within ninety
(90) days of termination;

D. If Local Government withdraws from Project after this Agreement is executed, Local
Government shall be responsible for all direct and indirect Project costs as identified by the
State’s cost accounting system and with 2 CFR Part 200 recapture requirements.

E. A project may be eliminated from the program as outlined below. If Project is eliminated for any
of these reasons, this Agreement will be appropriately terminated. A project may be eliminated
from the program, and this Agreement terminated, if:
I . Local Government fails to satisfy any requirements of the program rules cited in 43

Texas Administrative Code, Part I , Chapter 1 1 , Subchapter G, §1 I .400 — I I .418.
2. The implementation of Project would involve significant deviation from the activities

proposed in the nomination form and approved by the Texas Transportation Commission
or MPO in consultation with State.

3. Local Government withdraws from participation in Project.
4. State determines that federal funding may be lost due to Project not being implemented

and completed.
5. Funds are not appropriated, in which case this Agreement shall be terminated

immediately with no liability to either party. Payment under this Agreement beyond the
current fiscal biennium is subject to availability of appropriated funds.

6. A construction contract has not been awarded or construction has not been initiated
within three years after the date that the Commission or MPO selected the project or by
a letting date determined by the state and agreed to by the Local Government.

7. Local Government fails to attend progress meetings at least twice yearly, as scheduled
by State.

F. State, at its sole discretion, may terminate this Agreement if State does not receive project
invoice from Local Government within 270 days of FPAA.

5. Amendments
This Agreement may be amended due to changes in the work, the amount of funding required to
complete Project, or the responsibilities of the parties. Such amendment must be made through a
mutually agreed upon, written amendment that is executed by the parties.

6. Remedies
This Agreement shall not be considered as specifying the exclusive remedy for any agreement default,
but all remedies existing at law and in equity may be availed of by either party to this Agreement and
shall be cumulative.

7. Utilities
Local Government shall be responsible for the adjustment, removal, or relocation of utilities or utility
facilities in accordance with applicable State laws, regulations, rules, policies, and procedures,
including any cost to State of a delay resulting from Local Government’s failure to ensure that utilities or

AFA TASA (2020) Page 5 of 16 Rev. 04/22/202 1



TxDOT: — Federal Highway Administration:

CSJ # 0905-06-1 20 CFDA No. 20.205

District # LBB- 05 CFDA Title Highway Planning and Construction

Code Chart64# 25650

Project Name COL PedlBike Connectivity AFA Not Used For Research & Development

utihty facilities are adjusted, removed, or relocated before the scheduled beginning of construction. At
the State’s discretion, State may reimburse Local Government for minor, incidental utility adjustments
that are identified during the preliminary engineering phase if they are eligible for federal
reimbursement. Local Government must obtain advance approval for any variance from established
procedures. Before a construction contract is let, Local Government shall provide, at State’s request, a
certification stating that Local Government has completed the adjustment of all utilities that must be
adjusted before construction begins. Additional utility work may be required due to unknown conditions
discovered during construction. These costs may be eligible for TASA participation if the following
conditions are met: (1) the activity is required to complete Project; (2) the cost is incidental to Project;
and (3) TASA funding is available. Any change orders must be approved by State prior to incurring any
cost for which reimbursement is sought.

8. Environmental Assessment and Mitigation
Development of Project must comply with the National Environmental Policy Act and the National
Historic Preservation Act of I 966, which require environmental clearance of federal-aid projects.
A. The Local Government is responsible for the identification and assessment of any

environmental problems associated with the development of Project.
B. Local Government is responsible for the cost of any environmental problem’s mitigation and

remediation. These costs will not be reimbursed or credited towards Local Government’s
financial share of Project unless specified in the nomination form and approved by State or
MPO in consultation with State.

C. Local Government is responsible for providing any public meetings or public hearings required
for development of the environmental assessment, including any public hearing requirements
that may be necessary when adding a bike lane.

D. Before the advertisement for bids, Local Government shall provide to State written
documentation from the appropriate regulatory agency or agencies that all environmental
clearances have been obtained.

9. Compliance with Accessibility Standards
All parties to this Agreement shall ensure that the plans for and the construction of all projects subject
to this Agreement are in compliance with standards issued or approved by the Texas Department of
Licensing and Regulation (TDLR) as meeting or consistent with minimum accessibility requirements of
the Americans with Disabilities Act (P.L. 101-336) (ADA).

10. Architectural and Engineering Services
A. Architectural and engineering services for preliminary engineering will be provided by the Local

Government. In procuring professional services, the parties to this Agreement must comply
with federal requirements cited in 23 CFR Part 172 if Project is federally funded and Local
Government will be seeking reimbursement for these services or if these services will be used
as in-kind contributions; and with Texas Government Code Subchapter 2254.A., in all cases.
Professional services contracts for federally funded projects must conform to federal
requirements. For State-selected projects, architectural and engineering services are not eligible
for TASA reimbursement.

B. The architectural contract documents shall be developed in accordance with the standards of
the American Institute of Architects, the U.S. Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Historic
Preservation Projects, Standards and Guidelines for Archeology and Historic Preservation, the
National Register Bulletin Number 36: Guidelines for Evaluating and Registering Historical
Archeological Sites and in consultation with the State Historic Preservation Officer, as

AFA TASA (2020) Page 6 of 16 Rev. 04/22/202 1



TxDOT: Federal Highway Administration:

CSJ # 0905-06-1 20 CFDA No. 20.205

District # LBB- 05 CFDA Title Highway Planning and Construction

Code Chart 64 # 25650

Project Name COL PedlBike Connectivity AFA Not Used For Research & Development

applicable. The engineering plans shall be developed in accordance with State’s applicable
Standard Specifications for Construction and Maintenance of Highways, Streets and Bridges
and the two American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials’ (“AASHTO”)
publications, “A Policy on Geometric Design of Highways and Streets” and “Guide for the
Development of Bicycle Facilities,” as applicable. All design criteria for bicycle and pedestrian
bridges must comply with TxDOT’s Bridge Design Manual and AASHTO’s Load and Resistance
Factor Design (LRFD) Guide Specifications for the Design of Pedestrian Bridges (latest edition)
as applicable. All contract procurement procedures and documents must adhere to the
applicable requirements established in the Standard Specifications for Construction and
Maintenance of Highways, Streets and Bridges. The use of other systems of specifications shall
be approved by State in writing in advance.

C. When architectural and engineering services are provided by or through Local Government,
Local Government shall submit any plans it has completed to State for review and approval on
an agreed upon schedule. Local Government may also submit the plans to State for review any
time prior to completion. Local Government shall make the necessary revisions determined by
State. Local Government will not let the construction contract until all required plans have
received State approval.

D. When architectural and engineering services are provided by or through State, then the
State is responsible for the delivery and performance of any required architectural or preliminary
engineering work. Local Government may review and comment on the work, including any
proposed changes to the scope of work, as required to accomplish Project purposes. State will
cooperate with Local Government in accomplishing these Project purposes to the degree
permitted by state and federal law.

11. Construction Responsibilities
A. The State shall advertise for construction bids, issue bid proposals, receive and tabulate the

bids, and award and administer the contract for construction of Project. Administration of the
contract includes the responsibility for construction engineering and for issuance of any change
orders, supplemental agreements, amendments, or additional work orders that may become
necessary subsequent to the award of the construction contract. To ensure federal funding
eligibility, projects must be authorized by State prior to advertising for construction.

B. All contract letting and award procedures must be approved by State prior to letting and award
of the construction contract, whether the construction contract is awarded by State or by Local
Government.

C. All contract change order review and approval procedures must be approved by State prior to
start of construction.

D. If the Local Government is the responsible party, the State must review and approve change
orders.

E. Upon completion of Project, the party constructing Project will issue and sign a “Notification of
Com pletion” acknowledging Project’s construction completion.

F. For federally funded contracts, the parties to this Agreement will comply with federal
construction requirements provided in 23 CFR Parts 633 and 635, and shall include the latest
version of Form “FHWA-1 273” in the contract bidding documents. If force account work will be
performed, a finding of cost effectiveness shall be made in compliance with 23 CFR Subpart
635.B.

G. Any field changes, supplemental agreements, or revisions to the design plans that may occur
after the construction contract is awarded will be mutually agreed to by State and Local
Government prior to authorizing the contractor to perform the work. Prior to completion of

AFA TASA (2020) Page 7 of 16 Rev. 04/22/202 1



TxDOT: Federal Highway Administration:

CSJ # 0905-06-1 20 CFDA No. 20.205

District # LBB- 05 CFDA Title Highway Planning and Construction

Code Chart64# 25650

Project Name COL PedlBike Connectivity AFA Not Used For Research & Development

Project, the party responsible for construction will notify the other party to this Agreement of the
anticipated completion date. All parties will be afforded the opportunity to assist in the final
review of the construction services performed by the contractor.

12. Project Maintenance
A. Upon completion of Project, Local Government will be responsible for maintaining the

completed facility for public use. The property shall be maintained and operated for the purpose
for which it was approved and funded for a period commensurate with the federal investment or
State rules, whichever is greater. Should Local Government at any time after Project completion
decide it can no longer maintain and operate Project for its intended purpose, Local
Government shall consult with State and the FHWA as to the disposal or alternate uses,
consistent with Project’s original intent. State may require Local Government to return the
federal funds in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200 federal recapture requirements. Should Local
Government consider conveying the property, State and FHWA must be notified prior to the
sale, transfer, or disposal of any property that received federal funds. Written concurrence of
approval for the transaction, detailing any required recapture, must be obtained from FHWA
prior to the transaction. Advance notice from Local Government of their intended action must be
submitted to State for an FHWA review a minimum of 90 days prior to any action being taken by
Local Government. Local Government shall be held responsible for reimbursement of all federal
funds used or a portion of those funds based on a pro-rata amount, considering the original
percentage of federal funds provided and the time elapsed from Project completion date. This
same percentage of reimbursement also applies to any amount of profit that may be derived
from the conveyance of the property, as applicable.

B. Any manufacturer warranties extended to Local Government as a result of Project shall remain
in the name of Local Government. State shall not be responsible for honoring any warranties
under this Agreement.

C. Should Local Government derive any income from the development and operation of Project, a
portion of the proceeds sufficient for the maintenance and upkeep of the property shall be set
aside for future maintenance. A project income report shall be submitted to State on a quarterly
basis. Monies set aside according to this provision shall be expended using accounting
procedures and with the property management standards established in 2 CFR Part 200.

D. Should any historic properties be included in or affected by this federally funded Project, the
historic integrity of the property and any contributing features must continue to be preserved
regardless of any approved changes that may occur throughout the life of Project.

13. Right ofWay and Real Property Acquisition
A. Right of way and real property acquisition shall be the responsibility of Local Government. Title

to right of way and other related real property must be acceptable to State before funds may be
expended for the improvement of the right of way or real property.

B. If Local Government is the owner of any part of Project site under this Agreement, Local
Government shall permit State or its authorized representative access to occupy the site to
perform all activities required to execute the work.

C. Local Government will comply with and assume the costs for compliance with all the
requirements of Title II and Title Ill of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property
Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, 42 USC §4601 et seq., including those provisions relating to
incidental expenses incurred by the property owners in conveying the real property to Local
Government, and benefits applicable to the relocation of any displaced person as defined in 49

AFA TASA (2020) Page 8 of 16 Rev. 04/22/2021



TxDOT: Federal Highway Administration:

CSJ # 0905-06-1 20 CFDA No. 20.205

District # LBB- 05 CFDA Title Highway Planning and Construction

Code Chart64# 25650

Project Name COL PedlBike Connectivity AFA Not Used For Research & Development

CFR §24.2(g). Documentation to support such compliance must be maintained and made
available to State and its representatives for review and inspection.

D. Local Government shall assume all costs and perform all work necessary to obtain needed
evidence of title or right of use to the real property required for development of Project.
Evidence oftitle or right of use shall be acquired in the name of (1) State, ifthe real property is
to be made part of the State Highway System, or (2) Local Government, if the real property is
not to be made part of the State Highway System. The evidence of title or rights shall be
acceptable to State, and be free and clear of all encroachments. Local Government shall secure
and provide easements and any needed rights of entry over any other land needed to develop
Project according to the approved Project plans. Local Government shall be responsible for
securing any additional real property required for completion of Project.

E. Local Government shall prepare real property maps, property descriptions, and other data as
needed to properly describe the real property and submit them to State for approval prior to
Local Government acquiring the real property. Tracings of the maps shall be retained by Local
Government for a permanent record.

F. Local Government shall determine property values for each real property parcel to be
purchased with federal funds using methods acceptable to State and shall submit to State a
tabulation of the values so determined, signed by the appropriate Local Government
representative. The tabulations must list the parcel numbers, ownership, acreage, and
recommended compensation. The tabulation must be accompanied by an explanation to
support the estimated values, together with a copy of the documentation and reports used in
calculating each parcel’s value. Expenses incurred by Local Government in performing this work
may be eligible for reimbursement after Local Government has received written authorization by
State to proceed with determination of real property values. State will review the data submitted
and will base its reimbursement for parcel acquisitions on these in determining the fair market
values. Local Government will not be reimbursed for right-of-way costs on state-selected
projects.

G. For State-selected TASA projects, Local Government shall not use eminent domain or
condemnation to acquire real property for this TASA Project.

H. Reimbursement for real property costs will be made to Local Government for real property
purchased in an amount not to exceed 80 percent of the cost of the real property purchased in
accordance with the terms and provisions of this Agreement. Reimbursement will be in an
amount not to exceed 80 percent of State’s predetermined fair market value of each parcel, or
the net cost thereof, whichever is less. In addition, reimbursement will be made to Local
Government for necessary payments to appraisers for expenses incurred in order to assure
good title. Local Government will not be reimbursed for right-of-way costs on state-selected
projects.
Local Government and current property owner are responsible for any costs associated with the
relocation of displaced persons and personal property as well as incidental expenses incurred in
acquiring property to implement Project. State will not pay any of these costs.

J. If Project requires the use of real property to which Local Government will not hold title, a
separate agreement between the owners of the real property and Local Government must be
executed prior to execution of this Agreement. The separate agreement between Local
Government and the current property owner must establish that Project will be dedicated for
public use for a period of time not less than ten years after project completion and
commensurate with the federal investment. For State-selected projects, this is outlined in 43
Tex. Admin. Code §11.417. The separate agreement must define the responsibilities of the
parties as to the use of the real property and operation and maintenance of Project after

AFA TASA (2020) Page 9 of 16 Rev. 04/22/202 1



TxDOT: — Federal Highway Administration:

CSJ # 0905-06-1 20 CFDA No. 20.205

District # LBB- 05 CFDA Title Highway Planning and Construction

Code Chart 64 # 25650

Project Name COL PedlBike Connectivity AFA Not Used For Research & Development

completion. The separate agreement must be approved by State prior to its execution and a
copy of the executed separate agreement shall be provided to State.

K. Local Government shall execute individually or produce a legal document as necessary to
provide for Project’s continued use from the date of completion, and agrees to cause the same
to be recorded in the land records of the appropriate jurisdiction.

L. Local governments receiving federal funds must comply with 23 CFR Part 710 and 49 CFR Part
24, and with the procedures provided in Chapter 6 of the State’s Local Government Project
Policy Manual. Local Government agrees to monitor Project to ensure: (1) continued use of the
property for approved activities, and (2) the repayment of the Federal funds, as appropriate.
Local Government agrees to the review of their Project accounts and site visits by State during
the development of Project at any time. Upon Project completion, State will continue to perform
periodic visits to confirm Project’s continued use and upkeep.

M. Before the advertisement for bids, Local Government shall provide a certification to State that all
real property has been acquired.

14. Insurance
A. Should this Agreement authorize Local Government or its contractor to perform any work on

State right of way, before beginning work, the entity performing the work shall provide State with
a fully executed copy of State’s Form I 560 Certificate of Insurance verifying the existence of
coverage in the amounts and types specified on the Certificate of Insurance for all persons and
entities working on State right of way. This coverage shall be maintained until all work on State
right of way is complete. If coverage is not maintained, all work on State right of way shall cease
immediately, and State may recover damages and all costs of completing the work.

B. For projects including buildings, Local Government agrees to insure the building according to
Department specifications and further agrees to name the Federal Government as a “Loss
Payee” should the building be destroyed.

15. Notices, Invoices, Payments, and Project Inquiries
All notices to either party shall be delivered personally or sent by certified or U.S. mail, postage prepaid,
addressed to that party at the following address:

Local Government: State:

City of Lubbock Texas Department of Transportation
ATTN: Division Director of Public Works ATTN: Director of Contract Services
P.O. Box 2000 125 E. 1 1th Street
Lubbock, TX 79457 Austin, TX 78701

All notices shall be deemed given on the date delivered in person or deposited in the mail, unless
otherwise provided by this agreement. Either party may change the above address by sending written
notice of the change to the other party. Either party may request in writing that notices shall be
delivered personally or by certified U.S. mail, and that request shall be carried out by the other party.

Invoicing, payment, and project inquiries must be sent to the following address, which the State may
change by sending written notice of the change to the Local Government:

Texas Department of Transportation
ATTN: Director of TP&D

AFA TASA (2020) Page 10 of 16 Rev. 04/22/2021



TxDOT: — Federal Highway Administration:

CSJ # 0905-06-1 20 CFDA No. 20.205

District # LBB- 05 CFDA Title Highway Planning and Construction

Code Chart 64 # 25650

Project Name COL Ped/Bike Connectivity AFA Not Used For Research & Development

135 Slaton Road
Lubbock, TX 79404

All invoicing, payment, and project inquiries must include the following information:

County: Lubbock
Local Government: City of Lubbock
CSJ No.: 0905-06-1 20
Project Name: COL Ped/Bike Connectivity
Highway or Roadway: Various

16. Legal Construction
In case one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall for any reason be held invalid,
illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any
other provisions and this Agreement shall be construed as if it did not contain the invalid, illegal, or
unenforceable provision.

I 7. Responsibilities of the Parties
Neither party is an agent, servant, or employee of the other party and each party is responsible for its
individual acts and deeds as well as the acts and deeds of its contractors, employees, representatives,
and agents.

18. Ownership of Documents
Upon completion or termination of this Agreement, all documents prepared by State shall remain the
property of State. All data prepared under this Agreement shall be made available to State without
restriction or limitation on their further use. All documents produced or approved or otherwise created
by Local Government shall be transmitted to State in the form of photocopy reproduction on a monthly
basis as required by State. The originals shall remain the property of Local Government.

19. Document and Information Exchange
Local Government agrees to electronically deliver to State all general notes, specifications, contract
provision requirements, and related documentation in a Microsoft Word or similar format. If requested
by State, Local Government will use State’s document template. Local Government shall also provide a
detailed construction time estimate, including types of activities and month in which the activity will be
completed, in the format required by State. This requirement applies whether Local Government
creates the documents with its own forces or by hiring a consultant or professional provider. At the
request of State, Local Government shall submit any information required by State in the format
directed by State.

20. Compliance with Laws
The parties shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes, ordinances, rules and
regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or tribunals in any
manner affecting the performance of this agreement. When required, Local Government shall furnish
State with satisfactory proof of this compliance.

21. Sole Agreement
This Agreement constitutes the sole and only agreement between the parties and supersedes any prior
understandings or written or oral agreements respecting the Agreement’s subject matter.

AFA TASA (2020) Page 11 of 16 Rev. 04/22/2021



TxDOT: Federal Highway Administration:

CSJ # 0905-06-1 20 CFDA No. 20.205

District # LBB- 05 CFDA Title Highway Planning and Construction

Code Chart 64 # 25650

Project Name COL PedlBike Connectivity AFA Not Used For Research & Development

22. Cost Principles
In order to be reimbursed with federal funds, the parties shall comply with the Cost Principles
established in 2 CFR Part 200 that specify that all reimbursed costs are allowable, reasonable, and
allocable to Project.

23. Procurement and Property Management Standards
The parties to this Agreement shall adhere to the procurement and property management standards
established in 2 CFR 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, and to the Texas Uniform Grant Management Standards. The State
must pre-approve the Local Government’s procurement procedures for purchases to be eligible for
state or federal funds.

24. Inspection of Books and Records
The parties to this Agreement shall maintain all books, documents, papers, accounting records, and
other documentation relating to costs incurred under this Agreement and shall make such materials
available to the State, the Local Government, and, if federally funded, the FHWA and the U.S. Office of
the Inspector General or their duly authorized representatives for review and inspection at its office
during the Agreement period and for seven (7) years from the date of final reimbursement by FHWA
under this Agreement or until any impending litigation or claims are resolved. Additionally, the State,
the Local Government, and the FHWA and their duly authorized representatives shall have access to
all the governmental records that are directly applicable to this Agreement for the purpose of making
audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions.

25. Civil Rights Compliance
The parties to this Agreement are responsible for the following:
A. Compliance with Regulations: Both parties will comply with the Acts and the Regulations relative

to Nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the U.S. Department of Transportation
(USDOT), the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), as they may be amended from time to
time, which are herein incorporated by reference and made part of this Agreement.

B. Nondiscrimination: The Local Government, with regard to the work performed by it during the
Agreement, will not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in the selection
and retention of subcontractors, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment.
The Local Government will not participate directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by
the Acts and the Regulations, including employment practices when the Agreement covers any
activity, project, or program set forth in Appendix B of 49 CFR Part 21.

C. Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurement of Materials and Eciuipment: In all
solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by the Local Government for work
to be performed under a subcontract, including procurement of materials or leases of
equipment, each potential subcontractor or supplier will be notified by the Local Government of
the Local Government’s obligations under this Agreement and the Acts and Regulations relative
to Nondiscrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin.

D. Information and Reiorts: The Local Government will provide all information and reports required
by the Acts, the Regulations, and directives issued pursuant thereto, and will permit access to
its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and facilities as may be determined
by the State or the FHWA to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Acts, Regulations or
directives. Where any information required of the Local Government is in the exclusive
possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish this information, the Local Government will

AFA TASA (2020) Page 12 of 16 Rev. 04/22/2021



TxDOT: Federal Highway Administration:

CSJ # 0905-06-1 20 CFDA No. 20.205

District # LBB- 05 CFDA Title Highway Planning and Construction

Code Chart 64 # 25650

Project Name COL PedlBike Connectivity AFA Not Used For Research & Development

so certify to the State or the FHWA, as appropriate, and will set forth what efforts it has made to
obtain the information.

E. Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of the Local Government’s noncompliance with the
Nondiscrimination provisions of this Agreement, the State will impose such contract sanctions
as it or the FHWA may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to:
1 . withholding of payments to the Local Government under the Agreement until the Local

Government complies and/or
2. cancelling, terminating, or suspending of the Agreement, in whole or in part.

F. Incorporation of Provisions: The Local Government will include the provisions of paragraphs (A)
through (F) in every subcontract, including procurement of materials and leases of equipment,
unless exempt by the Acts, the Regulations and directives issued pursuant thereto. The Local
Government will take such action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as the State
or the FHWA may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for
noncompliance. Provided, that if the Local Government becomes involved in, or is threatened
with, litigation with a subcontractor or supplier because of such direction, the Local Government
may request the State to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the State. In
addition, the Local Government may request the United States to enter into such litigation to
protect the interests of the United States.

26. Pertinent Non-Discrimination Authorities
During the performance of this Agreement, each party, for itself, its assignees, and successors in
interest agree to comply with the following nondiscrimination statutes and authorities; including but not
limited to:
A. Title VI ofthe Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252), (pro-hibits

discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin); and 49 CFR Part 21.
B. The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, (42

U.S.C. § 4601), (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been
acquired because of federal or federal-aid programs and projects).

C. Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1973, (23 U.S.C. § 324 et seq.), as amended, (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex).

D. Section 504 ofthe Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. § 794 et seq.) as amended, (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of disability); and 49 CFR Part 27.

E. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq.), (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of age).

F. Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982, (49 U.S.C. Chapter47l, Section 47123), as
amended, (prohibits discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex).

G. The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (PL 100-209), (Broadened the scope, coverage and
applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1 964, The Age Discrimination Act of 1 975 and
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of I 973, by expanding the definition of the terms
“programs or activities” to include all of the programs or activities of the federal-aid recipients,
subrecipients and contractors, whether such programs or activities are federally funded or not).

H. Titles II and Ill of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which prohibits discrimination on the basis
of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places
of public accommodation, and certain testing entities (42 U.S.C. § 12131-12189) as
implemented by Department of Transportation regulations at 49 C.F.R. Parts 37 and 38.

I. The Federal Aviation Administration’s Nondiscrimination statute (49 U.S.C. § 47123) (prohibits
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex).

AFA TASA (2020) Page 13 of 16 Rev. 04/22/2021



TxDOT: Federal Highway Administration:

CSJ # 0905-06-1 20 CFDA No. 20.205

District # LBB- 05 CFDA Title Highway Planning and Construction

Code Chart 64 # 25650

Project Name COL PedlBike Connectivity AFA Not Used For Research & Development

J. Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority
Populations and Low-Income Populations, which ensures nondiscrimination against minority
populations by discouraging programs, policies, and activities with disproportionately high and
adverse human health or environmental effects on minority and low-income populations.

K. Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English
Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes discrimination
because of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure compliance with Title VI, the parties
must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have meaningful access to the
programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 74100).

L. Title IX of the Education Amendments of I 972, as amended, which prohibits the parties from
discriminating because of sex in education programs or activities (20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq.).

27. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program Requirements
A. The parties shall comply with the Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (“DBE”) Program

requirements established in 49 CFR Part 26.
B. Local Government shall adopt, in its totality, State’s federally approved DBE program.
C. Local Government shall set an appropriate DBE goal consistent with State’s DBE guidelines

and in consideration of Local market, project size, and nature of the goods or services to be
acquired. Local Government shall have final decision-making authority regarding the DBE goal
and shall be responsible for documenting its actions.

D. Local Government shall follow all other parts of State’s DBE program referenced in TxDOT
Form 2395, Memorandum of Understanding Regarding the Adoption of the Texas Department
of Transportation’s Federally-Approved Disadvantaged Business Enterprise by Entity, and
attachments found at web address: http://ftp.dot.state.tx.us/pub/txdot
info/bop/dbe/mou/mou attachments. pdf.

E. Local Government shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the
award and performance of any DOT-assisted contract or in the administration of its DBE
program or the requirements of 49 CFR Part 26. Local Government shall take all necessary and
reasonable steps under 49 CFR Part 26 to ensure non-discrimination in award and
administration of DOT-assisted contracts. State’s DBE program, as required by 49 CFR Part 26
and as approved by DOT, is incorporated by reference in this Agreement. Implementation of this
program is a legal obligation and failure to carry out its terms shall be treated as a violation of
this Agreement. Upon notification to Local Government of its failure to carry out its approved
program, State may impose sanctions as provided for under 49 CFR Part 26 and may, in
appropriate cases, refer the matter for enforcement under 1 8 USC 1 001 and the Program Fraud
Civil Remedies Act of 1986 (31 USC § 3801 et seq.).

F. Each contract Local Government signs with a contractor (and each subcontract the prime
contractor signs with a subcontractor) must include the following assurance:
“The contractor, sub-recipient, or sub-contractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race,
color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry out
applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of DOT-assisted
contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this
agreement, which may result in the termination of this agreement or such other remedy as the
recipient deems appropriate.”

28. Debarment Certifications
The parties are prohibited from making any award at any tier to any party that is debarred or suspended
or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in Federal Assistance Programs under

AFA TASA (2020) Page 14 of 16 Rev. 04/22/2021



TxDOT: Federal Highway Administration:

CSJ # 0905-06-1 20 CFDA No. 20.205

District # LBB- 05 CFDA Title Highway Planning and Construction

Code Chart 64# 25650

Project Name COL PedlBike Connectivity AFA Not Used For Research & Development

Executive Order 12549, “Debarment and Suspension.” By executing this Agreement, Local
Government certifies that it and its principals are not currently debarred, suspended, or otherwise
excluded from or ineligible for participation in Federal Assistance Programs under Executive Order
12549, and further certifies that it will not do business with any party, to include principals, that is
currently debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in Federal
Assistance Programs under Executive Order 12549. The parties to this Agreement shall require any
party to a contract, subcontract, or purchase order awarded under this Agreement to certify its eligibility
to receive federal funds and, when requested by State, to furnish a copy of the certification.

If state funds are used, the parties are prohibited from making any award to any party that is debarred
under the Texas Administrative Code, Title 34, Part I , Chapter 20, Subchapter G, Rule §20.585 and
the Texas Administrative Code, Title 43, Part 1 , Chapter 9, Subchapter G.

29. Lobbying Certification
In executing this Agreement, each signatory certifies to the best of that signatory’s knowledge and
belief, that:
A. No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the parties to

any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any federal
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a
Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any federal contract, the making of any
federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement,
and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract,
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

B. If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person
for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with federal contracts, grants, loans, or cooperative agreements, the signatory for
Local Government shall complete and submit the federal Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form
to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions.

C. The parties shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts
under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and all sub-recipients shall certify and
disclose accordingly. Submission ofthis certification is a prerequisite imposed by 31 USC §1352
for making or entering into this transaction. Any person who fails to file the required certification
shall be subjectto a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each
such failure.

30. Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act Requirements
A. Any recipient of funds under this agreement agrees to comply with the Federal Funding

Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) and implementing regulations at 2 CFR Part I 70,
including Appendix A. This agreement is subject to the following award terms:
http:/Iwww. gpo.gov/fdsys/pkq/FR-20 I 0-09-1 4/pdf/20 1 0-22705. pdf and
http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/rkq/FR-20 I 0-09- 1 4/pdf/20 1 0-22706. pdf.

B. Local Government agrees that it shall:
I . Obtain and provide to State a System for Award Management (SAM) number (Federal

Acquisition Regulation (FAR) Subpart 4.11) if this award provides more than $25,000 in
Federal funding. The SAM number may be obtained by visiting the SAM website whose
address is: https://sam .gov/SAM/pages/public/index.jsf

AFA TASA (2020) Page 15 of 16 Rev. 04/22/202 1



TxDOT:
— Federal Highway Administration:

CSJ # 0905-06-1 20 CFDA No. 20.205

District # LBB- 05 CFDA Title Highway Planning and Construction

Code Chart 64 # 25650

Project Name COL PedlBike Connectivity AFA Not Used For Research & Development

2. Obtain and provide to State a Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) number, a
unique nine-character number that allows the federal government to track the distribution
of federal money. The DUNS number may be requested free of charge for all businesses
and entities required to do so by visiting the Dun & Bradstreet on-line registration
website http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform; and

3. Report the total compensation and names of its top five executives to State if:
a. More than 80 percent of annual gross revenues are from the Federal

government, and those revenues are greater than $25,000,000; and
b. The compensation information is not already available through reporting to the

U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.

31. Single Audit Report
A. The parties shall comply with the requirements ofthe Single Audit Act of 1984, P.L. 98-502,

ensuring that the single audit report includes the coverage stipulated in 2 CFR Part 200.
B. If threshold expenditures of $750,000 or more are met during the fiscal year, the Local

Government must submit a Single Audit Report and Management Letter (if applicable) to
TxDOT’s Compliance Division, 125 East 11th Street, Austin, TX 78701 or contact TxDOT’s
Compliance Division at singIeauditstxdot.qov.

C. If expenditures are less than the threshold during Local Government’s fiscal year, Local
Government must submit a statement to TxDOT’s Compliance Division as follows: We did not
meet the $______ expenditure threshold and therefore, are not required to have a single audit
performed for FY______

D. For each year Project remains open for federal funding expenditures, Local Government will be
responsible for filing a report or statement as described above. The required annual filing shall
extend throughout the life of the agreement, unless otherwise amended or Project has been
formally closed out and no charges have been incurred within the current fiscal year.

32. Signatory Warranty
Each signatory warrants that the signatory has necessary authority to execute this agreement on behalf
of the entity represented.

Each party is signing this agreement on the date stated under that party’s signature.

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT THE STATE OF TEXAS

Signature

Daniel M. Pope
Typed or Printed Name

Mayor
Typed or Printed Title

Date

Signature

Kenneth Stewart
Typed or Printed Name

Director of Contract Services
Typed or Printed Title

Date

AFA TASA (2020) Page 16 of 16 Rev. 04/22/2021



TxDOT: Federal Highway Administration:

CSJ # 0905-06-1 20 CFDA No. 20.205

District # LBB- 05 CFDA Title Highway Planning and Construction

Code Chart64# 25650

Project Name COL PedlBike Connectivity AFA Not Used For Research & Development

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT

ATTEST:

Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

Date

Wood 1FrankJir, P.E.,
Division irefor of Public Works

Date

A

7OVWTO
FORM.

re,Astant City Attorney

Date

AFA TASA (2020) Page 17 of 16 Rev. 04/22/202 1



TxDOT:
— Federal Highway Administration:

CSJ # 0905-06-1 20 CFDA No. 20.205

District # LBB- 05 CFDA Title Highway Planning and Construction

Code Chart 64 # 25650

Project Name COL PedlBike Connectivity — AFA Not Used For Research & Development

ATTACHMENT B

PROJECT LOCATION MAP

0

Page 1 of 1

E]

Lubbock

Qpr(OD

AFA TASA LF Attachment B



[C
SJ

#
09

05
-0

6-
12

0
P

ro
je

ct
N

am
e:

C
O

L
P

ed
lB

ik
e

C
on

ne
ct

iv
it

y

A
T

T
A

C
H

M
E

N
T

C
P

R
O

JE
C

T
E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

A
N

D
S

O
U

R
C

E
O

F
F

U
N

D
S

L
G

P
er

fo
rm

s
P

E
W

or
k

or
H

ir
es

C
o
n
su

lt
an

t
/

S
ta

te
L

et
s

P
ro

je
ct

fo
r

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

W
or

k
P

er
fo

rm
ed

by
S

ta
te

(L
oc

al
P

ar
ti

ci
p
at

io
n

pa
id

up
fr

o
n
t

by
LG

to
T

xD
O

T
)

T
ot

al
P

ro
je

ct
F

ed
er

al
P

ar
ti

ci
p
at

io
n

S
ta

te
P

ar
ti

ci
p

at
io

n
L

oc
al

G
o

v
er

n
m

en
t

C
o

st
E

st
im

at
e

P
ar

ti
ci

p
at

io
n

%
C

o
st

%
C

o
st

%
I

C
o
st

0%
$0

20
%

$2
00

,1
92

$8
O

O
77

O

F
ed

er
al

so
$2

O
O

1
92

S
ta

te
P

ar
ti

ci
p

at
io

n
L

oc
al

G
o

v
er

n
m

en
t

(L
G

)
P

ar
ti

ci
p

at
io

n

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y

E
ng

in
ee

ri
ng

1
$4

0,
03

7
80

%
$3

2,
03

0
0%

$0
20

%
$8

,0
07

E
nv

ir
on

m
en

ta
l

C
os

t1
$1

0,
01

0
80

%
$8

,0
08

0%
$0

20
%

$2
,0

02
R

ig
ht

of
W

ay
1

$0
0%

$0
0%

$0
0%

$0
U

til
iti

es
1

$0
0%

$0
0%

$0
0%

$0
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n2

$4
0,

I 3
8

80
%

$3
2,

II
0

0%
$0

20
%

$8
,0

28
D

ir
ec

t
S

ta
te

C
os

ts
S

ub
to

ta
l

$9
0,

18
5

80
%

$7
2,

14
8

0%
$0

20
%

$1
8,

03
7

In
di

re
ct

S
ta

te
C

os
t1

$4
,1

40
$0

0%
$4

,1
40

T
O

T
A

L
PA

R
T

IC
IP

A
T

IO
N

$9
4,

32
5

$8
72

,9
18

$0
$2

22
,3

69
T

O
T

A
L

L
O

C
A

L
PA

R
T

IC
IP

A
T

IO
N

$2
22

,3
69

B
T

he
es

ti
m

at
ed

to
ta

l
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

io
n

by
L

oc
al

G
ov

er
nm

en
t

is
$2

22
,3

69
,

pl
us

10
0%

of
ov

er
ru

ns
.

.
1 L

oc
al

G
ov

er
nm

en
t’

s
fi

rs
t

pa
ym

en
t

of
$1

4,
14

9
is

du
e

to
S

ta
te

w
ith

in
30

da
ys

fr
om

ex
ec

ut
io

n
of

th
is

co
nt

ra
ct

.
I

2
L

oc
al

G
ov

er
nm

en
t’

s
se

co
nd

pa
ym

en
t

of
$2

08
,2

20
is

du
e

to
S

ta
te

w
ith

in
60

da
ys

pr
io

r
to

th
e

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
co

nt
ra

ct
be

in
g

ad
ve

rt
is

ed
fo

r
bi

ds
.

I
T

he
lo

ca
l

m
at

ch
m

us
t

be
20

%
.

.
T

hi
s

is
an

es
ti

m
at

e;
th

e
fi

na
l

am
ou

nt
of

L
oc

al
G

ov
er

nm
en

t
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

io
n

w
ill

be
ba

se
d

on
ac

tu
al

co
st

s.
•

M
ax

im
um

fe
de

ra
l

T
A

SA
fu

nd
s

av
ai

la
bl

e
fo

r
P

ro
je

ct
ar

e
$8

72
,9

18
.

A
FA

T
A

SA
LF

(2
02

0)

80
%

$8
00

,7
70

D
es

cr
ip

ti
on

of
P

ro
je

ct
C

o
st

s
to

be
In

cu
rr

ed

W
or

k

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
C

os
t2

I
00

0,
96

2
$1

,0
00

,9
62

T
ot

al
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

V
al

ue

LG
S

u
b
to

ta
l

$1
,0

00
,9

62

D
es

cr
ip

ti
on

of
P

ro
je

ct
C

o
st

s
to

be
In

cu
rr

ed

D
ir

ec
t

an
d

In
di

re
ct

S
ta

te
C

o
st

s
In

cu
rr

ed
fo

r
R

ev
ie

w
,

In
sp

ec
ti

o
n
,

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n

&
O

v
er

si
g

h
t

T
ot

al
P

ro
je

ct
C

o
st

E
st

im
at

e

%
C

o
st

%
C

o
st

%
C

o
st

P
ag

e
1

of
I

A
tt

ac
hm

en
t

C



 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 11. 
10/26/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Water Utilities: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute the Third
Amendment to the Raw Water Lease, between the City of Lubbock and the Lake Alan Henry Water
District.

Item Summary
In 2003, the 78th Texas Legislature passed Senate Bill 1941 creating the Lake Alan Henry Water District
(LAHWD), a special law conservation and reclamation district.  On May 8, 2008, the City of Lubbock
executed a 20-year contract with the LAHWD and the South Garza Water Supply (SGWS) to provide up
to 520 acre-feet (169 million gallons) of raw water each year to developments surrounding Lake Alan
Henry within the LAHWD service area.  Lubbock’s raw water is supplied to SGWS, a private water
system operating under a contract with LAHWD.  SGWS constructed a pump station, transmission lines, a
surface water treatment plant, and distribution lines, to provide treated water to lot owners in the
Northridge Development located along the north side of the Lake.  The SGWS began pumping raw water
from Lubbock’s intake structure in December 2009. 

On November 1, 2018, the City Council executed a new raw water lease between the City and the
LAHWD.  The contract with LAHWD was designed to replace the existing raw water contract.  LAHWD
plans to purchase the SGWS facilities and extend the water system to other developments within their
service area on both the north and south side of the Lake. 

On October 21, 2019, the City Council executed the First Amendment to the Raw Water Lease.  The
amendment was necessary in order to meet the requirements of the U.S. Department of Agriculture’s
(USDA’s) grant and low interest loan program, which will fund LAHWD’s project. The amendment
provided the City with the option to renew the contract for an additional 10 years (from 35 to 45 years). 

On September 22, 2020, the City Council executed the Second Amendment to the Raw Water Lease.  The
amendment was necessary because the Original Raw Water Lease required the LAHWD to finalize the
SGWS agreement within 730 days or by November 1, 2020.  The amendment extended the deadline for
LAHWD to execute the SGWS agreement until November 1, 2021. 

This Third Amendment to the Raw Water Lease is needed in order to provide the LAHWD additional time
to finalize the agreement to purchase the SGWS.  Due to USDA grant/loan program delays, the LAHWD
will not meet the contractual deadline of November 1, 2021, to finalize the SGWS agreement.  Therefore,
this amendment extends the deadline for LAHWD to execute the SGWS agreement for another 365 days
or until November 1, 2022.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager



Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Division Director of Public Works

Attachments
Resolution- LAHWD-RawWater-A3 
Contract-LAHWD- RawWater- A3 









Resolution No. 2018-R0393

Item No. 6.6

November 1,2018

RESOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK:

THAT the Mayor of the City of Lubbock BE and is hereby authorized and directed to
execute for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, a Raw Water Lease by and between the
City of Lubbock and the Lake Alan Henry Water District for the lease of raw water. Said
Agreement is attached hereto and incorporated in this Resolution as if fully set forth herein
and shall be included in the minutes of the City Council.

Passed by the City Council on the 1st day of November

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR

ATTEST:

]jJ/l^Co
ebecca Garza, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

Aubrey A. S^pear, P.E., Director of Water Utilities

0

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Amy Sii&sTDeputy City

RES. Raw Water Lease LAHWD

(10-17-18)

2018.











































 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 12. 
10/26/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Works Streets: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Amendment
No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement, Contract 15344, with Infrastructure Management Services, for
an extension of time.

Item Summary
Infrastructure Management Services (IMS) was awarded a contract in October 2020 to collect, analyze,
and report road condition data on all asphalt and concrete streets in Lubbock. The data collected includes
sophisticated laser scanning equipment that analyzes surface cracking, rutting, distresses, potholes,
bleeding, and other surface irregularities for all streets, and dynamic load testing for Arterials and
Collectors. The load testing will gather data on the strength of the road base, the load transfer capabilities,
and overall pavement strength. This data will be used to arrive at an overall Pavement Condition Index or
PCI score for all Lubbock streets.

This contract includes an integration with the City of Lubbock asset management and work order system,
Cartegraph, and a multiyear maintenance, rehabilitation and budget development plan to address the
findings in the data.  The data collection, analysis, and quality control of that data are all complete, and
final reports, maintenance, and budgeting plans are mostly developed. However, the integration with the
Cartegraph system is just entering the beginning stages for both vendors, IMS, and Cartegraph. 

This Amendment is an extension of six (6) months of time, making the new expiration date May 13, 2022.
This contract original notice to proceed was dated December 1, 2020, and had one previous 6-month time
extension.  The previous time extension was based on extended periods of ice and snow during winter
weather events and a wetter than usual spring. These events delayed the collection of quality data during
the start of the project.

Fiscal Impact
This amendment does not result in a change to the original contract pricing.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Division Director of Public Works

Attachments
Resolution - Infrastructure Mgmt. Extension 
Contract Extension - Infrastructure Mgmt. 









 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 13. 
10/26/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolutions - Public Works Streets: Consider two resolutions authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
16197, with MUDco Ready Mix, LLC, and Contract 16093, with West Infrastructure Construction, LLC,
to establish the annual pricing of concrete products.

Item Summary
This contract establishes the annual pricing for certain concrete products used in the construction,
maintenance, and repair of public streets, alleys, and utility installations. The term of this contract is 1
year, with the option of four 1-year extensions.  In response to ITB-21-16093-TF, two bids were received
from the following vendors and opened on the afternoon of September 29, 2021. 

    West Industries of Lubbock, Texas
    MUDco Ready Mix LLC of Lubbock, Texas

In order to ensure consistent service for the concrete needs of various City departments, staff recommends
award as follows:
- Award contract items one through eight (1-8) and number ten (10) to West Industries as the first call
primary vendor at an estimated cost of $357,050. 
- MUDco Ready Mix LLC would be the first call primary vendor for contract item number nine (9) at an
estimated cost of $150,000 and the secondary call for all other contract items.  A call to the secondary
vendor can only take place once the primary vendor verifies they cannot provide service at that time.

Both contracts are awarded by the unit price. The total amount of the award is estimated based on expected
quantities and actual expenditures may be more or less depending on actual quantities. The price per unit
will not change.

Fiscal Impact
Funding of $507,050 is available in Street Maintenance, Water, and Wastewater Operating Funds for this
contract, and individual cost centers will be charged as product is used.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Division Director of Public Works

Attachments
Resolution - MUDco Ready-Mix 
Contract - MUDco Ready-Mix 
Resolution - West Infrastructure 
Contract - West Infrastructure 



Bid Tab Sheet - Concrete Products 
Project Summary Sheet - Concrete Materials 



















































City of Lubbock

Public Works

Bid Tabulation

ITB 21-16093-TF Concrete Materials

Vendor/Description Location

QTY 

(+/-) UOM Unit Price Total Cost

Delivery 

Days 

ARO

#0-1 - Class A Concrete

West Infrastructure Construction, LLC Lubbock, TX 200 CY 115.00        23,000.00     1

MUDco Ready-Mix, LLC Lubbock, TX 200 CY 118.00        23,600.00     1

#0-2 - Class A Concrete with Fiber Reinforcement

West Infrastructure Construction, LLC Lubbock, TX 500 CY 121.50        60,750.00     1

MUDco Ready-Mix, LLC Lubbock, TX 500 CY 124.00        62,000.00     1

#0-3 - Class B Concrete

West Infrastructure Construction, LLC Lubbock, TX 200 CY 115.00        23,000.00     1

MUDco Ready-Mix, LLC Lubbock, TX 200 CY 123.00        24,600.00     1

#0-4 - Class B Concrete with Fiber Reinforcement 

West Infrastructure Construction, LLC Lubbock, TX 200 CY 121.00        24,200.00     1

MUDco Ready-Mix, LLC Lubbock, TX 200 CY 129.00        25,800.00     1

#0-5 - Class C Concrete 

West Infrastructure Construction, LLC Lubbock, TX 200 CY 120.00        24,000.00     1

MUDco Ready-Mix, LLC Lubbock, TX 200 CY 129.00        25,800.00     1

#0-6 - Class C Concrete with Fiber Reinforcement 

West Infrastructure Construction, LLC Lubbock, TX 200 CY 126.50        25,300.00     1

MUDco Ready-Mix, LLC Lubbock, TX 200 CY 135.00        27,000.00     1

#0-7 - Class E Concrete

West Infrastructure Construction, LLC Lubbock, TX 200 CY 120.00        24,000.00     1

#0-8 - Class E Concrete with Fiber Reinforcement 

West Infrastructure Construction, LLC Lubbock, TX 200 CY 126.50        25,300.00     1

#0-9 - Type I, Type II or a Type I-II Bulk Cement 

MUDco Ready-Mix, LLC Lubbock, TX 500 TON 300.00        150,000.00   1

#0-10 - Flowable Fill (1.5 sacks per cubic yard) 

West Infrastructure Construction, LLC Lubbock, TX 1,500 CY 85.00          127,500.00   1

MUDco Ready-Mix, LLC Lubbock, TX 1,500 CY 92.00          138,000.00   1



 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management 

 

Project Summary 

 

ITB 21-16093-TF 

Concrete Materials 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on September 12 & September 19, 2021. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on BidSync.com and Bonfire.com from September 12 to September 29, 2021. 

0 individuals attended the pre-bid meeting. 

28 vendors viewed using BidSync.com and Bonfire.com.  

21 vendors downloaded the documents. 

13 vendors was notified separately.  

2 vendors submitted a bid. 

 



 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 14. 
10/26/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 1st Reading - Traffic Management: Consider an ordinance amending Section 20.05.103 of
the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock, with regard to school zones.

Item Summary
Chapter 20 of the Code of Ordinances, Section 20.05.103, establishes the locations of school zone reduced
speed limits. Staff recommends amending this section of the ordinance to remove two (2) school zones at
the following locations: 

1) Guadalupe Elementary, 101 North Avenue P  
Line Item 22: Remove 20 mph school zone on Avenue P, north and south of 1st Street

2) Jackson Elementary, 201 Vernon Avenue
Line Item 26: Remove 20 mph school zone on Avenue U, north and south of 2nd Street

Lubbock Independent School District has completed construction of the new Carmona-Harrison
Elementary School located at 1910 Cesar E. Chavez Drive, consolidating three elementary schools:
Guadalupe, Jackson and Wright.  Thus, the school zones recommended for removal are no longer
necessary.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Division Director of Public Works

Attachments
Ordinance Amending School Zones 
Redline Ordinance 



ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 20.05.103 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF
THE CITY OF LUBBOCK, TEXAS, WITH REGARD TO THE ESTABLISHMENT OF SCHOOL
ZONES AND SPEED LIMITS; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING A PENALTY; AND
PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION.

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lubbock deems it to be in the best interests of the
health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the City of Lubbock to make the following amendment to
Section 20.05.103 ofthe Code ofOrdinances ofthe City ofLubbock, Texas; NOW THEREFORE:

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK;

SECTION 1 . THAT Section 20.05. O3, Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock, Texas, is
hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 20.05.103. School zone speed limits.

A reduced school speed zone as indicated herein shall be in effect when the designated school speed
limit beacon is flashing during school hours or the reduced speed limit sign assembly is present upon the
streets or highways or portions thereofwithin the city limits which shall be as follows:

Lubbock
Street Name Travel School Zone Speed Limit School School

. Item . . . . Speed(TxDOT Direct. Description Zone 1 ype Name
Name)

Beginning at a point 95 feet East of
F! h

FISD
1 1 ith Place E/W Liberty Avenue extending to a point 230

as ing
20 Northridge

Beacon
feet East of LaSalle Avenue Elementary

. . . FISD
Beginning at a point 100 feet West of .

2 1 Ith Street E/W Jason Avenue extending to a point 100
Sign

20
Willow

I Assembly Bend
feet East of 8th Street

-

Elementary
19th Street .

Beginning at a point 145 feet West of
Fl h

Lubbock
3 E/W Avenue U extending to a point 100 feet

as ing
20 High

(US 62/SH Beacon
1 14 East ofAvenue T School

Beginning at a point 32 feet East ofOak LISD
East 24th . . Flashing4 E/W Avenue extending to a point 677 feet 20 Project
Street Beacon

—---- ---

WestofOakAvenue Intercept
Beginning at a point 214 feet East of

5 30th Street E/W Avenue N extending to a point 158 feet
Flashing

20
Bean

Beacon Elementary
West of Avenue N
Beginning at a point I 94 feet East of

6 34th Street E/W Avenue N extending to a point 25 1 feet
Flashing

20
Bean

Beacon Elementary
West ofAvenue N
Beginning at a point 214 feet East of

Fl h
Coronado

7 34th Street E/W Toledo Avenue extending to a point 200
as rng

20 High
Beacon

-

feet West of Vicksburg Avenue School
Beginning at a point 160 feet East of . . FISD

. . . Flashing
8 43rd Street E/W Milwaukee Avenue extending to a point 20 Westwind

. Beacon
-----— --- H 600feetEastofMilwaukee Avenue Elementary



Lubbock
Street Name Travel School Zone Speed Limit School SchoolItem . . . Speed(TxDOT Direct. Description Zone Type Name
Name)

Beginning at a point 320 feet West of
9 50th Street E/W Avenue P extending to a point 308 feet

Flashing
20

Hodges
Beacon Elementary

East of Avenue P
Beginning at a point 146 feet East of

F! hn
Monterey

1 0 50th Street E/W Gary Avenue extending to a point 21 9
as i g 20 High

Beacon
- - -

feetWestofGaryAvenue School
Beginning at a point 1 98 feet East of

11 58th Street E/W Avenue U extending to a point 136 feet
Flashing

20
Bayless

Beacon ElementaryWest of Avenue V
Beginning at a point 150 feet East of

Fl h
Evans

12 58th Street E/W Peoria Avenue extending to a point 255
as ing

20 Middle
feet West ofPeoria Avenue

Beacon
School

Beginning at a point 169 feet Eastof .

. Flashing Parsons13 58th Street E/W Canton Avenue and extending to a point 20
. Beacon Elementary

158 feet West ofElgin Avenue
Beginning at a point 85 feet West of I . .

14 58th Street • E/W 55th Drive extending to a point 209 feet
Flashing

20
Williams

Beacon Elementary
- -

East of Wayne Avenue
Beginning at a point 130 feet East of

Si n
FISD

15 68th Street E/W Oakridge Avenue extending to a point g
20 Oakridge

Assembly
-

55 feet West of 70th Street Elementary
Beginning 200 feet East oflronton

F! h
Heritage

16 73rd Street E/W Avenue extending to a point 200 feet
as ing

20 Middle
West of Ironton Avenue

Beacon
School

Beginning at a point 188 feet West of
17 78th Street E/W Flint Avenue extending to a point 200

Flashing
20

Waters
. Beacon Elementary

-—-- —---- --—--

feetEastofElgmAvenue
Beginning at a point 221 feet West of . FISD

-, . . Flashing18 79th Street E/W Hope Avenue extending to a point 165 20 Crestview
Beacon

feet East ofHope Avenue Elementary
. . . Lubbock-

Beginning at a point 50 feet West of
19 08th Street E/W Gary Avenue extending to a point 350

Flashing
20

Cooper
Beacon Northfeet East of Gary Avenue

Elementary
Beginning at a point 50 feet North of

20 Avenue D N/S 40th Street extending to a point 50 feet
gn

bl
20

Harwell

L South of42nd Street
ssem y ementary

Beginning at a point 1 5 feet South of
21 Avenue L N/S 29th Street extending to a point 50 feet

Flashing
20

Bean

North of30th St
Beacon Elementary

Beginning at a point 21 8 feet North of
22 Avenue P N/S 79th Street extending to a point 58 feet

Flashing
20

Roberts
Beacon Elementary

North of 8 1st Street
Avenue Q Beginning at a point 210 feet North of

Flashin
0L Slaton

.

23 N/S 32nd Street extending to a point 135 feet
g

30 Middle
Beacon

(US 84) South of32nd Street School
Beginning at a point 26 feet North of

24 Avenue T N/S 20th Street extending to a point 40 feet
Flashing

20
Dupree

Beacon Elementary
South of22nd Street

2



Lubbock
Stroet Name Travel School Zone Speed Limit School SchoolItem
(TiDOT Direct Descrlptlou Zoue type Name
Name)

Beginning at a point 90 fret North of Atkins
25 Avenue U N/S 58th Street extending to a point 125 fret

Flashing
20 MiddleBeacon

South of53rd Street School
Beginning at a point 1 15 feet South of

26 Avenue U N/S 58th Street extending to a point 74 feet Flashing
20

Bayless
Beacon ElementaryNorth of62nd Street

Beginning at a point 161 fret North of
27

Boston
N/S 1 Street and extending to a point 135

Flashing McWhorter
Beacon

20
ElementaryAvenue fret North of2nd Street

Beginningatapotht 16 feetNorth of
28

Chicago
N/S 16th Street extending to a point 16 feet

Flashing Hardwick
Beacon

20
ElementaryAvenue

South of 13th Street
Beginning at a point 145 fret South of

29 Chicago
N/S 48th Street extending to a point 143 feet

Flashing Wear
Beacon 20

ElementaryAvenue
North of4t Street
Beginning at a point 56 fret South of

30 Chicago
N/S 87th Street extending to a point 59 feet Flashing Smith

Beacon 20 ElementaryAvenue
North ofs9th 5fr
Beginning at a point 172 fret South of Lubbock

31
Dover

N/S 27th Street extending to a point 228 feet
Flashing

20 CbthdAvenue BeaconNorth of2lth Street School
1• Beginning at a point 150 feet North of

32 Elgin Avenue N/S I 41st Street extending to a point 155 feet
Flashing Wheelock
Beacon

20
Elementary

I South of42nd Street
Beginning at a point 260 feet North of

33 Elgin Avenue N/S 58th Street extending to a point 156 feet Flashing Parsons
Beacon 20

Elementary
— -

South of42nd Street
Beginning at apoint 103 fret South of

34 Elgin Avenue N/S 78th Street extending to a point 40 fret
Flashing Waters
Beacon

20
Elementary

— .
ofl5th Street
Beginning a a point 19 feet West of
North Hartford Avenue extending to a Flashing Wolflbrth

35 Erskine Street E/W
point 134 feet East ofNorth Gary Beacon

20
Elementary

Avenue
Beginning a a point 135 fret South of

36 Flint Avenue N/S 39th Street extending to a point 134 fret
Flashing Wheelock
Beacon

20
ElementarySouth of43rd Street
Lubbock-Beginning a a point 112 feet South of

37 Fulton
N/S 100th Street extending to a point 295

Flashing
20 Cooper

Avenue Beacon West
feetNorth of 101st Street

Elementary
Glenna Beginning a a point 50 feet West of

38 Goodacre E/W Avenue U extending to a point 50 fret Flashing Ramirez
Beacon

20
ElementaryBoulevard East ofAvenue T

Beginning a a point l06feet West of
39 Joliet Drive N/S Louisville Drive extending to a point 68

Flashing Miller
Beacon

20
Elementaryfeet Southwest of68th Street

Dr. M. L Beginning a a point 106 feet South of Estacado
40 King, Jr., N/S East Erskine Street extending to a point

Flashing
20 HighBeaconBoulevard 213 feet South ofEast Emory Street School

3



Lubbock
Street Name Travel School Zone Speed Limit School SchoolItem . . . Speed(TxDOT Direct. Description Zone Type Name
Name)

Dr. M. L. Beginning at a point 220 feet South of .

41 King, Jr., N/S East 29th Street extending to a point 230
Flashing

20
Ervin

Beacon ElementaryBoulevard* feet North ofEast 29th Street
. Beginning at a point 135 feet North of

Memphis . . Flashing Overton42 N/S 3 1 st Street extending to a point 122 feet 20Avenue Beacon Elementary
South of28th Street

. Beginning at a point 132 feet South of
43 Memphis

N/S 46th Street extending to a point 242 feet
Flashing

20
Maedgen

Avenue
North of44th Street

Beacon Elementary

. Beginning at a point 1 1 5 feet North of
44

Memphis
N/S 86th Street extending to a point 230 feet

Flashing
20

Honey
Avenue Beacon Elementary

South of86th Street
. Beginning at a point 300 feet north of

Milwaukee . . . Flashing Legacy
45 N/S Lehigh Street extending to a point 60 30Avenue Beacon Elementary

feet south of Kemper Street
. . . Lubbock-

1’T r ii Beginning at a point 595 feet South of .

46
iorioi

E/W 130th Street extending to a point 200
3ign

20
ooper

Avenue Assembly Central
feet South of 133rd Street

Elementary
Beginning at a point 560 feet Southwest

Parkway . . . Alderson
. ofLenith Avenue extending 600 feet to Flashing

47 Drive (US E/W . iO Elementary
a point 1 1 5 feet southwest of Walnut Beacon

82) School
. Avenue

Beginning at a point 213 feet North of .

Quaker . . Flashing Wilson48 N/S 3 1 st Street extending to a point 1 i7 feet 20
Avenue Beacon Middle

South of 3 1 st Street
School

Beginning at a point 200 feet North of . .

49 Teak Avenue N/S East 29th Street extending to a point 250
Flashing

20
Ervin

Beacon Elementary
feet South of East 29th Street

Beginning at a point 153 feet Northwest
.

50
Toledo

N/S of 13th Street extending to a point 163
Fiasiiing

20
Rus

Avenue Beacon Elementary
feet Southeast of I 5th Street

Beginning at a point I 00 feet North of . Upland
51

South Upland
N/S 100th Street extending to a point 100

Flashing
Heights

Avenue Beacon
feet South of I 03rd Street Elementary

Beginning at a point 200 feet South of . Terra Vista
52

North Upland
N/S 12th Street extending to a point 1000 feet

Flashing
Middle

Avenue ti Beacon
North of 12 Street School

North Beginning at a point 212 feet South of . Cavazos
. . . . Flashing

53 University N/S Auburn Street extending to a point 1 56 20 Middle
Beacon

—-—--- ____

feetNorthofBaylorStreet School
. Beginning at a point 220 feet North of i .

North Utica . . Flashing Centennial
54 N/S Kemper Street extending to a point 95 20

Avenue Beacon Elementary
---- ----- -

feetSouthofKernperStreet
Beginning at a point 94 feet North of

55 Utica Avenue N/S 45th Street extending to a point 200 feet
Flashing

20
Stewart

Beacon Elementary
South of48th Street

4



Lubbock
Street Name Travel School Zone Speed Limit School SchoolItem . . . . Speed(TxDOT Direct. Description Zone Type Name
Name)

Beginning at a point 163 feet North of
I • .

. Flashing Williams56 Utica Avenue N/S 56th Street extending to a point 30 feet 20Beacon ElementaryNorth of 59th Street

SECTION 2. THAT should any paragraph, section, sentence, phrase, clause or word of this
Ordinance be declared unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, the remainder ofthis Ordinance shall not
be affected thereby.

SECTION 3. THAT violation of any provision of this Ordinance shall be a misdemeanor
punishable by a fine not to exceed two hundred dollars ($200.00).

SECTION 4. THAT the City Secretary is hereby authorized and directed to cause publication of
the descriptive caption ofthis Ordinance as an alternative method ofpublication as provided by law.

AND SO IT IS ORDERED.

Passed by the City Council on first reading this

_______

day of , 2021.

Passed by the City Council on second reading this_______ day of , 2021.

ATTEST:

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR

lic Works

Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

NT:

L. ,

5



%PPROVED AS TO FORM:

lii Leisure

Ord. Amended 2021 School Zone
10.18.21

6



ORDINANCE NO.______________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 20.05.103 OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK, TEXAS, WITH REGARD TO THE 

ESTABLISHMENT OF SCHOOL ZONES AND SPEED LIMITS; PROVIDING A 

SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING A PENALTY; AND PROVIDING FOR 

PUBLICATION. 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lubbock deems it to be in the best 

interests of the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the City of Lubbock to make 

the following amendment to Section 20.05.103 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

Lubbock, Texas; NOW THEREFORE: 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK; 

SECTION 1.  THAT Section 20.05.103, Code of Ordinances of the City of 

Lubbock, Texas, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 20.05.103. School zone speed limits. 

A reduced school speed zone as indicated herein shall be in effect when the 

designated school speed limit beacon is flashing during school hours or the reduced speed 

limit sign assembly is present upon the streets or highways or portions thereof within the 

city limits which shall be as follows: 

Item 

Lubbock Street Name 

 

(TxDOT Name) 

Travel 

Direct. 

School Zone Speed Limit 

Description 

School Zone 

Type 
Speed 

School 

Name 

1 11th Place E/W 

Beginning at a point 95 feet 

East of Liberty Avenue 

extending to a point 230 feet 

East of LaSalle Avenue 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 

FISD Northridge 

Elementary 

2 11th Street E/W 

Beginning at a point 100 

feet West of Jason Avenue 

extending to a point 100 feet 

East of 8th Street 

Sign 

Assembly 
20 

FISD Willow Bend 

Elementary 

3 

19th Street 

 

(US 62/SH 114) 

E/W 

Beginning at a point 145 

feet West of Avenue U 

extending to a point 100 feet 

East of Avenue T 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 

Lubbock High 

School 

4 East 24th Street E/W 

Beginning at a point 32 feet 

East of Oak Avenue 

extending to a point 677 feet 

West of Oak Avenue 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 

LISD Project 

Intercept 

5 30th Street E/W 

Beginning at a point 214 

feet East of Avenue N 

extending to a point 158 feet 

West of Avenue N 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 Bean Elementary 

6 34th Street E/W 

Beginning at a point 194 

feet East of Avenue N 

extending to a point 251 feet 

West of Avenue N 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 Bean Elementary 



2 

Item 

Lubbock Street Name 

 

(TxDOT Name) 

Travel 

Direct. 

School Zone Speed Limit 

Description 

School Zone 

Type 
Speed 

School 

Name 

7 34th Street E/W 

Beginning at a point 214 

feet East of Toledo Avenue 

extending to a point 200 feet 

West of Vicksburg Avenue 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 

Coronado High 

School 

8 43rd Street E/W 

Beginning at a point 160 

feet East of Milwaukee 

Avenue extending to a point 

600 feet East of Milwaukee 

Avenue 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 

FISD Westwind 

Elementary 

9 50th Street E/W 

Beginning at a point 320 

feet West of Avenue P 

extending to a point 308 feet 

East of Avenue P 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 Hodges Elementary 

10 50th Street E/W 

Beginning at a point 146 

feet East of Gary Avenue 

extending to a point 219 feet 

West of Gary Avenue 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 

Monterey High 

School 

11 58th Street E/W 

Beginning at a point 198 

feet East of Avenue U 

extending to a point 136 feet 

West of Avenue V 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 Bayless Elementary 

12 58th Street E/W 

Beginning at a point 150 

feet East of Peoria Avenue 

extending to a point 255 feet 

West of Peoria Avenue 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 Evans Middle School 

13 58th Street E/W 

Beginning at a point 169 

feet East of Canton Avenue 

and extending to a point 158 

feet West of Elgin Avenue 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 Parsons Elementary 

14 58th Street E/W 

Beginning at a point 85 feet 

West of 55th Drive 

extending to a point 209 feet 

East of Wayne Avenue 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 Williams Elementary 

15 68th Street E/W 

Beginning at a point 130 

feet East of Oakridge 

Avenue extending to a point 

55 feet West of 70th Street 

Sign 

Assembly 
20 

FISD Oakridge 

Elementary 

16 73rd Street E/W 

Beginning 200 feet East of 

Ironton Avenue extending to 

a point 200 feet West of 

Ironton Avenue 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 

Heritage Middle 

School 

17 78th Street E/W 

Beginning at a point 188 

feet West of Flint Avenue 

extending to a point 200 feet 

East of Elgin Avenue 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 Waters Elementary 

18 79th Street E/W 

Beginning at a point 221 

feet West of Hope Avenue 

extending to a point 165 feet 

East of Hope Avenue 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 

FISD Crestview 

Elementary 



3 

Item 

Lubbock Street Name 

 

(TxDOT Name) 

Travel 

Direct. 

School Zone Speed Limit 

Description 

School Zone 

Type 
Speed 

School 

Name 

19 108th Street E/W 

Beginning at a point 350 

feet West of Gary Avenue 

extending to a point 350 feet 

East of Gary Avenue 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 

Lubbock-Cooper 

North Elementary 

20 Avenue D N/S 

Beginning at a point 50 feet 

North of 40th Street 

extending to a point 50 feet 

South of 42nd Street 

Sign 

Assembly 
20 Harwell Elementary 

21 Avenue L N/S 

Beginning at a point 15 feet 

South of 29th Street 

extending to a point 50 feet 

North of 30th St 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 Bean Elementary 

22 Avenue P N/S 

Beginning at a point 211 

feet South of 1st Street 

extending to a point 218 feet 

North of 1st Street 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 

Guadalupe 

Elementary 

2223 Avenue P N/S 

Beginning at a point 218 

feet North of 79th Street 

extending to a point 58 feet 

North of 81st Street 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 Roberts Elementary 

2324 

Avenue Q 

 

(US 84) 

N/S 

Beginning at a point 210 

feet North of 32nd Street 

extending to a point 135 feet 

South of 32nd Street 

Flashing 

Beacon 
30 

O.L. Slaton Middle 

School 

2425 Avenue T N/S 

Beginning at a point 26 feet 

North of 20th Street 

extending to a point 40 feet 

South of 22nd Street 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 Dupree Elementary 

26 Avenue U N/S 

Beginning at a point 214 

feet South of 2nd Street 

extending to a point 162 feet 

North of 2nd Street 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 Jackson Elementary 

2527 Avenue U N/S 

Beginning at a point 90 feet 

North of 58th Street 

extending to a point 125 feet 

South of 53rd Street 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 

Atkins Middle 

School 

2628 Avenue U N/S 

Beginning at a point 115 

feet South of 58th Street 

extending to a point 74 feet 

North of 62nd Street 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 Bayless Elementary 

2729 Boston Avenue N/S 

Beginning at a point 161 

feet North of 1st Street and 

extending to a point 135 feet 

North of 2nd Street 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 

McWhorter 

Elementary 

2830 Chicago Avenue N/S 

Beginning at a point 16 feet 

North of 16th Street 

extending to a point 16 feet 

South of 13th Street 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 

Hardwick 

Elementary 



4 

Item 

Lubbock Street Name 

 

(TxDOT Name) 

Travel 

Direct. 

School Zone Speed Limit 

Description 

School Zone 

Type 
Speed 

School 

Name 

2931 Chicago Avenue N/S 

Beginning at a point 145 

feet South of 48th Street 

extending to a point 143 feet 

North of 46th Street 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 Wester Elementary 

3032 Chicago Avenue N/S 

Beginning at a point 56 feet 

South of 87th Street 

extending to a point 59 feet 

North of 89th Street 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 Smith Elementary 

3133 Dover Avenue N/S 

Beginning at a point 172 

feet South of 27th Street 

extending to a point 228 feet 

North of 27th Street 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 

Lubbock Christian 

School 

3234 Elgin Avenue N/S 

Beginning at a point 150 

feet North of 41st Street 

extending to a point 155 feet 

South of 42nd Street 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 

Wheelock 

Elementary 

3335 Elgin Avenue N/S 

Beginning at a point 260 

feet North of 58th Street 

extending to a point 156 feet 

South of 42nd Street 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 Parsons Elementary 

3436 Elgin Avenue N/S 

Beginning at a point 103 

feet South of 78th Street 

extending to a point 40 feet 

of 75th Street 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 Waters Elementary 

3537 Erskine Street E/W 

Beginning at a point 19 feet 

West of North Hartford 

Avenue extending to a point 

134 feet East of North Gary 

Avenue 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 

Wolffarth 

Elementary 

3638 Flint Avenue N/S 

Beginning at a point 135 

feet South of 39th Street 

extending to a point 134 feet 

South of 43rd Street 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 

Wheelock 

Elementary 

3739 Fulton Avenue N/S 

Beginning at a point 112 

feet South of 100th Street 

extending to a point 295 feet 

North of 101st Street 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 

Lubbock-Cooper 

West Elementary 

3840 
Glenna Goodacre 

Boulevard 
E/W 

Beginning at a point 50 feet 

West of Avenue U 

extending to a point 50 feet 

East of Avenue T 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 Ramirez Elementary 

3941 Joliet Drive N/S 

Beginning at a point 106 

feet West of Louisville 

Drive extending to a point 

68 feet Southwest of 68th 

Street 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 Miller Elementary 

4042 
Dr. M. L. King, Jr., 

Boulevard* 
N/S 

Beginning at a point 106 

feet South of East Erskine 

Street extending to a point 

213 feet South of East 

Emory Street 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 

Estacado High 

School 



5 

Item 

Lubbock Street Name 

 

(TxDOT Name) 

Travel 

Direct. 

School Zone Speed Limit 

Description 

School Zone 

Type 
Speed 

School 

Name 

4143 
Dr. M. L. King, Jr., 

Boulevard* 
N/S 

Beginning at a point 220 

feet South of  East 29th 

Street extending to a point 

230 feet North of East 29th 

Street 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 Ervin Elementary 

4244 Memphis Avenue N/S 

Beginning at a point 135 

feet North of 31st Street 

extending to a point 122 feet 

South of 28th Street 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 Overton Elementary 

4345 Memphis Avenue N/S 

Beginning at a point 132 

feet South of 46th Street 

extending to a point 242 feet 

North of 44th Street 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 Maedgen Elementary 

4446 Memphis Avenue N/S 

Beginning at a point 115 

feet North of 86th Street 

extending to a point 230 feet 

South of 86th Street 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 Honey Elementary 

4547 Milwaukee Avenue N/S 

Beginning at a point 300 

feet north of Lehigh Street 

extending to a point 60 feet 

south of Kemper Street 

Flashing 

Beacon 
30 Legacy Elementary 

4648 Norfolk Avenue E/W 

Beginning at a point 595 

feet South of 130th Street 

extending to a point 200 feet 

South of 133rd Street 

Sign 

Assembly 
20 

Lubbock-Cooper 

Central Elementary 

4749 Parkway Drive (US 82) E/W 

Beginning at a point 560 

feet Southwest of Zenith 

Avenue extending 600 feet 

to a point 115 feet southwest 

of Walnut Avenue 

Flashing 

Beacon 
30 

Alderson  

Elementary School 

4850 Quaker Avenue N/S 

Beginning at a point 213 

feet North of 31st Street 

extending to a point 137 feet 

South of 31st Street 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 

Smylie Wilson 

Middle School 

4951 Teak Avenue N/S 

Beginning at a point 200 

feet North of East 29th 

Street extending to a point 

250 feet South of East 29th 

Street 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 Ervin Elementary 

5052 Toledo Avenue N/S 

Beginning at a point 153 

feet Northwest of 13th 

Street extending to a point 

163 feet Southeast of 15th 

Street 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 Rush Elementary 

5153 South Upland Avenue N/S 

Beginning at a point 100 

feet North of 100th Street 

extending to a point 100 feet 

South of 103rd Street 

Flashing 

Beacon 
35 

Upland Heights 

Elementary 



6 

Item 

Lubbock Street Name 

 

(TxDOT Name) 

Travel 

Direct. 

School Zone Speed Limit 

Description 

School Zone 

Type 
Speed 

School 

Name 

5254 North Upland Avenue N/S 

Beginning at a point 200 

feet South of 12th Street 

extending to a point 1000 

feet North of 12th Street 

Flashing 

Beacon 
35 

Terra Vista Middle 

School 

5355 
North University 

Avenue 
N/S 

Beginning at a point 212 

feet South of Auburn Street 

extending to a point 156 feet 

North of Baylor Street 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 

Cavazos Middle 

School 

5456 North Utica Avenue N/S 

Beginning at a point 220 

feet North of Kemper Street 

extending to a point 195 feet 

South of Kemper Street 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 

Centennial 

Elementary 

5557 Utica Avenue N/S 

Beginning at a point 94 feet 

North of 45th Street 

extending to a point 200 feet 

South of 48th Street 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 Stewart Elementary 

5658 Utica Avenue N/S 

Beginning at a point 163 

feet North of 56th Street 

extending to a point 30 feet 

North of 59th Street 

Flashing 

Beacon 
20 Williams Elementary 

SECTION 2.  THAT should any paragraph, section, sentence, phrase, clause or 

word of this Ordinance be declared unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, the 

remainder of this Ordinance shall not be affected thereby. 

 

SECTION 3.  THAT violation of any provision of this Ordinance shall be a 

misdemeanor punishable by a fine not to exceed two hundred dollars ($200.00). 

 

SECTION 4.  THAT the City Secretary is hereby authorized and directed to cause 

publication of the descriptive caption of this Ordinance as an alternative method of 

publication as provided by law. 

AND SO IT IS ORDERED. 

 

Passed by the City Council on first reading this _______ day of _______________, 2021. 

Passed by the City Council on second reading this_______ day of _____________, 2021. 

   

_______________________________________ 

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR 

 



7 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________________ 

Rebecca Garza, City Secretary 

 

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 

 

________________________________________ 

L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Division Director of Public Works 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

________________________________________ 

Kelli Leisure, Assistant City Attorney 



 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 15. 
10/26/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution approving the Upland Crossing Public
Improvement District (PID) Board Bylaws, as reviewed and recommended by the Upland Crossing PID
Advisory Board.

Item Summary
The Upland Crossing PID was created by the City Council on October 8, 2019, with Resolution No.
2019-R0375. This resolution included the creation of a 5-member Advisory Board to make
recommendations to the City Council on the service plan and other plans for the PID.

On July 15, 2021, during their annual Property Owners Meeting, an election was held to select the first
members of the Advisory Board. On October 5, 2021, the Advisory Board held their first Regular
Meeting, where they adopted bylaws. The Board recommends approval of the bylaws by the City Council.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Upland Crossing Public Improvement District Advisory Board

Attachments
Resolution - Upland Crossing PID 
Bylaws - Upland Crossing PID 



















 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 16. 
10/26/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
16151, and all related documents, between the City of Lubbock Community Development Department and
the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, for the Community Development Block Grant.

Item Summary
This is a contract for a Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) from the U. S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The funds will be used for public service activities, non-public
service activities, housing, direct delivery of services, and administration.
 
The Community Development & Services Board (CDSB) held a public hearing on July 14, 2021, followed
by a public board meeting on August 11, 2021, to discuss and approve the 2021 Action Plan draft.  The
Action Plan is the document that was submitted to HUD and serves as the City’s application for, and
proposed use of CDBG funds.  CDSB recommends to the City Council acceptance of the FY 2021
CDBG funding from HUD.

Fiscal Impact
The maximum allocation of this grant is $2,220,520, and there is no fiscal impact on the General Fund as
the funds used originate from HUD.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Karen Murfee, Director of Community Development

Attachments
Resolution - CDBG from HUD 
Contract - CDBG From HUD 



RESOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL 0F THE CITY OF LUBBOCK:

THAT the Mayor of the City of Lubbock is hereby authorized and directed to execute for and
on behalf of the City of Lubbock, Community Development Block Grant Funding Agreement
16151  for public  service  activities,  non-public  service  activities,  housing,  direct  delivery  of
services, and administration, and all related documents, between the City of Lubbock and the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). Said Contract is attached hereto
and  incoaporated  in  this  resolution  as  if fully  set  forth  herein  and  shall  be  included  in  the
minutes of the City Council.

Passed by the City Council on

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

ccdocsMES. CBDG Contract  16151  HUD-CDBG
10.11.21



Funding Approval/Agreement
Title I of the Housing and Community
Development Act (Public Law 930383)
Ill-00515R of 20515R

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Office of Community Planning and Development
Community Development Block Grant program          OMB Approval No. 2506-0193

exp 5/31/2018

1.  Name of Grantee (as Shown in item 5 of Standard Form 424) 3a. Grantee's 9rdigit Tax lD Number 3b. Grantee's 9rdigit DUNS Number
Lubbock 756000590 058213893

2. Grantee's Complete Address (as shown in item 5 of Standard Form 424) 4.  Date use of funds may begin
Po Box 2000 ioroiA202i

Lubbock, TX 79457-0001 5a.  Project/Grant No.  1 6a. Amount Approved
B-2 I -MC-48-0022 $2,220,520

5b. Project/Grant No. 2 6b. Amount Approved

Grant Agreement:   This Grant Agreement between the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and the above named Grantee is made pursuant to theauthorityofTitleIoftheHousingandCommunityDevelopmentActof1974,asamended,(42USC5301etseq.).TheGrantee'ssubmissionsforTitleIassistance.the

HUD regulations at 24 CFR Part 570 (as now in effect and as may be amended from time to time), and this Funding Approval, including any special conditions, constitute
part of the Agreement.   Subject to the provisions of this Grant Agreement, HUD will make the funding assistance specified here available to the Grantee upon execution
of the Agreement by the parties.   The funding assistance specified in the Funding Approval may be used to pay costs  incurred after the date specified in item 4 above
provided the activities to which such costs are related are carried out in compliance with all applicable requirements.   Pre-agreement costs may not be paid with fading
assistance specified here unless they are authorized in HUD regulations or approved by waiver and listed in the special conditions to the Funding Approval.  The Grantee
agrees to assume  all  of the  responsibilities  for environmental  review,  decision  making,  and  actions,  as  specified and  required  in  regulations  issued by the  Secretary
pursuant to  Section  104(g) of Title I and published  in 24  CFR Part 58.   The Grantee further acknowledges  its responsibility  for adherence to the  Agreement by  sub-

lent entities to which it makes fundin assistance hereunder available.
U.S.  Department of Housing and Urban Development (By Name)

Shirley J.  Henley
Grantee Name (Contractual Organization)

Lubbock (City of Lubbock)
Title

CPD Director                   (817) 978-5933

Signaturex- Date (mm/dd/yyyy)

09/13/2021
Date (mm/ddfyyyy)

7. Category of Title I Assistance for this Funding Action:

Entitlement,  See  106(b)

8. Special Conditions

(check one)
I None
E] Attached

9a.  Date HUD Received Submission

08/12#021

9b.  Date Grantee Notified

09/13#021

9c. Date of Start of Program Year

(10/01/2021)

10. check one

E  a.  Orig.  Funding
Approval

I b. Amendment
Amendment Number

11. Amount of Community Development

Block Grant FY 2021
a. Funds Reserved for this Grantee $2,220,520
b.  Funds now being Approved

c. Reservation to be Cancelled
lla minus  llb

12a. Amount of Loan Guarantee Commifroent now being Approved

N/A
Loan Guarantee Acceptance Provisions for Designated Agencies:
The public  agency  hereby  accepts the  Grant Agreement executed by  the
Department of Housing and Urban  Development on the above date with
respect to the above grant number(s) as Grantee designated to receive loan
guarantee assistance, and agrees to comply with the terns and conditions
of the Agreement, applicable regulations, and other requirements of HUD
now or hereafter in effect, pertaining to the assistance provided it.

12b.  Name and complete Address of Public Agency

City of Lubbock
Po Box 2000
Lubbock, TX 79457-0001

12c. Name of Authorized Official for Designated Public Agency

HUD Accounting use Only

Baton                   TAC                Program    Y         A   Reg    Area         DocumentNo.           ProjectNumber

I 5 3

1 7 6
Project Number

Effective Date
Category                           Amou nt                                       (mm/ddfyyyy)                   FE-EEI

I                  Amount                            ,iiiE
Date Entered PAS (mm/ddfyyyy) Date Entered LOCCS (mm/dd/yyyy) Batch Number Transaction Code Entered By Verified By

24 CFR 570                             form HUD-7082 (5/15)

Daniel M. Pope, Mayor



8. Special Conditions.

(a)         The period of performance for the funding assistance specified in the
Funding Approval ("Funding Assistance") shall begin on the date
specified in item 4 and shall end on September 1, 2028.  The Grantee
shall not incur any obligations to be paid with such assistance after
September 1, 2028.

(b)         The Recipient shall attach a schedule of its indirect cost rate(s) in the
format set forth below to the executed Agreement that is returned to
HUD.  The Recipient shall provide HUD with a revised schedule when
any change is made to the rate(s) described in the schedule.    The
schedule and any revisions HUD receives from the Recipient shall be
incorporated herein and made a part of this Agreement, provided that the
rate(s) described comply with 2 CFR part 200, subpart E.

Administering
Department/Agencv Indirect cost rate

Direct
Cost Base

Instructions: The Recipient must identify each agency or department of the
Recipient that will carry out activities under the grant, the indirect cost rate
applicable to each department/agency (including if the de minimis rate is used per
2 CFR §200.414(I)), and the type of direct cost base to which the rate will be
applied (for example, Modified Total Direct Costs (MTDC)).  Do not include
indirect cost rates for subrecipients.

(c)         In addition to the conditions contained on form HUD 7082, the grantee
shall comply with requirements established by the Office of
Management and Budget (OMB) concerning the Dun and Bradstreet
Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS); the System for Award
Management (SAM.gov.); the Federal Funding Accountability and
Transparency Act as provided in 2 CFR part 25, Universal Identifier and
General Contractor Registration; and 2 CFR part 170, Reporting
Subaward and Executive Compensation Information.

(d)        The grantee shall ensure that no CDBG funds are used to support any
Federal, State, or local projects that seek to use the power of eminent
domain, unless eminent domain is employed only for a public use.  For
the purposes of this requirement, public use shall not be construed to
include economic development that primarily benefits private
entities.   Any use of funds for mass transit, railroad, airport, seaport or

24 CFR 570                             form HUD-7082 (5/15)



highway projects as well as utility projects which benefit or serve the
general public (including energy-related, communication-related, water-
related and wastewater-related infrastructure), other structures
designated for use by the general public or which have other common-
carrier or public-utility functions that serve the general public and are
subject to regulation and oversight by the government, and projects for
the removal of an immediate threat to public health and safety or
brownfield as defined in the Small Business Liability Relief and
Brown fields Revitalization Act (Public Law 107-118) shall be
considered a public use for purposes of eminent domain.

(e)         The Grantee or unit of general local government that directly or
indirectly receives CDBG funds may not sell, trade, or otherwise
transfer all or any such portion of such funds to another such entity in .
exchange for any other funds, credits or non-Federal considerations, but
must use such funds for activities eligible under title I of the Act.

(I)         E.O.12372-Special contract condition -Notwithstanding any other
provision of this agreement, no funds provided under this agreement
may be obligated or expended for the planning or construction of water
or sewer facilities until receipt of written notification from HUD of the
release of funds on completion of the review procedures required under
Executive Order (E.O.) 12372, Intergovemmental Review of Federal
Programs, and HUD's implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 52.  The
recipient shall also complete the review procedures required under E.O.
12372 and 24 CFR Part 52 and receive written notification from HUD of
the release of funds before obligating or expending any funds provided
under this agreement for any new or revised activity for the planning or
construction of water or sewer facilities not previously reviewed under
E.O.  12372 and implementing regulations.

(g)        CDBG funds may not be provided to a for-profit entity pursuant to
section 105(a)(17) of the Act unless such activity or project has been
evaluated and selected in accordance with Appendix A to 24 CFR 570 -
"Guidelines and Objectives for Evaluating Project Costs and Financial

Requirements."  (Source -P.L.113-235, Consolidated and Further
Continuing Appropriations Act, 2015, Division K, Title 11, Community
Development Fund).

24 CFR 570                             form HUD-7082 (5/15)



 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 17. 
10/26/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
16152, and all related documents, between the City of Lubbock Community Development Department and
the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, for the Emergency Solutions Grant.

Item Summary
This is a contract for the Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) funding from the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development (HUD). The funds will be used for Emergency Shelter, Rapid Re-housing,
Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) and Administration.

The Community Development & Services Board (CDSB) held a public hearing on July 14, 2021, followed
by a public board meeting held on August 11, 2021, to discuss and approve the 2021 Action Plan Draft. 
The Action Plan is the document that was submitted to HUD and serves as the City's application for, and
proposed use of the ESG funds. CDSB recommends acceptance by the City Council of FY 2021 ESG
funding from HUD.

Fiscal Impact
The maximum allocation of this grant is $180,181, and there is no fiscal impact on the General Fund as the
funds used originate from HUD.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Karen Murfee, Director of Community Development

Attachments
Resolution - ESG from HUD 
Contract - ESG From HUD 



RESOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 0F LUBBOCK:

THAT the Mayor of the City of Lubbock is hereby authorized and directed to execute for and
on behalf of the City of Lubbock,  a Funding Agreement  16152 for the Emergency Solutions
Grant (ESG)  for emergency shelter,  rapid rehousing,  and homeless management information
system (HMIS) and administration, and all related documents, between the City of Lubbock
and  the  U.S.  Department  of  Housing  and  Urban  Development  (HUD).   Said  Contract  is
attached  hereto  and  incorporated  in  this  resolution  as  if fully  set  forth  herein  and  shall  be
included in the minutes of the City Council.

Passed by the City Council on

DANIEL M. POPH, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

APPROVED AS T0 FORM:

ccdocs/RES. HOME Funding Contract  16152 HUD-ESG
10.11.21



Funding Approval/Agreement
Emergency Solutions Grants Program
Subtitle 8 of Title IV of the MCKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act,
42  U.S.C.11371  et seq.

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development
Office of Community Planning and  Development

5.    FiscalYear(yyyy):   2021

6.    Previous Obligation (Enter "0" for initial  Fiscal Year allocation)

7.    Amount of Funds Obligated or Deobligated by This Action (+ or -) $180,181

8.    Total Amount of Federal  Funds Obligated $180,181

9.    Total  Required Match

10.  Total Amount of Federal Award  Including  Match

1 1.  Start Date of Recipient's
Program Year (mm/ddfyyyy)
10/01/2021

12.  Date HUD Received  Recipient's
Consolidated Plan Submission

09/12/2021

13.  Period of Performance and
Budget Period Start
Date/Federal Award Date (the
date listed  in  Box  19 for initial
Fiscal Year allocation)
09/13/2021

14.  Type of Agreement (check applicable box)

Bg  Initial Agreement (Purpose #1  -Initial  Fiscal year allocation)

I Amendment (Purpose #2 - Deobligation of funds)

I Amendment (Purpose rs - Obligation of additional funds)

15.  Special Conditions and  Requirements

I Not applicable          E Attached

16.  Period of Performance and Budget Period End Date (24
months after the date listed  in Box 13)

09/12/2023

General Terms and Conditions: This Agreement between the U.S.  Department of Housing and Urban Development
(HUD) and the Recipient is made pursuant to the authority of Subtitle 8 of Title lv of the MCKinney-Vento Homeless
Assistance Act (42  U.S,C,11371  et seq.) and  is subject to the applicable annual appropriations act.   The Recipient's
Consolidated  Plan submissions (including the Recipient's approved annual Action Plan and any amendments completed
in accordance with 24 CFR Part 91 ), the Emergency Solutions Grants Program regulations at 24 CFR Part 576 (as now
in effect and as may be amended from time to time), and this Agreement, including any special conditions attached to this
Agreement, constitute part of this Agreement.   Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement,  HUD will make the
funds for the specified Fiscal Year available to the Recipient upon execution of this Agreement by the Recipient and
HUD.   The funds may be used for costs incurred before the Budget Period  under the conditions specified in HUD Notice
CPD-21-02 or another prior written approval by HUD, or if the Recipient is not covered by Notice CPD-21-02,  under the
condition that the costs are otherwise allowable and were incurred on or after the dates listed in box 11  and box 12 or 90
calendar days before the date in box  13 (whichever is later). The Recipient agrees to assume responsibility for
environmental review, decision making, and action under  24 CFR Part 58, except where the Recipient is a state and
distributes funds to a unit of general local government, the Recipient must require the unit of general local government to
assume that responsibility and must comply with the state's responsibilities under 24 CFR 58.4. Without the Recipient's
execution of an amendment or other consent,  HUD may amend this Agreement to provide additional funds to the
Recipient for the specified Fiscal Year or to deobligate funds under this Agreement in accordance with applicable law.
The Recipient must comply with the applicable requirements at 2 CFR part 200, as may be amended from time to time.
V\/here any previous or future amendments to 2 CFR part 200 replace or renumber sections of part 200 that are cited
specifically in 24 CFR part 576, activities carried out under the grant after the effective date of the part 200 amendments
will be governed by the part 200 requirements as replaced or renumbered by the part 200 amendments.   If the amount in
Box 8 exceeds $500,000, the Recipient must comply with Appendix Xll to 2 CFR part 200-Award Term and Condition
for Recipient Integrity and  Performance Matters.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as creating or justifying
any claim against the federal government or the Recipient by any third party.

17.  For the  u.S.  Department of HUD (Name,  Title,  and Contact Information of 18.  Signature 9. Date (mm/dd/yyyy)
Authorized Official)

Shirley J.  Henley, CPD Director    (817) 978-5933 ^^,.a,,^^1

20.  For the Recipient (Name and Title of Authorized Official) 21.  Signature 22. Date (mm/ddtw)

Funding  Information (HUD Accounting  Use Only):
PAS code: 21 HAES                                Region: 06
Appropriation:  00192                                Office:  (Fort worth)
Appro Symbol:  H

Program Code: SOE
Allotment:  868

Daniel M. Pope, Mayor



Special Conditions and Requirements for FY 2021 ESG Program

Indirect Cost Rate

The Recipient shall attach a schedule of its indirect cost rate(s) in the format set forth
below to the executed Agreement that is returned to HUD.  The Recipient shall provide
HUD with a revised schedule when any change is made to the rate(s) described in the
schedule.    The schedule and any revisions HUD receives from the Recipient shall be
incorporated herein and made a part of this Agreement, provided that the rate(s)
described comply with 2 CFR part 200, subpart E.

Instructions : The Recipient must identify each agency or department Of the Recipient that will
carry out activities under the grant, the indirect cost rate applicable to each department/agency
(including if the de minimis rate is used per 2 CFR §200.414if)) , and the type Of direct cost base
to which the rate will be applied ifor example, Modifiied Total Direct Costs (MTDC)).   Do not
include indirect cost rates for subrecipients.

Recipient
DeDartment/Agencv Indirect cost rate

Direct
Cost Base



Special Conditions and Requirements for FY 2021 ESG Program

Serving Youth Who Lack 3rd Party Documentation or Live in Unsafe
Situations

Notwithstanding any contrary requirements under the MCKinney-Vento Homeless
Assistance Act or 24 CFR part 576, youth aged 24 and under who seek assistance
(including shelter, services or rental assistance) shall not be required to provide
third-party documentation that they meet the homeless definition in 24 CFR 578.3
as a condition for receiving assistance; and unaccompanied youth aged 24 and
under (or families headed by youth aged 24 and under) who have an unsafe
primary nighttime residence and no safe alternative to that residence shall be
considered homeless for purposes of assistance provided by any private nonprofit
organization whose primary mission is to provide services to youth aged 24 and
under and families headed by youth aged 24 and under.



 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 18. 
10/26/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
16153, and all related documents, between the City of Lubbock Community Development Department and
the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, for the Community Housing Development
Organization.

Item Summary
This is a contract for the HOME Grant from HUD. The funds will be used for Community Housing
Development Organization (CHDO) Operations and Projects, Affordable Housing, and Administration.
 
The Community Development & Services Board (CDSB) held a public hearing on July 14, 2021, followed
by a public board meeting on August 11, 2021, to discuss and approve the 2021 Action Plan draft.  The
Action Plan is the document that was submitted to HUD and serves as the City’s application for, and
proposed use of HOME Grant funds. CDSB recommends acceptance by the City Council, of the FY 2021
HOME Grant funding from HUD.

Fiscal Impact
The maximum allocation of this grant is $997,581, and there is no fiscal impact on the General Fund as the
funds used originate from HUD.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Karen Murfee, Director of Community Development

Attachments
Resolution - HOME Grant from HUD for CHDO 
Contract - HOME Grant from HUD for CHDO 



RESOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVED BY THH CITY COUNCIL 0F THE CITY 0F LUBB0CK:

THAT the Mayor of the City of Lubbock is hereby authorized and directed to execute for and
on  behalf of the  City  of Lubbock,  HOME  Investment  Partnership  and  Funding  Agreement
16153  for the Community Housing Development Organization (CHDO) operations, projects,
and  administration,  and  all  related  documents,  between the  City  of Lubbock  and  the  U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). Said Contract is attached hereto and
incorporated in this resolution as if fully set forth herein and shall be included in the minutes
of the City Council.

Passed by the City Council on

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

APPROVED AS T0 CONTENT:

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

ccdocs/RES. HOME Funding Contract  16153 HUD-HOME
10.11.21



Funding Approval and HOME
Investment Partnerships Agreement
Title 11 of the National Affordable Housing Act

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Office of Community Planning and Development

This Agreement between the Department Of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and the Grantee is made pursuant to the authority of the HOME lnvesthent Partnerships
Act (42  U.S.C.12701  et seq.).  The  Grantee's approved  Consolidated  Plan  submission/Application,  the  HUD  regulations  at 24  CFR  Part 92  (as  is  now  in  effect and  as  may  be

amended from time to time) and this HOME Investment Partnership Agreement, form HUD40093, including any special conditions, constitute part of this Agreement. Subject to the

provisions of this Agreement,  HUD will  make the funds for the  Fiscal  Year specified,  avallable to the Grantee  upon  execution of this Agreement by the parties.  All funds for the
specified  Fiscal  Year provided  by  HUD  by formula reallocation  are covered  by this Agreement upon  execution  of an amendment by  HUD, without the Grantee's execution of the
amendment or other consent.  HUD's payment of funds under this Agreement is subject to the Grantee's compliance with HUD's electronic funds transfer and information reporting

procedures  issued  pursuant to 24 CFR  92.502.  To the extent authorized  by  HUD regulations at 24 CFR  Part 92,  HUD  may,  by  its execution  of an  amendment,  deobligate funds
previously awarded to the Grantee without the Grantee's execution Of the amendment or other consent.  The Grantee agrees that funds invested  in affordable housing  under 24
CFR  Part 92 are repayable when the housing no longer qualifies as affordable housing.  Repayment shall be made as specified in 24 CFR Part 92. The Grantee agrees to assume
all of the responsibility for environmental review, decision making,  and actions, as specified and required in regulation at 24 CFR 92.352 and 24 CFR Part 58.

The Grantee must comply with the applicable requirements at 2 CFR part 200 that are incorporated by the program regulations, as may be amended from time to time. Vvhere
any previous or future amendments to 2 CFR part 200 replace or renumber sections Of part 200 that are cited specifically in the program regulations, activitles carried out under the

grant after the effeetive date Of the part 200 amendments will be governed by the 2 CFR part 200 requirements as replaced or renumbered by the part 200 amendments.
The Grantee shall comply with requirements established by the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) concerning the Universal Numbering System and System for Award

Management (SAM) requirements in Appendix I to 2 CFR part 200, and the Federal  Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) in Appendix A to 2 CFR part 170.

The Period of Performance for the funding assistance shall begin on the date specified in item 12 and shall end on September let Of the 5th fiscal year after the expiration Of the

period of availability for obligation.  Funds  remaining  in the account will  be cancelled and thereafter not available for obligation or expenditure for any purpose.  Per 31  U.S.C.  1552.
The Grantee shall not incur any obligations to be paid with such assistance after the end of the Period of Performance.

13.  For the  u.S.  Department of HUD (Name and Title of Authorized Official) 14.  Signature 15.  Date
Shirley J.  Henley, CPD Director  (817) 978-5933 _~sac`  _ E>,a_ Lc`}_    +-¢ c_ ,. `` _c, `±  .-`€   _X_ 09/13/2021

16.  For the Grantee (Name and Title of Authorized Official) 17.  SignatureX 18.  Date11

19.  Check one:

EE  Initial Agreement                           I Amendment #
20.  Funding Information:             HOME

+ieurceofFunds
2021
2020
2019

ADDrooriation code       PAS code                      Amount
861/40205                          HMF (J)                          $990,911
860/30205                         HMF (H)                             se,041
869ve0205                         HMF (G)                               $ 629

Page  1 form HUD40093

Daniel M. Pope, Mayor



 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 19. 
10/26/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Amendment No. 6 to
Contract 15200, with RS&H, Inc., for the Security Systems Upgrade at Lubbock Preston Smith
International Airport.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock (the Airport) has requested RS&H, Inc. under the on-call professional
architectural/engineering agreement, to provide a scope and fee for the Security Systems Upgrade at
Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport. The Access Control/CCTV system is a vital component of
the airport's security system. Upgrades to technology are necessary to ensure compliance with federal
regulations.

The following scope items will be included in the design: The existing Access Control System (ACS) will
be replaced with a new system that is fully integrated with the existing Video Management System (VMS)
headend, including new identity management system, servers, computers, controllers, card reader interface
modules, replacement card readers, credentials, software, and ancillary equipment.

The design and bid phase tasks are as follows:
  

Scope Amount
Task 1.0 Project Initiation and Investigation Phase $32,040
Task 2.0 60% Design Phase 31,920
Task 3.0 90% Design Phase 26,990
Task 4.0 Bid Documents 18,550
Task 5.0 Bid and Award Support Services 10,080

All Services - Lump Sum Total Amendment $119,580

Airport staff and Airport Advisory Board recommend  approval of Amendment No. 6 with RS&H, Inc. of
Jacksonville, Florida, for the Security System Upgrades at Lubbock Preston Smith International
Airport. The project schedule is anticipated to take 10 months from the Notice to Proceed (NTP). 

Fiscal Impact
The cost of Amendment No. 6 with RS&H, Inc. is $119,580, and is funded in Capital Improvement Project
92361.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager



Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Kelly Campbell, Executive Director of Aviation
Airport Advisory Board

Attachments
Resolution Amendment 6- RS&H 
Amendment 6 RS&H 
Budget Detail - CIP 92361 RS&H 
CIP Detail 





























Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Budget

Encumbered/Expended

RS&H Amendment #7 (original design development) 1,496,751$            

RS&H Amendment #8 (additional scope) 439,992                 

Hensel Phelps (preconstruction fee) 172,387                 

Kutchins & Groh (independent fee analysis) 4,525                     

Kutchins & Groh (independent fee analysis) 5,131                     

Procurement Expense 204                        

RS&H Amendment #11 (construction admin-GMP#1) 215,371                 

Hensel Phelps Amendment #1 (GMP#1) 4,221,550              

Hensel Phelps Amendment #2 (GMP#2) 32,467,367            

RS&H Amendment #12 (construction admin GMP#2) 2,997,888              

Kutchins & Groh (independent fee analysis) 4,400                     

Par Kut International (deposit) 4,498                     

Arconas Corporation (gate counter podium w/ glass) 14,569                   

Par Kut International (6ft x 12ft building with canopy) 17,992                   

Procurement Expense 860                        

Procurement Expense 230                        

Agenda Item October 26, 2021

RS&H Amendment #6 (additional scope) 119,580                 

  Encumbered/Expended To Date 42,183,295            

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Contingency 3,540,222              

  Remaining Appropriation 3,540,222              

Total Appropriation 45,723,517$          

92361

Terminal  Building Improvements

City of Lubbock, TX

Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail

October 26, 2021



Project Name Terminal Building Remodel Project Number 92361

Managing Department

Project Manager

Project Classification

Project Status

Project Scope

Aviation Maintenance

Kelly Campbell

Upgrade/Major Maintenance

Approved

The remodel includes modifications to the screening and exit points, consolidation of the baggage claims areas, HVAC/mechanical, 

electrical, IT, and plumbing improvements, roof replacement, PA system replacement, and aesthetic improvements to the exterior and 

interior areas.

Project Start Date - Construction: December 2019

Project End Date - Construction: August 2021

Project Justification

The airport terminal building opened in 1976.  Many key components are failing and it is necessary to rehabilitate and/or replace to 

maintain operations. The airport master plan contains a long-term list of rehabilitation and improvement projects necessary to maintain 

airport facilities and meet the requirements of the FAA.  The various elements of this project will address security and also operational 

needs in the airport terminal building.

Project History

Due to the complexity of the project, the construction estimate has increased. A budget amendment will be presented in FY 2018-19 to 

reflect available funding.

A construction contract for Phase 1-roof replacement was awarded to Hensel Phelps in April 2019 for $4,221,552.  Phase II including 

the remaining components of the project was awarded to Hensel Phelps in September 2019 for $32,467,367.

CIP 92437 was combined with CIP 92361 in the FY 2018-19 Budget.

$34,689,163 was appropriated in the FY 2018-19 Budget, Ord. No. 2018-O0109, October 1, 2018

$11,034,354 was appropriated in Budget Amendment No. 27, Ord. No. 2019-O0133, September 24, 2019.

Unappropriated Planning Years

Appropriation Detail

Appropriation to

Date

Total Project 

Amount
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

Construction  43,451,598  0  0  0  0  0  0  43,451,598 

Design and Engineering  1,501,882  0  0  0  0  0  0  1,501,882 

Total Project Appropriation  44,953,480  0  0  0  0  0  0  44,953,480 



Project Name Terminal Building Remodel Project Number 92361

Unappropriated Planning Years

Funding to

Date

Total

FundingFunding Detail
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

Airport Capital Project Fund  1,177,761  0  0  0  0  0  0  1,177,761 

Federal Grant Funding  18,088,646  0  0  0  0  0  0  18,088,646 

FY 2014 Airport Revenue CO's  204,489  0  0  0  0  0  0  204,489 

FY 2015 Airport Revenue CO's  2,342,250  0  0  0  0  0  0  2,342,250 

FY 2015 PFC Revenue CO's  381,729  0  0  0  0  0  0  381,729 

FY 2016 PFC Revenue CO's  283,605  0  0  0  0  0  0  283,605 

FY 2019 Airport Revenue CO's  7,135,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  7,135,000 

FY 2019 PFC Revenue CO's  15,340,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  15,340,000 

Total Funding Sources  44,953,480  0  0  0  0  0  0  44,953,480 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Total ImpactFY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27Operating Budget Impact

 100,000 Facilities Maintenance and Custodial  60,000  0  0  0  0  160,000 

Total Operating Budget Impact  100,000  60,000  0  0  0  0  160,000 



 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 20. 
10/26/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Transit Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 15860, with Southern Tire Mart, LLC, for the supply of tires for Citibus paratransit vans and staff
support vehicles.

Item Summary
Due to the ending of the Citibus tire agreement for paratransit vans and staff support vehicles a new
agreement is needed for the purchase of tires. Citibus paratransit vans and staff support vehicles average a
combined monthly mileage of 83,500 miles. Citibus is looking for the most cost efficient tires, per
specification/delivery days, for the amount of tires Citibus purchases.
 
The City of Lubbock issued ITB 21-15860-KM for tires for Citibus, and in response, bids were received
and opened on May 20, 2021, from six (6) vendors, as shown in the attached Bid Tabulation Sheets. The
responsive companies only bid on the items for the tires that they are able to provide. Bids were broken
down into individual line items for lowest bidder of each item. Contracts are awarded by line item and unit
price. Therefore, multiple contracts will be awarded for this bid. Contracts are awarded for one year, with 2
one-year extensions. The total amount of the award is estimated based on expected quantities and actual
expenditures may differ depending on actual quantities purchased. The price per unit will not change.
 
The following vendors submitted the low bids for each line item.
  

Vendor Line
Item(s)

Annual
Amount

3-Year
Total

McWhorters, Ltd., Lubbock, Texas 1 and 2 $5,017.58  $15,052.74
Bill Williams Tire, Lubbock, Texas 3 and 4 $5,832.00 $17,496.00
***Southern Tire Mart, LLC,
Columbia, Mississippi 5 $19,400.00 $58,200.00

***Only contracts that are expected to exceed $50,000 over the life of the contract require City Council
approval.

Fiscal Impact
The annual cost of this contract is $19,400 ($58,200 for three years), and is budgeted in the FY 2021-2022
Citibus budget. There will be no additional cost to the City of Lubbock.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howeton, Deputy City Manager
Chris Mandrell, General Manager of Citibus



Attachments
Resolution - Tires - Southern Tire Mart 
Citibus/Southern Tire Mart Contract 
Citibus Tire Bid Tab 
Citibus - Tires Project Summary 



































City of Lubbock 

Citibus 

Bid Tabulation

ITB 21-15860-KM Tires for Citibus 

Vendor/Description Location

Estimated 

Qty (+/-) 

Unit Price 

per Tire Extended Cost 

#0-1 - 225/60R16

McWhorters Ltd Lubbock, TX 50 74.23 3711.50

T&W Tire Wichita Falls, TX 50 75.05 3752.50

Southern Tire Mart, LLC Columbia, MS 50 77.00 3850.00

Southern Tire Mart, LLC Columbia, MS 50 77.00 3850.00

Bill Williams Tire Lubbock, TX 50 80.00 4000.00

Hometown Tire Pros Sundown, TX 50 85.00 4250.00

Hometown Tire Pros Sundown, TX 50 90.00 4500.00

Southern Tire Mart, LLC Columbia, MS 50 100.00 5000.00

Williams Brake tune and tire L.L.C. Lubbock, TX 50 *NQAS

#0-2 - 265/70R17

McWhorters Ltd Lubbock, TX 12 108.84 1306.08

T&W Tire Wichita Falls, TX 12 114.55 1374.60

Hometown Tire Pros Sundown, TX 12 116.00 1392.00

Southern Tire Mart, LLC Columbia, MS 12 117.00 1404.00

Bill Williams Tire Lubbock, TX 12 120.00 1440.00

Southern Tire Mart, LLC Columbia, MS 12 139.00 1668.00

Williams Brake tune and tire L.L.C. Lubbock, TX 12 *NQAS

#0-3 - 255/70R22.5

Bill Williams Tire Lubbock, TX 12 242.00 2904.00

T&W Tire Wichita Falls, TX 12 249.00 2988.00

Southern Tire Mart, LLC Columbia, MS 12 259.00 3108.00

Hometown Tire Pros Sundown, TX 12 267.00 3204.00

McWhorters Ltd Lubbock, TX 12 301.23 3614.76

Williams Brake tune and tire L.L.C. Lubbock, TX 12 207.00 *NQAS

#0-4 - 245/70R19.5

Bill Williams Tire Lubbock, TX 12 244.00 2928.00

T&W Tire Wichita Falls, TX 12 244.00 2928.00

McWhorters Ltd Lubbock, TX 12 259.44 3113.28

Southern Tire Mart, LLC Columbia, MS 12 271.00 3252.00

Southern Tire Mart, LLC Columbia, MS 12 274.00 3288.00

Hometown Tire Pros Sundown, TX 12 325.00 3900.00

Williams Brake tune and tire L.L.C. Lubbock, TX 12 207.00 *NQAS



City of Lubbock 

Citibus 

Bid Tabulation

Vendor/Description Location

Estimated 

Qty (+/-) 

Unit Price 

per Tire Extended Cost 

#0-5 - 225/75R16

Southern Tire Mart, LLC Columbia, MS 200 97.00 19400.00

Southern Tire Mart, LLC Columbia, MS 200 111.00 22200.00

Hometown Tire Pros Sundown, TX 200 122.00 24400.00

Bill Williams Tire Lubbock, TX 200 129.00 25800.00

T&W Tire Wichita Falls, TX 200 131.14 26228.00

McWhorters Ltd Lubbock, TX 200 239.00 47800.00

Williams Brake tune and tire L.L.C. Lubbock, TX 200 97.00 *NQAS

Item By Item: 

McWhorters, Ltd (Items 1 and 2) Lubbock, TX $5,017.58

Bill Williams Tire (Items 3 and 4) Lubbock, TX       5,832.00 

Southern Tire Mart, LLC (Item 5) Columbia, MS     19,400.00 

*NQAS- Not quoted as specified



 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

Project Summary 

ITB 21-15860-KM Tires for Citibus 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on May 2 and May 9, 2021. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on BidSync.com from April 30, 2021 to May 20, 2021. 

Notice was published on Bonfire-hub.com from April 30, 2021 to May 20, 2021. 

23 vendors viewed using BidSync.com.  

6 vendors downloaded the documents from Bidsync.com 

16 vendors took documents from Bonfire-hub.com 

10 vendors were notified separately.  

6 vendors submitted a bid. 

 



 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 21. 
10/26/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Health Benefits: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute the renewal of
Contract 14820, by and between the City of Lubbock and Dearborn National Life Insurance, to enhance
services by adding the SelerixBenSelect benefits administration system.

Item Summary
In July 2019, City staff issued a Request for Proposal (RFP) 2019-14820 for ancillary benefits, including
group Term Life Insurance, Accidental Death and Dismemberment, Long-Term Disability, and Accident
Insurance.  Dearborn Life Insurance, now rebranded under BlueCross BlueShield of Texas (BCBXTS),
was awarded the contract for a 5-year term beginning January 1, 2020.
 
BCBSTX is offering a technology subsidy to assist the City with implementing the Selerix online benefits
enrollment system. The purpose of the subsidy is to lower the cost of the online system for the City and to
offer a better service experience with BCBSTX. The subsidy paid by BCBSTX equals half the cost.  The
annual cost to the City is $70,000.
 
The advantages of implementing an online enrollment system are: 

Eliminating manual, paper processes surrounding benefits enrollment and administration
Data integrity – accuracy and consistency of data
Common remitter system – City issues one check to Selerix – money and census sent to each vendor
Full census extract to satisfy BCBSTX/Dearborn and other vendor billing requirements
Specialized reporting tools to monitor and collect employee data
Reduced administrative time for Benefits and Accounting staff
Reduced possibility of premium payment discrepancies
Real-time exchange of data for new hires, life events, terminations, and deductions
Employees can review benefits from home or office and check their selections and benefits any time

 
Selerix also has an ACA module that can be added for $22,000 per year.  The 1095 processing is a
cumbersome process for benefits and IT staff - at least one month of labor.  The completed forms are sent
to departments for distribution which jeopardizes protected information.  The individual data needed for
1095 reporting is stored and mined from the Selerix system.
 
The Selerix solution replaces the City’s legacy application developed in-house which is lacking
functionality to meet the current and future needs of our organization.  Saving time by automating
processes allows City resources to concentrate on more strategic projects and initiatives.

Staff recommends adding the online enrollment capability to the Dearborn contract, based on the
substantial need for an online benefits system, and the cost advantage of saved manual labor hours between
the benefits and accounting staff.
 
 



Fiscal Impact
The annual cost to the City is $70,000. Adding the ACA module increases the annual cost to $92,000. 
Rates paid by the City and employees for life insurance, disability insurance, and voluntary products will
remain the same.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Clifton Beck, Director of Human Resources

Attachments
Resolution - Dearborn Adding Selerix Admin System 
Contract - Dearborn Adding Selerix Admin System 









 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 22. 
10/26/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Facilities Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
16057 with BFD Interiors, dba Built for Dreams, for purchase and installation of furniture for the newly
constructed Lubbock Power and Light GIS addition.

Item Summary
This contract consists of the purchase and installation of furniture for the newly constructed LP&L GIS
addition.

In response to RFP 21-16057-TF, 3 firms submitted responses. The proposals were evaluated using the
following criteria: Pricing - 20 points, Project Approach and Proposed Solution - 20 points, Qualifications
and Experience - 20 points, Warranty - 20 points, and Customer Care Plan - 20 points.
 
After the proposals were evaluated, the following ranking was obtained:
  

Contractor Points
BFD Interiors, Lubbock, Texas 94.00
Officewise, Lubbock, Texas 93.06
Tascosa Office Machines, Lubbock, Texas 89.40

 
Based on the evaluation, Facilities Management recommends awarding the contract to the highest ranked
firm, BFD Interiors, dba Built for Dreams, of Lubbock, Texas, for $63,243.19.

Fiscal Impact
This contract for $63,243.19, is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92634, LP&L - GIS Office
Renovations.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Wesley Everett, Director of Facilities Management

Attachments
Resolution - Built for Dreams 
Contract - Built for Dreams 
CIP 92634 Budget Detail - LPandL GIS Addition 
Project Summary 
CIP Detail 

















































































Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Budget

Encumbered/Expended

  Advertising 198$  

  Condray Design Group, Inc. - Contract 14964 84,000 

672,463 

Agenda Item October 26, 2021

63,243 

Encumbered/Expended To Date 819,904 

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

    COL Charges 30,000 

Technology 77,500 

Construction 187,596 

Remaining Appropriation 295,096 

Total Appropriation 1,115,000$  

LP&L GIS Office Addition

City of Lubbock, TX 
Capital Project 

October 26, 2021

92634

Tommy Klein Construction, Inc. - Contract 15578

Built for Dreams, Inc. - Contract 16057



 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

 

Project Summary 

 
RFP 21-16057-TF 

LP&L GIS Addition Furniture 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on August 29 & September 5, 2021. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on BidSync.com and Bonfire.com from August 29 to September 21, 2021. 

9 individuals attended the pre-proposal meeting. 

68 vendors viewed using BidSync.com and Bonfire.com.  

45 vendors downloaded the documents. 

6 vendors were notified separately.  

3 vendors submitted a proposal. 

 



Project Name LP&L - GIS Office Renovations Project Number 92634

Managing Department

Project Manager

Project Classification

Project Status

Project Scope

Facilities Management

Wesley Everett

New Facility

Approved

Construction of a facility measuring approximately 2,500 sq. ft. to house the Geographic Information Systems (GIS) staff and 

operations.  The facility will connect to the existing LP&L Engineering at Municipal Hill.  Project will include furniture, equipment, 

servers and other related equipment for the operations of the GIS department.

Project Justification

Current GIS staff have out grown current space. LP&L will relocate to the Citizens Tower and GIS will relocate to Municipal Hill.

FERC Accounts:  390, 391

Estimated Useful Life:  30 years

Project History

GIS was located in the Lubbock Business Center when LP&L purchased and renovated the facility in the mid 90's.  Due to the 

consolidation of City services, LP&L will relocate to the Citizens Tower.  GIS will relocate to Municipal Hill.

FY 19-20 Design bid awarded, project design commenced.

FY 20-21 Design completed, construction bid awarded, construction started with project completion scheduled for August, 2021.

$1,115,000 was appropriated in the FY 2019-20 Budget, Ord. No. 2019-O0129, October 1, 2019.

Unappropriated Planning Years

Appropriation Detail

Appropriation to

Date

Total Project 

Amount
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

Construction  1,006,500  0  0  0  0  0  0  1,006,500 

Design and Engineering  108,500  0  0  0  0  0  0  108,500 

Total Project Appropriation  1,115,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  1,115,000 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Funding to

Date

Total

FundingFunding Detail
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

FY 2021 20-Year LP&L Revenue 

Bonds

 1,115,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  1,115,000 

Total Funding Sources  1,115,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  1,115,000 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Total ImpactFY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27Operating Budget Impact

 2,000 Facilities Maintenance and Custodial  2,000  2,000  2,000  2,000  2,000  12,000 

Total Operating Budget Impact  2,000  2,000  2,000  2,000  2,000  2,000  12,000 



 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 23. 
10/26/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase Order
31062145, with C&C Manufacturing, LLC, for the purchase of a new 2022 Aljon Landfill Compactor, for
Solid Waste Landfill.

Item Summary
This Purchase Order for $1,096,567 is for a new 2022 Aljon Series 600 landfill compactor, from C&C
Manufacturing, LLC, of Centerville, Iowa, and will be used at the City landfill to move and compact
refuse. This compactor is replacing a 2014 compactor that is past its useful life.
 
This purchase is made through the Houston-Galveston Area Council (HGAC), Contract SM10-20. HGAC
is a regional planning commission created under Acts of the 59th Legislature, Regular Session, 1965,
recodified as Texas Local Government Code, Chapter 391. The HGAC program was established pursuant
to the Texas Interlocal Cooperation Act that allows governmental and qualifying non-profit entities to use
the Act to obtain commonly needed products and services. HGAC purchases conform to the requirements
of Texas competitive bid statutes.

Fiscal Impact
Purchase Order 31062145, for $1,096,567 to C&C Manufacturing, is funded in Capital Improvement
Project 92721 Solid Waste Vehicle Replacement.

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution 
Purchase Order 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 











Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Budget

Encumbered/Expended

-$                                

Agenda Item October 26, 2021

1,096,567                    

Encumbered/Expended To Date 1,096,567                    

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Construction Contingencies 3,433                           

Remaining Appropriation 3,433                           

Total Appropriation 1,100,000$                  

C & C Manufacturing - 2022 Aljon Series 600 Compactor

Solid Waste Vehicle Replacement Tax Notes

October 26, 2021

City of Lubbock, TX

Capital Project 

92721



Project Name Solid Waste Vehicle Replacement FY 21-22 Tax Notes Project Number 92721

Managing Department

Project Manager

Project Classification

Project Status

Project Scope

Fleet Maintenance

Billy Taylor

Replacement Equipment/Fleet

Approved

This project is for the annual vehicle replacement for the General Fund.

5815 Solid Waste Disposal

(1) Al-Jon 600 Series Compactor (replacing 92014018) - $1,100,000

Replacement of vehicles and equipment that are at the end of their useful life.

Project Justification

Project History

Unappropriated Planning Years

Appropriation Detail

Appropriation to

Date

Total Project 

Amount
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

Other Activities  0  1,100,000  0  0  0  0  0  1,100,000 

Total Project Appropriation  0  1,100,000  0  0  0  0  0  1,100,000 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Funding to

Date

Total

FundingFunding Detail
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

FY 2022 General Fund Tax Notes  0  1,100,000  0  0  0  0  0  1,100,000 

Total Funding Sources  0  1,100,000  0  0  0  0  0  1,100,000 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Total ImpactFY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27Operating Budget Impact

 0 No Impact Anticipated  0  0  0  0  0  0 

Total Operating Budget Impact  0  0  0  0  0  0  0 



 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 24. 
10/26/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Parks and Recreation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Amendment
No. 5 to the Lease Agreement, with Joyland Amusement Park, to extend the term until December 31, 2021.

Item Summary
This item is a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute, on behalf of the City of Lubbock, Amendment
No. 5 to the Joyland Amusement Park Lease Agreement, extending the term through December 31, 2021.
The current Lease Agreement will expire on October 31, 2021. Amendment No. 5 extends the existing
agreement through the end of the year, providing time to complete the ongoing negotiations on a new
Lease Agreement.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution - Joyland 
Amendment No. 5 
Amendment No.4 
Lease Agreement 











































































































 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 25. 
10/26/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Civic Center: Consider a resolution approving the recommendation from the Cultural Arts
Grant Review Committee and the Civic Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors, for the 2021 Live Music
Performance Grant Program using Hotel Occupancy Tax funds collected at the end of FY 2019-20.

Item Summary
Civiic Lubbock, Inc. (CLI) administers an allocation of Hotel Occupancy Tax to underwrite local visual
and performing arts programs. The Live Music Performance Grant (LMPG) program is a new matching
grant program available to local hotels and is funded through a portion of the Hotel Occupancy Tax
allocation. The purpose of the LMPG program is to serve as an economic stimulus for local artists who
perform live music in Lubbock and to promote what Lubbock has to offer musically to visitors. For the
2021 LMPG program, the goal is to increase opportunities for local artists to perform by 1) enhancing live
music programs currently offered by local hotels and/or 2) encouraging local hotels to implement a live
music program. 
 
Of the total allocation paid to CLI for 2021 programs, $15,000 was initially set aside for the Live Music
Performance Grant Program.  Two 2021 Cultural Arts Grants awarded in July of 2021 totaling $15,971
were declined by the grant recipients due to the cancellation of their projects. The Cultural Arts Grant
Program (CAGP) Review Committee, who also reviews applications and makes grant recommendations
for the LMPG program, recommended, and the CLI Board approved, utilizing the unused $15,971 for the
2021 LMPG program, thereby making the amount available for the LMPG program a total of $30,971.
 
With the assistance of Visit Lubbock, information about the LMPG program was sent to approximately 70
local hoteliers. Four applications were received, by the September 1, 2021, deadline. The CAGP Review
Committee has recommended full or partial funding for all four applicants.
 
The CAGP Review Committee, comprised of appointments by City Council and representatives of the CLI
Board of Directors, submitted their recommendations to the full CLI Board at their September 22nd
meeting.  These recommendations are now being presented to City Council for approval.
 
The CAGP Review Committee and the CLI Board of Directors are requesting City Council approval of
$30,971.00 in grant awards for the 2021 LMPG program.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager
CAGP Review Committee
CLI Board of Directors



Attachments
Resolution 
CLI Board Letter 
LMPG Award Recommendations 









City of Lubbock/Civic Lubbock, Inc.
         2021 Live Music Performance Grant Program

       Grant Recommendations
 October 26, 2021

  Hotel  
Grant No. Funding Period Hotel New Expanded Requested Recommended Matching Funds

 
2021-001 Jan 2022 - Dec 2022 Embassy Suites by Hilton Lubbock X  $4,000 $4,000 $4,000 New program

    
   

 
 

2021-002 Jan 2022 - Dec 2022 Overton Hotel  X $13,000 $11,300 $11,300 Currently providing music on
 Fri/Sat nights; plan to add
 Thurs/Sun nights.

2021-003 Jan 2022 - Dec 2022 Doubletree by Hilton Lubbock  X $15,600 $13,171 $13,171 Currently providing music on 
  (University Area) Fri/Sat nights and sometimes

Sun brunch.  Plan to add 
3 nights per week.

2021-004 Jan 2022 - Dec 2022 MCM Elegante Hotel & Suites X $2,500 $2,500 $2,500 Currently providing music on
 Fri nights.  Plan to expand to 
 include Sat nights
   

 TOTAL $35,100 $30,971
  

HOT Funding initially set aside for the Live Music Performance Grant Program $15,000  
Additional HOT Funding from unused Cultural Arts Grants $15,971
Total HOT Funding available for the Live Music Performance Grant Program $30,971  

Note:  Two organizations awarded 2021 Cultural Arts Grant funding cancelled their events so that funding will not be used.  Amount of those grant awards totaled $15, 971.  
The CAG Review Committee recommended and the CLI Board approved using the unused $15,971 towards the LMPG program so that the funds can get out into the community. 



 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 26. 
10/26/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Lubbock Power & Light: Consider a resolution ratifying the Second Amendment to the
Master Sales Agreement, by and between the City of Lubbock acting by and through its Electric Utility
Board and City Council, and Itron, Inc., regarding the installation, maintenance, and support services
relating to automatic meters and metering.

Item Summary
On June 14, 2018, the City of Lubbock, acting by and through its Electric Utility Board and City Council,
executed a contract with Itron for the installation of the AMI Solution for the electric and water utilities.
The AMI Solution is important for the efficient operation of the electric and water distribution system.
AMI Solution's key attributes will improve billing accuracy, improve customer service, empower
customers, and enhance reliability.
 
Change Order #1 covered initial electric meter hardware quantity changes. Change Order #2 was to
incorporate an electrician into the project. Change Order #3 was created, not executed. Change Order #4
was for the requested additional scope to provide the Itron Call Center, for a 6-month period, starting in
September 2019. Change Order #5 was for the requested 24-month performance and payment bond to
meet the funding requirements of the Texas Water Development Board.  Change Order #6 was executed to
purchase additional electric meters required to complete the exchange of meters for the AMI Solution. 
Change Order #7 was solely related to the Water AMI project for additional water communication devices.
 
This Change Order #8 increases the amount of the MSA to purchase test electric meters and other
equipment necessary for a testing environment. The additional equipment will enable end-to-end
regression testing for both the AMI and CIS systems along with an increased level of confidence in the
readiness of the system for future upgrades.
 
This Change Order #8 is within the authority delegated to the Director of Electric Utilities under Section
14.4 of the MSA.  Nevertheless, because of recent changes in law, the parties agreed to the Second
Amendment to incorporate new Texas law provisions.

Staff recommends ratification of this Second Amendment, which includes a change order in the amount of
$10,067, to Itron, Inc., or such alternative action as the City Council may deem appropriate.

Fiscal Impact
The cost associated with the Second Amendment is $10,067, and is funded in Account 92457 (Customer
Service Information and Workforce Management Systems).

Staff/Board Recommending
David McCalla, Director of Electric Utilities
Electric Utility Board



Attachments
Resolution - Amendment 2 to ITRON Master Sales Agreement 
Amendment 2 - ITRON Master Sales Agreement 
LP&L Resolution - Amendment 2, ITRON Master Sales Agreement 























 

Regular City Council Meeting 8. 1. 
10/26/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider a resolution authorizing the City Council to cast votes
for candidates to the Lubbock Central Appraisal District Board of Directors.

Item Summary
On September 28, 2021, the City Council approved Resolution No. 2021-R0390, nominating Sonny
Garza, Brady Goen, Greg Jones, Bobby McQueen, and Noe Reynolds as candidates for positions on the
Lubbock Central Appraisal District Board of Directors.

The City of Lubbock is entitled to 1089 votes (from a total of 5000 votes spread among 20 entities in
Lubbock County).  To cast a vote, the City Council must vote in an open meeting, report the vote by
written resolution by the first or second open meeting held after the date the chief appraiser delivers the
ballot. The ballot was delivered to the City of Lubbock on Wednesday, October 20, 2021. The governing
body must then submit its vote to the chief appraiser not later than the 3rd day following the date the
resolution is adopted.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

Attachments
Resolution 
LCAD Letter 













 

Regular City Council Meeting 8. 2. 
10/26/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Airport Board.

Item Summary
Consider appointments to the Airport Board.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



 

Regular City Council Meeting 8. 3. 
10/26/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Business Development: Hold a public hearing on the proposed 2022 assessment rate for
the Northwest Passage Public Improvement District (PID), and consider an ordinance reviewing
classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements of property
in the Northwest Passage PID; approving, adopting, and filing with the City Secretary the assessment roll;
levying 2022 assessments for the cost of certain services and improvements to be provided in the district
during FY 2022-23; fixing charges and liens against the property in the district and against the owners
thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.

Item Summary
This item includes a public hearing followed by consideration of the Assessment Ordinance. The
ordinance to levy assessments is the last activity in the PID establishment process. 

The purpose of the public hearing is to provide the opportunity for property owners in the Northwest
Passage PID to speak in favor of, or in opposition to, the assessment to be levied in the Northwest Passage
PID for 2022. A notice of public hearing was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal, and notices
were mailed to the property owners on Tuesday, October 12, 2021, as required by the statute. At or on the
adjournment of the hearing on proposed assessments, the governing body of the municipality must hear
and pass on any objections to the proposed assessment. 

The proposed assessment for the first year is for tax year 2022 which will fund the budget for FY 2022-23.
The total estimated cost of services provided by the District is estimated at $516,836 over the next five
years. The estimated annual cost rises from $9,000 in the first year to $479,742 in year five. The method of
assessment for the Northwest Passage PID will be based on taxable value. The proposed assessment rate
for 2022 is $0.15 per $100 valuation. All property will be assessed for 2022. 

The funds raised by the assessment will be used to provide design, construction and maintenance of parks
and greenspace, along with any ancillary features or amenities including water features, lighting, signage,
the repair and replacement of said amenities, and any other maintenance needed on projects in the District,
as well as cover the costs of administering the PID.

Fiscal Impact
The estimated assessment that will be collected for 2022, based on projected values, is $7,503.  

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager 

Attachments
Public Hearing Notice 
Assessment Ordinance 



Assessment Ordinance 



 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR THE PROPOSED NORTHWEST 

PASSAGE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
 

Please take notice that on October 26, 2021, at 5:00 P.M., the City Council of Lubbock, Texas, will conduct a public 

hearing in the City Council Chambers of Citizens Tower at 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas 79401. The purpose of 

this hearing is to consider the 2022 assessment rate for property owners in the Northwest Passage Public Improvement 

District (“District”) pursuant to Chapter 372 of the Texas Local Government Code (The “Act”). 

  

All interested persons will be given the opportunity to appear and be heard at such public hearing.  Written or oral 

objections will be considered.  The Assessment Roll will be available for viewing in the City Secretary’s Office after 

October 14, 2021. 

 

The following information is hereby provided concerning the matters to be considered at such hearing: 

 

Nature of the Services and Improvements: (a) the design, construction and maintenance of parks and greens 

together with any ancillary structures, features or amenities such as playgrounds, athletic facilities, pavilions, 

community facilities, bridges, walkways, lighting, benches, trash receptacles and similar items located therein 

along with all necessary grading, drainage and similar infrastructure involved in the construction of such parks 

and greens; landscaping, hardscaping and irrigation; the design, construction and maintenance of water features 

such as lakes, ponds and fountains; distinctive lighting and signs; construction and improvement of pedestrian 

malls, passages or pathways including pedestrian bridges; design, construction and improvement of vehicular 

bridges and low water crossings; design, construction and improvement of community meeting halls or similar 

buildings; design, construction and improvement of community monuments, towers, and other amenity-type 

structures; acquisition and installation of art work; design, acquisition, installation, and improvement of 

telecommunication and similar technology systems; and special supplemental services defined in the Act, 

together with related permits and licenses; and  (b) payment of costs associated with developing and financing 

the public improvements listed in subdivision (i) including costs of establishing, administering, and operating the 

District; (c) The District shall prioritize its expenditures as follows:  (i) design, construction, maintenance, and 

financing for drainage improvements; then (ii) design, construction, maintenance, and financing for park 

improvements; then (iii) selection, acquisition, and maintenance for public art; then (iv) all other allowable 

improvements and related expenditures. The District is to supplement and enhance services within the District, but 

not replace or supplant existing City services provided within the District. 

 

Estimated Cost of the Services and Improvements:  The proposed assessment for the first year is for tax year 2022 

which will fund the budget for FY 2022-23.  The total estimated cost of services provided by the District is estimated 

at $516,836 over the next five years.  The estimated annual cost rises from $9,000 in the first year to $479,742 in 

year five (5).  The costs are based on a proposed assessment rate of $0.15 per $100.00 of valuation through tax year 

2026.   

Boundaries:  The District is located within the City of Lubbock, Texas.  The proposed Northwest Passage Public 

Improvement District (PID) covers a portion of an area in the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, generally 

bounded by Frankford Avenue on the west, Quaker Avenue on the east, Kent Avenue and Highway 84 on the north, 

and Marshall Avenue on the south.  A detailed map of the District and a legal description as well as the Assessment 

Roll is available in the Business Development Department on the 9th Floor of Citizens Tower. 

 

Public hearings are available to all persons regardless of disability.  If you require special assistance, please contact 

the City Secretary’s Office at 775-2025 or write to P.O. Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas, 79457, at least 48 hours in 

advance of the public hearing.  

 

Any questions concerning the matters described in this notice should be directed to: Brianna Gerardi, City of 

Lubbock Business Development Department at 775-3082.   
 













 
EXHIBIT 1 

Service and Assessment Plan Required Attachment 

 
 
 Page ‐ 1 ‐ 

  
Sec. 5.014.  NOTICE OF OBLIGATIONS RELATED TO PUBLIC  IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT.    (a)   A person who 

proposes to sell or otherwise convey  real property that is located in a public improvement district established under 

Subchapter A, Chapter 372, Local Government Code, or Chapter 382, Local Government Code,  shall first give to the 

purchaser of the property the [a] written notice prescribed by Subsection (a‐1) or (a‐2), as applicable. 

(a‐1)  Except for the notice prescribed by Subsection (a‐2), the notice required by Subsection (a) shall be 

executed by the seller and must, except as provided by Subsection (b), read as follows: 

 

NOTICE OF OBLIGATION TO PAY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT ASSESSMENT TO (insert name of municipality or county 

levying assessment), TEXAS CONCERNING THE FOLLOWING PROPERTY 

(insert property address) 

As  the  [a]  purchaser  of  the    real  property  described  above,  you  are  obligated  to  pay  assessments  [an 

assessment] to (insert name of [a] municipality or county, as applicable), Texas, for the costs of a portion of a public 

[an] improvement or services project (the "Authorized Improvements") undertaken for the benefit of the property 

within (insert name of public improvement district) (the "District") created  under (insert Subchapter A, Chapter 372, 

Local Government Code, or Chapter 382, Local Government Code, as applicable). 

AN ASSESSMENT HAS  BEEN  LEVIED AGAINST  YOUR  PROPERTY  FOR  THE AUTHORIZED  IMPROVEMENTS, 

WHICH MAY BE PAID IN FULL AT ANY TIME.  IF THE ASSESSMENT IS NOT PAID IN FULL, IT WILL BE DUE AND PAYABLE 

IN ANNUAL INSTALLMENTS THAT WILL VARY FROM YEAR TO YEAR DEPENDING ON THE AMOUNT OF INTEREST PAID, 

COLLECTION COSTS, ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS, AND DELINQUENCY COSTS. 

The exact  amount of  the assessment may be obtained  from  (insert name of municipality or  county,  as 

applicable). The exact amount of each annual installment will be approved each year by (insert name of city council 

or county commissioners court, as applicable) in the annual service plan update for the district. More information 

about  the  assessments,  including  the  amounts  and  due  dates,  may  be  obtained  from  (insert  name  of  [the] 

municipality or county, as applicable). 

Your failure to pay any assessment or any annual  installment may result  in penalties and  interest being 

added to what you owe or in a lien on and the foreclosure of your property. 

The  undersigned  purchaser  acknowledges  receipt  of  this  notice  before  the  effective  date  of  a  binding 

contract for the purchase of the real property at the address described above. 

Date: __________________ ________________________________ 

Signature of Purchaser 

(a‐2)  For  a  district  described  by  Section  372.0035,  Local  Government  Code,  the  notice  required  by 

Subsection (a) shall be executed by the seller and must, except as provided by Subsection (b), read as follows: 

 

NOTICE OF OBLIGATION TO PAY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT ASSESSMENT TO (insert name of municipality levying 

assessment), TEXAS CONCERNING THE FOLLOWING HOTEL PROPERTY  

(insert property address) 

As  the purchaser of  the real property described above, you are obligated to pay assessments  to  (insert 

name of municipality), Texas, for the costs of a portion of a public improvement or services project (the "Authorized 

Services")  undertaken  for  the  benefit  of  the  property  within  (insert  name  of  public  improvement  district)  (the 

"District") created under Subchapter A, Chapter 372, Local Government Code. 

AN ASSESSMENT HAS BEEN LEVIED AGAINST YOUR PROPERTY FOR THE AUTHORIZED SERVICES, WHICH 

MUST BE PAID IN FULL WITH EVERY PAYMENT BY THE HOTEL OF LOCAL HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX REMITTANCES TO 

THE MUNICIPALITY.    YOUR FAILURE TO PAY THE ASSESSMENT MAY RESULT  IN PENALTIES AND  INTEREST BEING 

ADDED TO WHAT YOU OWE, AND MAY INCLUDE THE PURSUIT OF ANY OTHER REMEDY THAT IS AUTHORIZED UNDER 

SECTION 372.0035(d), LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE. 



 
EXHIBIT 1 

2021 Service and Assessment Plan 

 
 
 Page ‐2 ‐ 

Information  about  the  calculation  of  the  assessment  may  be  obtained  from  (insert  name  of  the 

municipality). The exact assessment rate will be approved each year by (insert name of city council) in the annual 

service plan update for the district. More information about the assessments, including the assessment rate and due 

dates, may be obtained from (insert name of municipality). 

The  undersigned  purchaser  acknowledges  receipt  of  this  notice  before  the  effective  date  of  a  binding 

contract for the purchase of the real property at the address described above. 

Date: __________________ ________________________________ 

Signature of Purchaser 

(b)  The  seller  or  the municipality  or  county  that  created  the  public  improvement  district may  provide 

additional information regarding the district in the notice prescribed by Subsection (a‐1) or (a‐2), including whether 

an assessment has been levied, the amount of the assessment, and the payment schedule for assessments.   

(c)  This section does not apply to a transfer: 

(1)  under a court order or foreclosure sale; 

(2)  by a trustee in bankruptcy; 

(3)  to a mortgagee by a mortgagor or successor in interest or to a beneficiary of a deed of trust by 

a trustor or successor in interest; 

(4)  by a mortgagee or a beneficiary under a deed of  trust who has acquired the  land at a sale 

conducted under a power of sale under a deed of trust or a sale under a court‐ordered foreclosure or has acquired 

the land by a deed in lieu of foreclosure; 

(5)  by  a  fiduciary  in  the  course  of  the  administration  of  a  decedent's  estate,  guardianship, 

conservatorship, or trust; 

(6)  from one co‐owner to another co‐owner of an undivided interest in the real property; 

(7)  to a spouse or a person in the lineal line of consanguinity of the seller; 

(8)  to or from a governmental entity; or 

(9)  of only a mineral interest, leasehold interest, or security interest. 

(d)  For  the  purposes  of  this  section,  a  contract  for  the  purchase  and  sale  of  real  property  having  a 

performance period of less than six months is considered a sale requiring notice  

 





 

Regular City Council Meeting 8. 4. 
10/26/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Business Development: Hold a public hearing for the City Council to consider the
creation of a Public Improvement District for Willow Bend Villas, which covers a portion of an area in the
City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, generally bounded by 19th Street on the north, Kelsey Avenue
on the east, and railroad tracks on the south and west.

Item Summary
The purpose of this public hearing is to present information to the City Council regarding the advisability
of establishing a Public Improvement District (PID) pursuant to Chapter 372 of the Texas Local
Government Code, and to provide an opportunity for property owners in the proposed public improvement
district to speak in favor of, or in opposition to, the creation of a PID. 

The proposed PID is for the purposes of financing improvements and services related to:  
(i) acquisition, construction, or drainage facilities or improvements, (a) the design, construction, and
maintenance of parks and green spaces, together with any ancillary structures, features or amenities
such as playgrounds, splash pads, pool(s), athletic facilities, pavilions, community facilities,
irrigation, walkways, lighting, benches, trash receptacles, and any similar items located therein along
with all necessary grading, drainage, and similar infrastructure involved in the construction of such
parks and greens; landscaping, hardscaping, and irrigation; and
(ii) payment of costs associated with developing and financing the public improvements listed in the
subdivision (i) including costs of establishing, administering, and operating the District. 

The District is to supplement and enhance services within the District, but not replace or supplant existing
City services provided within the District. 

The Willow Bend Villas PID will be a defined assessment area providing specific types of services for a
given area. The City Council approved the calling of a Public Hearing at the September 28, 2021 City
Council Meeting. A notice of Public Hearing was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal, and
notices were mailed to the property owners on October 10, 2021, as required by the statute. 

As a reminder, the City of Lubbock received a petition from property owners requesting that the City of
Lubbock establish a PID for the proposed Willow Bend Villas development area. The area covers
approximately 63.1982 acres. PID establishment can only be initiated by a petition of property owners
meeting two tests outline in the statute. The petition must be signed by: 

(a) Owners representing more than 50% of the appraised value of the taxable real property liable for
assessment; and 
(b) Record owners of property liable for assessment under the PID petition who:  

Constitute more than 50% of all the record owners of property liable for assessment and 1.
Own taxable real property that constitutes more than 50% of the area liable for assessment within the
PID. 

2.



The petition received by the City of Lubbock was signed by authorized agents of Betenbough Homes,
LLC, owners of 100% of the total appraised value for the area and 100% of the total land area contained in
the proposed PID. The petition was examined, verified, and found to meet the requirements of Section
372.005(b) of the Texas Local Government Code and to be sufficient for consideration by the City of
Lubbock. 

The owner of the property submitting the petition paid the application fee of $5,000, which should cover
the cost of creating the PID, with any remaining money reimbursed to the developer. If the cost of creating
the PID exceeds $5,000, the developer will reimburse the City for the remaining cost. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Public Hearing Notice 
Map 



 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR THE PROPOSED WILLOW 

BEND VILLAS PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
 

Please take notice that on October 26, 2021, at 5:00 PM, the City Council of Lubbock, Texas, will conduct a public 

hearing in the City Council Chamber of Citizens Tower at 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, TX 79401. The purpose of this 

hearing is to consider the establishment of the Willow Bend Villas Public Improvement District (“District”) pursuant 

to Chapter 372 of the Texas Local Government Code (The “Act”). 

  

All interested persons will be given the opportunity to appear and be heard at such public hearing.  Written or oral 

objections will be considered.  The hearing may be adjourned from time to time until the City Council makes findings 

by ordinance as to the advisability of the District. 

 

The following information is hereby provided concerning the matters to be considered at such hearing: 

 

Nature of the Services and Improvements:  The general nature of the proposed public improvements is: (i) 

acquisition, construction, or drainage facilities or improvements, (ii) the design, construction and maintenance of 

parks and green spaces, together with any ancillary structures, features or amenities such as playgrounds, splash pads, 

pool(s), athletic facilities, pavilions, community facilities, irrigation, walkways, lighting, benches, trash receptacles 

and any similar items located there in along with all necessary grading, drainage, and similar infrastructure involved 

in the construction of such parks and greens; landscaping, hardscaping and irrigation; and (iii) payment of costs 

associated with developing and financing the public improvements listed in subdivision (iv) including costs of 

establishing, administering and operating the District.  

 

Estimated Cost of the Services and Improvements:  The proposed assessment for the first year is for tax year 2022 

which will fund the budget for FY 2022-23.  The total estimated cost of services provided by the District is estimated 

at $136,852 over the next five years.  The estimated annual cost rises from $7,000 in the first year to $33,434 in year 

five (5).   The costs are based on a proposed assessment rate of $0.15 per $100.00 of valuation through tax year 2026.  

 
Boundaries: The proposed boundaries of the Willow Bend Villas Public Improvement District (PID) covers a portion 

of an area in the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, generally bounded by 19th Street to the north, the alley 

between Kelsey Avenue and Kenwood Avenue to the east, and railroad tracks to the south and west. 

 

Method of Assessment: Properties will be assessed based on the City’s “net taxable value” as established by the 

Lubbock Central Appraisal District.  Each assessment will be determined using the formula:  (net taxable value 

divided by 100) multiplied by assessment rate. 

 

Apportionment of Cost:  The District is to supplement and enhance services within the District, but not replace or 

supplant existing City services provided within the District.  One hundred percent of the maintenance of the public 

improvements and any construction of new public improvements included in the Service Plan will be funded by the 

Public Improvement District. 

 

Public hearings are available to all persons regardless of disability.  If you require special assistance, please contact 

the City Secretary’s Office at 775-2025 or write to P.O. Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas, 79457, at least 48 hours in 

advance of the public hearing.  

 

Any questions concerning the matters described in this notice should be directed to: Brianna Gerardi, City of 

Lubbock Business Development Department at 775-3082.   



19TH ST

21ST ST

20TH ST
LA

NG
FO

RD
 AV

KO
KO

M
O 

AV

KI
RK

SE
Y A

V

KE
NW

OO
D 

AV

KE
LS

EY
 AV

JA
SO

N 
AV

25TH ST

Willow Bend Villas Public Improvement District

0 500 1,000250
Feet

¯

Willow Bend Villas PID
Parcels
Lot-Block Lines As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government 

Code, this product is for informational purposes and may not have been 
prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It 
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and represents only the 
approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Digital Orthophotography - April 2020

5/21/2021



 

Regular City Council Meeting 8. 5. 
10/26/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution making findings and authorizing
establishment of the Willow Bend Villas Public Improvement District (PID), which covers a portion of an
area in the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, generally bounded by 19th Street on the north,
Kelsey Avenue on the east, and railroad tracks on the south and west.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock received a petition from property owners requesting that the City of Lubbock
establish a Public Improvement District (PID) for the proposed Willow Bend Villas development area. The
area covers approximately 63.1982 acres. PID establishment can only be initiated by a petition of property
owners meeting two tests outlined in the statute. The petition must be signed by: 

(a) Owners of taxable real property representing more than 50% of the appraised value of the taxable real
property liable for assessment; and 
(b) Record owners of property liable for assessment under the PID petition who: 

Constitute more than 50% of all the record owners of property liable for assessment under the
proposal; or

1.

Own taxable real property that constitutes more than 50% of the area of all taxable real property that
is liable for assessment under the proposal. 

2.

The petition received by the City of Lubbock was signed by authorized agents of property owners of
100% of the total appraised value for the area and 100% of the total land area contained in the proposed
PID. The petition has been examined, verified, and found to meet the requirements of Section 372.005(b)
of the Texas Local Government Code and to be sufficient for consideration by the City of Lubbock. 

The Willow Bend Villas PID is a defined assessment area providing specific types of services for a given
area. The purpose of the Northwest Passage PID will be:

(i) acquisition, construction, or drainage facilities or improvements, (a) the design, construction, and
maintenance of parks and green spaces, together with any ancillary structures, features or amenities such as
playgrounds, splash pads, pool(s), athletic facilities, pavilions, community facilities, irrigation, walkways,
lighting, benches, trash receptacles, and any similar items located therein along with all necessary grading,
drainage, and similar infrastructure involved in the construction of such parks and greens; landscaping,
hardscaping, and irrigation; and

(ii) payment of costs associated with developing and financing the public improvements listed in
subdivision (i) including costs of establishing, administering, and operating the District. 

The owner of the property submitting the petition paid the application fee of $5,000, which should cover
the cost of creating the Public Improvement District, with any money reimbursed to the Developer. If the
cost of creating the Public Improvement District exceeds $5,000, the Developer will reimburse the City
for the remaining cost. 



One of the statutory requirements for establishing the Public Improvement District is that the City Council
hold a Public Hearing regarding the advisability of creating the District. A notice of Public Hearing was
published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal, and notices were mailed to the property owners on October
10, 2021, as required by the statute. 

Pursuant to Chapter 372 of the Texas Local Government Code, this resolution illustrates the following
findings:  

The advisability of the services; 1.
The nature of the services;2.
The estimated cost of the services;3.
The boundaries of the public improvement district; 4.
The method of assessment; and 5.
The apportionment of costs between the district and the municipality as a whole.6.

The City Council is required to make these findings in order to create the PID.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager 

Attachments
Resolution 
Exhibit 1 
Exhibit 2 
Exhibit 3 















































 
EXHIBIT 3 

Service and Assessment Plan Required Attachment 

 
 
 Page ‐ 1 ‐ 

  
Sec. 5.014.  NOTICE OF OBLIGATIONS RELATED TO PUBLIC  IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT.    (a)   A person who 

proposes to sell or otherwise convey  real property that is located in a public improvement district established under 

Subchapter A, Chapter 372, Local Government Code, or Chapter 382, Local Government Code,  shall first give to the 

purchaser of the property the [a] written notice prescribed by Subsection (a‐1) or (a‐2), as applicable. 

(a‐1)  Except for the notice prescribed by Subsection (a‐2), the notice required by Subsection (a) shall be 

executed by the seller and must, except as provided by Subsection (b), read as follows: 

 

NOTICE OF OBLIGATION TO PAY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT ASSESSMENT TO (insert name of municipality or county 

levying assessment), TEXAS CONCERNING THE FOLLOWING PROPERTY 

(insert property address) 

As  the  [a]  purchaser  of  the    real  property  described  above,  you  are  obligated  to  pay  assessments  [an 

assessment] to (insert name of [a] municipality or county, as applicable), Texas, for the costs of a portion of a public 

[an] improvement or services project (the "Authorized Improvements") undertaken for the benefit of the property 

within (insert name of public improvement district) (the "District") created  under (insert Subchapter A, Chapter 372, 

Local Government Code, or Chapter 382, Local Government Code, as applicable). 

AN ASSESSMENT HAS  BEEN  LEVIED AGAINST  YOUR  PROPERTY  FOR  THE AUTHORIZED  IMPROVEMENTS, 

WHICH MAY BE PAID IN FULL AT ANY TIME.  IF THE ASSESSMENT IS NOT PAID IN FULL, IT WILL BE DUE AND PAYABLE 

IN ANNUAL INSTALLMENTS THAT WILL VARY FROM YEAR TO YEAR DEPENDING ON THE AMOUNT OF INTEREST PAID, 

COLLECTION COSTS, ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS, AND DELINQUENCY COSTS. 

The exact  amount of  the assessment may be obtained  from  (insert name of municipality or  county,  as 

applicable). The exact amount of each annual installment will be approved each year by (insert name of city council 

or county commissioners court, as applicable) in the annual service plan update for the district. More information 

about  the  assessments,  including  the  amounts  and  due  dates,  may  be  obtained  from  (insert  name  of  [the] 

municipality or county, as applicable). 

Your failure to pay any assessment or any annual  installment may result  in penalties and  interest being 

added to what you owe or in a lien on and the foreclosure of your property. 

The  undersigned  purchaser  acknowledges  receipt  of  this  notice  before  the  effective  date  of  a  binding 

contract for the purchase of the real property at the address described above. 

Date: __________________ ________________________________ 

Signature of Purchaser 

(a‐2)  For  a  district  described  by  Section  372.0035,  Local  Government  Code,  the  notice  required  by 

Subsection (a) shall be executed by the seller and must, except as provided by Subsection (b), read as follows: 

 

NOTICE OF OBLIGATION TO PAY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT ASSESSMENT TO (insert name of municipality levying 

assessment), TEXAS CONCERNING THE FOLLOWING HOTEL PROPERTY  

(insert property address) 

As  the purchaser of  the real property described above, you are obligated to pay assessments  to  (insert 

name of municipality), Texas, for the costs of a portion of a public improvement or services project (the "Authorized 

Services")  undertaken  for  the  benefit  of  the  property  within  (insert  name  of  public  improvement  district)  (the 

"District") created under Subchapter A, Chapter 372, Local Government Code. 

AN ASSESSMENT HAS BEEN LEVIED AGAINST YOUR PROPERTY FOR THE AUTHORIZED SERVICES, WHICH 

MUST BE PAID IN FULL WITH EVERY PAYMENT BY THE HOTEL OF LOCAL HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX REMITTANCES TO 

THE MUNICIPALITY.    YOUR FAILURE TO PAY THE ASSESSMENT MAY RESULT  IN PENALTIES AND  INTEREST BEING 

ADDED TO WHAT YOU OWE, AND MAY INCLUDE THE PURSUIT OF ANY OTHER REMEDY THAT IS AUTHORIZED UNDER 

SECTION 372.0035(d), LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE. 



 
EXHIBIT 3 

2021 Service and Assessment Plan 

 
 
 Page ‐2 ‐ 

Information  about  the  calculation  of  the  assessment  may  be  obtained  from  (insert  name  of  the 

municipality). The exact assessment rate will be approved each year by (insert name of city council) in the annual 

service plan update for the district. More information about the assessments, including the assessment rate and due 

dates, may be obtained from (insert name of municipality). 

The  undersigned  purchaser  acknowledges  receipt  of  this  notice  before  the  effective  date  of  a  binding 

contract for the purchase of the real property at the address described above. 

Date: __________________ ________________________________ 

Signature of Purchaser 

(b)  The  seller  or  the municipality  or  county  that  created  the  public  improvement  district may  provide 

additional information regarding the district in the notice prescribed by Subsection (a‐1) or (a‐2), including whether 

an assessment has been levied, the amount of the assessment, and the payment schedule for assessments.   

(c)  This section does not apply to a transfer: 

(1)  under a court order or foreclosure sale; 

(2)  by a trustee in bankruptcy; 

(3)  to a mortgagee by a mortgagor or successor in interest or to a beneficiary of a deed of trust by 

a trustor or successor in interest; 

(4)  by a mortgagee or a beneficiary under a deed of  trust who has acquired the  land at a sale 

conducted under a power of sale under a deed of trust or a sale under a court‐ordered foreclosure or has acquired 

the land by a deed in lieu of foreclosure; 

(5)  by  a  fiduciary  in  the  course  of  the  administration  of  a  decedent's  estate,  guardianship, 

conservatorship, or trust; 

(6)  from one co‐owner to another co‐owner of an undivided interest in the real property; 

(7)  to a spouse or a person in the lineal line of consanguinity of the seller; 

(8)  to or from a governmental entity; or 

(9)  of only a mineral interest, leasehold interest, or security interest. 

(d)  For  the  purposes  of  this  section,  a  contract  for  the  purchase  and  sale  of  real  property  having  a 

performance period of less than six months is considered a sale requiring notice  

 



 

Regular City Council Meeting 8. 6. 
10/26/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Business Development: Hold a public hearing regarding the proposed creation of the
City of Lubbock Property Assessed Clean Energy Program (Lubbock City PACE).

Item Summary
On October 12, 2021, the City Council approved a Resolution of Intent to create the City of Lubbock
Property Assessed Clean Energy Program (Lubbock City PACE). The next step in the creation of the
Lubbock City PACE Program is to hold a Public Hearing, per the requirements of the PACE Act as set
forth in Texas Local Government Code Chapter 399. 

The public will have the opportunity to comment on the proposed Lubbock City PACE Program,
including the report that was made available on the City of Lubbock website, per the requirements of
Section 399.008 in the Texas Local Government Code. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager 

Attachments
Report 



 

1 
 

 
 
 
 

REPORT REQUIRED BY TEXAS LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 399.009 
 

FOR PROPOSED PROPERTY ASSESSED CLEAN ENERGY (PACE) PROGRAM 
 

 
This Report is adopted by the City Council for the City of Lubbock, Texas (“Local 
Government”) Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) Program (the “Program”) in 
accordance with the requirements of the Property Assessed Clean Energy Act (the “PACE 
Act”) as set forth in Texas Local Government Code Chapter 399. 
 
The Local Government and its constituents benefit when older existing buildings are modified 
with new technology and equipment that increases energy efficiency and reduces water 
consumption.  As described in this Report, the Local Government is establishing the commercial 
PACE Program to encourage private sector investment in energy efficiency and water 
conservation.  The PACE Program will be offered to property owners on a strictly voluntary 
basis and will not require the use of any public funds or resources. 
 
Authorized under the PACE Act enacted in 2013, the PACE program is an innovative financing 
program that enables private sector owners of privately owned commercial, industrial, and multi-
family residential properties with five or more dwelling units to obtain low-cost, long-term loans 
to pay for water conservation, energy-efficiency improvements, and renewable energy retrofits.  
PACE loans provide up to 100% financing of all project costs, with little or no up-front out-of-
pocket cost to the owner.  The Local Government has chosen to follow the administrative 
principles, program processes, and model documents of the uniform Texas PACE in a Box 
model program.1  
 
Loans made under the PACE Program will be secured by assessments on the property that are 
voluntarily imposed by the owner.  Assessments may be amortized over the projected life of the 
improvements. The utility cost savings derived from improvements financed with PACE loans 
are expected to equal or exceed the amount of the assessment.  In turn, these improvements are 
able to generate positive cash flow upon installation because the debt service will be less than the 
savings.    
 
PACE assessments are tied to the property and follow title from one owner to the next.  Each 
owner is responsible only for payment of the assessments accruing during its period of 
ownership.  When the property is sold, the payment obligation for the remaining balance of the 
assessment is transferred automatically to the next owner.  As a result, the program will help 
property owners overcome market barriers that often discourage investment in energy efficiency 
and water conservation improvements.   
 

 
1  https://www.keepingpaceintexas.org/pace-in-a-box 



 

2 
 

1. Eligible Properties 
 
The Local Government’s PACE program is a strictly voluntary program. All private sector 
owners of Eligible Properties located within the Local Government’s PACE region may 
participate in PACE financing.  “Eligible Properties” include commercial, industrial, and multi-
family residential properties with five or more dwelling units.  Government, residential2, and 
undeveloped property and property undergoing development at the time of the assessment are 
not Eligible Properties.   
 

2. Qualified Improvements 
 
PACE financing may be used to pay for Qualified Improvements to Eligible Properties. 
“Qualified Improvements” are permanent improvements intended to decrease water or energy 
consumption or demand, including a product, device, or interacting group of products or devices 
on the customer’s side of the meter that use energy technology to generate electricity, provide 
thermal energy, or regulate temperature.  Under the PACE Act, products or devices that are not 
permanently fixed to real property are not considered to be Qualified Improvements. 
 
The following items may constitute Qualified Improvements: 

• High efficiency heating, ventilating and air conditioning (“HVAC”) systems 
• High efficiency chillers, boilers, and furnaces 
• High efficiency water heating systems 
• Energy management systems and controls 
• Distributed generation systems 
• High efficiency lighting system upgrades  
• Building enclosure and envelope improvements 
• Water conservation and wastewater recovery and reuse systems  
• Combustion and burner upgrades  
• Heat recovery and steam traps  
• Water management systems and controls (indoor and outdoor)  
• High efficiency irrigation equipment 

 
3. Benefits of PACE to Property Owners 

 
The PACE program will enable owners of Eligible Properties to overcome traditional barriers to 
capital investments in energy efficiency and water conservation improvements, such as 
unattractive returns on investment, split incentives between landlords and tenants, and 
uncertainty of recouping the investment upon sale of the property.  
 
By financing Qualified Improvements through the program, property owners may achieve utility 
cost savings that exceed the amount of the assessment and reduce their exposure to utility price 
volatility.  As a result, the value of the property will be enhanced, and the owner will only be 
obligated to pay the assessment installments that accrue during its period of ownership of the 
property.  Additionally, by investing in energy efficiency and water conservation with PACE 

 
2  This encompasses single family residential and any multi-family properties with fewer than five units.  



 

3 
 

financing, property owners may also qualify for various rebate, tax credit, and incentive 
programs offered by utility providers and state or federal governmental authorities to encourage 
these types of investments. 
 

4. Benefits of PACE to the Local Government 
 
Among other things, projects financed through PACE will:  
 

• Enable property owners and occupants to save substantial amounts in utility costs, 
• Reduce demand on the electricity grid 
• Mitigate greenhouse gas emissions associated with energy generation 
• Enhance the value and efficiency of existing buildings  
• Boost the local economy by creating new job opportunities and new business 

opportunities for contractors, engineers, commercial lenders, professionals, and 
equipment vendors and manufactures 

• Increase business retention and expansion in the PACE region by enabling cost effective 
energy and water saving updates to existing property 

• Improve productivity through optimized energy usage 
• Support the State’s water conservation plan 
• Better enable the Local Government to meet its water conservation goals 

  
Finally, through the reduction in energy consumption as a result of the PACE program, there will 
be a decreased demand for power resulting in lower emissions from power plants. EPA 
regulations have significant impacts on air quality standards in Texas. Being non-attainment for 
priority pollutants in the Clean Air Act endangers federal transportation funding.  
 
The PACE program requires minimal support from the Local Government. It is designed to be 
self-sustaining.  Furthermore, because the PACE program is tax neutral, it achieves all of the 
benefits listed in this Report without imposing a burden on the Local Government’s general 
fund. 
 
The 84th Texas Legislature added a provision that explicitly shields the Local Government and 
its employees, members of the governing body of a local government, employees of a local 
government, and board members, executives, employees, and contractors of a third party who 
enter into a contract with a local government to provide administrative services for a program 
under this chapter.3   
 

5. The Benefits of PACE to Lenders 
 
PACE loans are attractive to lenders because they are very secure investments. Like a property 
tax lien, the assessment lien securing the PACE loan has priority over other liens on the property. 
Therefore, the risk of loss from non-payment of a PACE loan is low compared to most other 
types of loans. PACE assessments provide lenders with an attractive new product to assist 

 
3  TX. Local Gov’t Code §399.019. In the 85th legislature, HB 2654 clarified that the personal immunity 
provisions apply to all elected officials performing rights and duties under chapter 399 of the Local Government 
Code. 



 

4 
 

existing and new customers in addressing an almost universal pent-up demand for needed 
commercial and industrial property equipment modernization. In order to protect the interests of 
holders of existing mortgage loans on the property, the PACE Act requires their written consent 
to the PACE assessment as a condition to obtaining a PACE loan. 
 

6. The Benefits of PACE to Contractors, Engineers, and Manufacturers 
 

PACE loans provide attractive sources of financing for water and energy saving retrofits and 
upgrades, thereby encouraging property owners to make substantial investments in existing 
commercial and industrial buildings. As a result, PACE will unlock business opportunities for 
contractors, engineers, and manufacturers throughout the commercial and industrial sectors. 
 

7. Administration of the Local Government PACE Program 
 

Under the PACE Act, the establishment and operation of the program are considered to be 
governmental functions.4  The PACE Act further authorizes the Local Government to enter into a 
contract with a third party to provide administrative services for the PACE program (the 
“Authorized Representative”).  The Local Government will delegate administration of the 
PACE program to Texas PACE Authority, a qualified, non-profit organization that can 
administer the program at no cost to the Local Government.  
 
The Authorized Representative’s role is to serve as an extension of the local government staff to 
provide oversight of the program to ensure best practices and consumer protections at the lowest 
possible cost to the property owner in a transparent and ethical manner and to provide education 
and outreach.  
 
The Authorized Representative will be funded by administrative fees paid by the property 
owners establishing a PACE project, charitable grants or other authorized sources of revenue.  
The Authorized Representative will not receive compensation or reimbursement from the Local 
Government.  
   

8. Eligible Lenders  
 
The PACE Act does not set criteria for financial institutions or investors to be PACE lenders. 
The Local Government will follow best practices of other PACE programs and the Texas PACE 
in a Box model program by recommending that lenders be: 

§ Any federally insured depository institution such as a bank, savings bank, savings and 
loan association and federal or state credit union; 

§ Any insurance company authorized to conduct business in one or more states; 
§ Any registered investment company, registered business development company, or a  

Small Business Administration small business investment company; 
§ Any publicly traded entity;  or 
§ Any private entity that: 

o Has a minimum net worth of $5 million; and 

 
4  TX Local Government Code §399.003(b) 



 

5 
 

o Has at least three years’ experience in business or industrial lending or commercial 
real estate lending (including multifamily lending), or has a lending officer that has 
at least three years’ experience in business or industrial lending or commercial real 
estate lending; and 

o Can provide independent certification as to availability of funds; and 
§ All lenders must have the ability to carry out, either directly or through a servicer, the 

bookkeeping and customer service work necessary to manage the assessment accounts. 
 
Any lender can participate in the PACE program as long as it is a financially stable entity with 
the ability to carry out, either directly or through a servicer, the bookkeeping and customer 
service work necessary to manage the assessment accounts.  The property owner, not the Local 
Government or the Authorized Representative, selects the lender.  
 
The Authorized Representative will not guarantee or imply that funding will automatically be 
provided from a third-party lender, imply or create any endorsement of, or responsibility for, any 
lender; or create any type of express or implied favoritism for any eligible lender. 
 

9. Components of the PACE Program 
 

As required under Section 399.009 of the PACE Act, the following describes all aspects of the 
PACE Program:  
 

a. Map of Region.   A map of the boundaries of the region included in the 
program is attached to this Report as Exhibit 1.  The region encompasses the 
Local Government limits.  

 
b. Form Contract with Owner.   A form contract between the Local Government 

and the record owner of the Eligible Property is attached as Exhibit 2.  It 
specifies the terms of the assessment under the PACE program and the financing 
to be provided by an Eligible Lender of the property owner’s choosing. 

  
c. Form Contract with Lender.   A form contract between the Local Government 

and the Eligible Lender chosen by a property owner is attached to this Report as 
Exhibit 3. It specifies the financing and servicing of the debt through 
assessments.   

 
Form Notice of Contractual Assessment Lien.  A form Notice of Assessment Lien 
to be filed by the Local Government with the County Clerk is attached to this 
Report as Exhibit 4. 
 

d. Qualified Improvement.    The following types of projects are qualified 
improvements that may be subject to contractual assessments under the PACE 
program: 

 
Projects that (a) involve the installation or modification of a 
permanent improvement fixed to privately owned commercial, 



 

6 
 

industrial or residential real property with five (5) or more 
dwelling units;5 and (b) are intended to decrease energy or water 
consumption or demand by installing a product, device, or 
interacting group of products or devices on the customer’s side of 
the meter that uses energy technology to generate electricity, 
provide thermal energy, or regulate temperature. 6   

 
A sample list of potential Qualified Improvements appears in Section 2 above.  
 
The PACE program may not be used to finance improvements to undeveloped 
lots or lots undergoing development at the time of the assessment, or for the 
purchase or installation of products or devices not permanently fixed to real 
property.7  
 

e. Authorized Representative.    HB 3187 was signed into law on June 16, 2015.  It 
authorizes the Local Government to delegate administration of the PACE 
program to a third-party “Authorized Representative.” The Local Government 
may delegate all official administrative responsibilities, such as the execution of 
individual contracts with property owners and lenders, to an Authorized 
Representative. This relationship will be monitored and maintained by the City 
Manager or his designee.  

 
f. Project Review.  Track and provide a public overview with savings metrics for 

all PACE projects 
 

g. Plans for Insuring Sufficient Capital8.   Lenders will extend loans to finance 
Qualified Improvements. Financing documents executed between owners and 
lenders will impose a contractual assessment on Eligible Property to repay the 
owner’s financing of the Qualified Improvements.    The lenders will ensure that 
property owners demonstrate the financial ability to fulfill the financial 
obligations to be repaid through contractual assessments.   

  
h. No Use of Bonds or Public Funds.   The Local Government does not intend to 

issue bonds or use any other public monies to fund PACE projects.  Property 
owners will obtain all financing from the Eligible Lenders they choose.   

i. Limit on Length of Loan.   One of the statutory criteria of a PACE loan is that 
the assessment payment period cannot exceed the useful life of the Qualified 
Improvement that is the basis for the loan and assessment. As part of the 
application process, the property owners will submit an independent third-party 
review prepared by a licensed engineer showing the water or energy baseline 

 
5  TX. Local Gov’t Code §399.002(5). 
6  TX. Local Gov’t Code §399.002(3). 
7  TX. Local Gov’t Code §399.004. 
8  The Texas PACE Authority’s website (www.texaspaceauthority.org) offers a non-exhaustive list of 
interested and qualified lenders to assist property owners in funding PACE projects in Texas. 



 

7 
 

conditions and the projected water or energy savings.  This review will aid the 
Authorized Representative in making a determination that the period of the 
requested assessment does not exceed the useful life of the Qualified 
Improvement.   

 
j. Application Process.   The Authorized Representative will accept applications 

from property owners seeking to finance Qualified Improvements under the 
program.  Each application must be accompanied by the required application fee 
and must include:  

(1) A description of the specific Qualified Improvements to be installed or 
modified on the property,  
(2) A description of the specific real property to which the Qualified 
Improvements will be permanently fixed, and  
(3) The total amount of financing, including any transaction costs, to be 
repaid through assessments.  

 
Based on this information, the Authorized Representative may issue a preliminary 
letter indicating that, subject to verification of all requirements at closing, the 
proposed project appears to meet program requirements.  Based on this 
preliminary letter, the property owner may initiate an independent third-party 
review of the project and submit the project to Eligible Lenders for approval of 
financing.   
 
Once the above processes are completed, the property owner will submit the 
application to the Authorized Representative to obtain preliminary approval.  The 
property owner is expected to produce the following documentation prior to 
closing on the PACE loan:  

(1)  A Report conducted by a qualified, independent third-party reviewer, 
showing water or energy baseline conditions and the projected water or 
energy savings, or the amount of renewable energy generated attributable 
to the project;  
(2) Such financial information about the owner and the property as the 
lender chosen by the owner deems necessary to determine that the owner 
has demonstrated the financial ability to fulfill the financial obligations to 
be paid through assessments; and  
(3) All other information required by the Authorized Representative.   

 
k. Financial Eligibility Requirements.    The Authorized Representative will 

determine whether the owner, the property and the improvements are eligible for 
financing under the program.  The Eligible Lender chosen by the owner will 
determine whether the owner has demonstrated the financial ability to repay the 
financial obligations to be collected through contractual assessments.  The 
statutory method9 for ensuring such a demonstration of financial ability must be 
based on appropriate underwriting factors, including the following:  

 
9  TX. Local Gov’t Code §399.009(b). 



 

8 
 

(1) verification that the person requesting to participate in the program is 
the legal record owner of the benefitted property,  
(2) the applicant is current on mortgage and property tax payments,  
(3) the applicant is not insolvent or in bankruptcy proceedings,  
(4) the title of the benefitted property is not in dispute; and  
(5) there is an appropriate ratio of the amount of the assessment to the 
assessed value of the property.  The Local Government determines that it 
will follow the Texas PACE in a Box model program recommendation for 
determining the appropriate loan to assessed value of the property.  
 
The Local Government determines to be eligible for PACE financing, the 
projected savings derived from the Qualified Improvement must be greater 
than the cost of the PACE assessment and lien over the life of the 
assessment (i.e., the Savings to Investment Ratio (SIR) should be greater 
than one, SIR>1). A third-party lender and a for profit-property owner 
may request a waiver in writing for a project with an SIR < 1 and address 
the interests of tenants and future property owners.  The Authorized 
Representative may consider factors in a variance request including:  

(a). Are there other environmental benefits such as air or water 
quality or resiliency that are not captured in the SIR analysis;   
(b) Will the proposed qualifying improvements generate 
environmental marketable credits that can be monetized?  
(c). What is the SIR calculation for the project (how far below 1?); 
(d). If the SIR is < 1 over the term of the assessment, is the SIR > 1 
over the useful life of the equipment? 
(e). What is the impact of a variance request on affected third 
parties? and  
(f) Other information the owner and lender wish to submit 
regarding the impact of the qualified improvements on the 
company and the community.  

 
l. Mortgage Holder Notice and Consent.   As a condition to the execution of a 

written contract between the Authorized Representative and the property owner 
imposing an assessment under the program, the holder of any mortgage lien on 
the property must be given notice of the owner’s intention to participate in the 
program on or before the 30th day before the date the contract is executed, and 
the owner must obtain the written consent of all mortgage holders.10   

 
m. Imposition of Assessment.   The Authorized Representative will enter into a 

written contract with the property owner, only after:  
(1) The property owner delivers to the Authorized Representative written 
consent of all mortgage lien holders;  
(2) The Authorized Representative’s determination that the owner and the 
property are eligible to participate in the program, that the proposed 
improvements are reasonably likely to decrease energy or water 

 
10  TX. Local Gov’t Code §399.010. 



 

9 
 

consumption or demand, and that the period of the requested assessment 
does not exceed the useful life of the Qualified Improvements; and  
(3) The Eligible Lender notifies the Authorized Representative that the 
owner has demonstrated the financial ability to fulfill the financial 
obligations to be repaid through contractual assessments.    

 
The contract will impose a contractual assessment on the owner’s Eligible 
Property to repay the lender’s financing of the Qualified Improvements.  The 
Authorized Representative will file “A Notice of Contractual Assessment Lien,” 
in substantially the form in Exhibit 4 in the Official Public Records of the County 
in which the property is located, as notice to the public of the assessment, from 
the date of filing.  The contract and the notice must contain the amount of the 
assessment, the legal description of the property, the name of the property owner, 
and a reference to the statutory assessment lien provided under the PACE Act.  

 
n. Collection of Assessments.   The execution of the written contract between the 

Local Government and the property owner and recording of the Notice of 
Contractual Assessment Lien incorporate the terms of the financing documents 
executed between the property owner and with the lender to repay the financing 
secured by the assessment. The third-party lender will advance financing to the 
owner, and the terms for repayment will be such terms as are agreed between the 
lender and the owner.  Under the form lender contract attached as Exhibit 3, the 
lender or a designated servicer will agree to service the debt secured by the 
assessment.11  

 
With funds from the lender, the property owner can purchase directly the 
equipment and materials for the Qualified Improvement and contract directly, 
including through lease, power purchase agreement, or other service contract, for 
the installation or modification of the Qualified Improvements. Alternatively, the 
lender may make progress payments to the property owner as the Qualified 
Improvement is installed.  
 
The lender will receive the owner’s assessment payments to repay the debt and 
remit to the Authorized Representative any administrative fees.  The lender will 
have the right to assign or transfer the right to receive the installments of the debt 
secured by the assessment, provided all of the following conditions are met: 

(1)  The assignment or transfer is made to an Eligible Lender, as defined 
above; 
(2)  The property owner and the Authorized Representative are notified in 
writing of the assignment or transfer and the address to which payment of 
the future installments should be mailed at least 30 days before the next 
installment is due according to the schedule for repayment of the debt; and 

 
11  The servicer will be responsible for maintaining payment records, account balances, and reporting to the 
Authorized Representative as required.  



 

10 
 

(3)  The assignee or transferee, by operation of the financing documents or 
otherwise, written evidence of which shall be provided, assumes lender’s 
obligations under the lender contract. 

 
o. Verification Review.   After a Qualified Improvement is completed, the 

Authorized Representative will require the property owner to provide 
verification by a qualified independent third-party reviewer that the Qualified 
Improvement was properly completed and is operating as intended.12 The 
verification report conclusively establishes that the improvement is a Qualified 
Improvement and the project is qualified under the PACE program.13 

 
p. Marketing and Education Services.   The Program Administrator will provide 

service provider training workshops for contractors, engineers, property 
managers and other stakeholders, provide outreach and education for all 
stakeholders including presentations, conference booths and individual meetings, 
and provide written and electronic materials such as case studies, flyers, and 
webinars.  

 
q. The Local Government may subsequently enter into agreements with one or 

more other local governments or non-profit organizations that promote energy 
and water conservation and/or economic development to provide marketing and 
education services for the PACE program.  

 
r. Quality Assurance and Antifraud Measures.   The Authorized Representative 

will institute quality assurance and antifraud measures for the Program.  The 
Authorized Representative will review each PACE application for completeness 
and supporting documents through independent review and verification 
procedures.  The application and required attachments will identify and supply 
the information necessary to ensure that the property owner, the property itself, 
and the proposed project all satisfy PACE program underwriting and technical 
standard requirements.  Measures will be put in place to provide safeguards, 
including a review of the energy and water savings baseline and certification of 
compliance with the technical standards manual from an independent third-party 
reviewer (ITPR), who must be a registered professional engineer, before the 
project can proceed.  This review will include a site visit, report, and a letter 
from the ITPR certifying that he or she has no financial interest in the project and 
is an independent reviewer. After the construction of the project is complete, an 
ITPR will conduct a final site inspection and determine whether the project was 
completed and is operating properly. The reviewer’s certification will also 
include a statement that the reviewer is qualified and has no financial interest in 
the project. 

 

 
12  TX Local Gov’t Code §399.011. 
13  TX Local Government Code §399.011(a-1) 



 

11 
 

s. Delinquency.   Under the terms of the form lender contract attached as Exhibit 3, 
if a property owner fails to pay an agreed installment when due on the PACE 
assessment, the lender will agree to take at least the following steps to collect the 
delinquent installment:  

(1)  Mail to the owner a written notice of delinquency and demand for 
payment by both certified mail (return receipt requested) and first-class 
mail, and  
(2)  Mail to the owner a second notice of delinquency and demand for 
payment by both certified mail (return receipt requested) and first-class 
mail, at least 30 days after the date of the first notice if the delinquency is 
continuing.  

 
If the owner fails to cure the delinquency within 30 days after mailing the second 
notice of delinquency, the lender may notify the Authorized Representative of the 
owner’s default. Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Section 399.014(c), 
the Authorized Representative will initiate steps for the Local Government to 
enforce the assessment lien in the same manner as a property tax lien against real 
property may be enforced, to the extent the enforcement is consistent with Section 
50, Article XVI, of the Texas Constitution.  Delinquent installments will incur 
penalties and interest in the same manner and at the same rate as delinquent 
property taxes, according to Texas Local Government Code Section 399.014(d), 
and such statutory penalties and interest will be due to the Local Government to 
offset the cost of collection.   
 
If the Local Government files suit to enforce collection, the Local Government 
may also recover costs and expenses, including attorney’s fees, in a suit to collect 
a delinquent installment of an assessment in the same manner and at the same rate 
as in suit to collect a delinquent property tax.  If a delinquent installment of an 
assessment is collected after the filing of a suit, the Local Government will remit 
to the lender the net amount of the delinquent installments and contractual interest 
collected and remit to the Authorized Representative the amount of any 
administrative fees collected but will retain any statutory penalties, interest, and 
attorney’s fees collected.     



 

12 
 

EXHIBIT 1 

 

 

MAP OF LUBBOCK CITY PACE REGION  

 

 

  



 

13 
 

EXHIBIT 2 

FORM OWNER CONTRACT 

 

  



 

v. 7_AR_ONLY PACE Owner Contract  
  

1 

 

FORM PACE OWNER CONTRACT  
 

 
  
 

THIS PROPERTY ASSESSED CLEAN ENERGY (“PACE”) OWNER CONTRACT 
including the attached exhibits (“Owner Contract”) is made as of the ________ day of 
_________, _______ (“Effective Date”), by and between the City of Lubbock, Texas (“Local 
Government”), and ___________________________ (“Property Owner”). 

RECITALS 

A. The Property Assessed Clean Energy Act (“PACE Act”), Texas Local Government 
Code Chapter 399, authorizes the governing body of a local government to establish a program 
and designate a region within the local government’s jurisdiction within which an authorized 
representative of the local government may enter into written contracts with the record owners of 
privately owned commercial, industrial, and large multifamily residential (5 or more dwelling 
units) real property to impose assessments on the property to finance the cost of permanent 
improvements fixed to the property intended to decrease water or energy consumption or demand.  

B. Local Government has established a program under the PACE Act pursuant to a 
resolution dated _________________, adopted by the City Council  (“PACE Program”), and has 
designated Texas Property Assessed Clean Energy Authority, dba Texas PACE Authority as the 
representative of Local Government (“Authorized Representative”) authorized to enter into the 
written contracts with the owners of such property and the providers of such financing described 
herein, and has designated the entire territory within the boundaries of the City of Lubbock, Texas 
as a region (the “Region”) within which the Authorized Representative and the record owners of 
such real property may enter into written contracts to impose assessments to repay the financing 
by owners of qualified improvements on the owners’ property pursuant to the PACE Program.   

C. Property Owner is/are the sole legal and record owner of the qualified “real 
property,” as defined in Section 399.002 of the PACE Act, within the Region located at 
__________________, Lubbock, Texas _____-____ (the “Property”). 

D. Pursuant to Application number _______________, Property Owner has applied to 
Local Government to participate in the PACE Program by installing or modifying on the Property 
certain permanent improvements which are intended to decrease water or energy consumption or 
demand, and which are or will be fixed to the Property as “qualified improvements”, as defined in 
Section 399.002 of the PACE Act (“Qualified Improvements”).  The installation or modification 
of such Qualified Improvements on the Property will be a “qualified project” as defined in Section 
399.002 of the PACE Act (the “Project”). Property Owner has requested that Local Government 
enter into this Owner Contract pursuant to the PACE Act and the PACE Program and has requested 
Local Government to impose an assessment (the “Assessment”) on the Property as set forth in the 
Notice Of Contractual Assessment Lien Pursuant To Property Assessed Clean Energy Act to be 
filed in the real property records of Lubbock, County, Texas (the “Notice of Contractual 
Assessment Lien”), to repay the financing of such Qualified Improvements.  A copy of the Notice 



 

v. 7_AR_ONLY PACE Owner Contract  
  

2 

of Contractual Assessment Lien is attached hereto as Exhibit A and made a part hereof. The 
Property, Qualified Improvements and Assessment are more fully described in the Notice of 
Contractual Assessment Lien.  

E. Financing for the Project (“Financing”) will be provided to Property Owner by 
___________________________ (“Lender”), a qualified lender selected by Property Owner, 
pursuant to a written contract executed by Lender and Local Government as required by Section 
399.006(c) of the PACE Act (the “Lender Contract”). The financing will include only those costs 
and fees for which an assessment may be imposed under Section 399.006(e) of the PACE Act.  
Local Government has agreed to maintain and continue the Assessment for the benefit of Lender 
until the Financing, all contractual interest due to Lender (“Contractual Interest”), any 
prepayment penalty, and any penalties, interest, fees, and costs due under or authorized by the 
PACE Act are paid in full and to release the Assessment upon notice from Lender of such payment, 
or to foreclose the lien securing the Assessment for the benefit of Lender upon notice from Lender 
of a default in payment by Property Owner.   

F. As required by Section 399.010 of the PACE Act, Property Owner has notified the 
holder(s) of any mortgage liens on the Property at least thirty (30) days prior to the date of this 
Owner Contract of Property Owner’s intention to participate in the PACE Program.  The written 
consent of each mortgage holder to the Assessment was obtained on or prior to the date of this 
Owner Contract and is attached hereto as Exhibit B and made a part hereof.   

AGREEMENT 

The parties agree as follows: 

1. Imposition of Assessment. In consideration for the Financing advanced or to be 
advanced to Property Owner by Lender for the Project under the PACE Program pursuant to the 
Lender Contract, Property Owner hereby requests and agrees to the imposition by Local 
Government of the Assessment in the principal amount of $_______________, as set forth in the 
Notice of Contractual Assessment Lien.  In the event the actual total of costs and fees for which 
an assessment may be imposed under the PACE Act is different from the stated amount or any 
other term requires correction, Local Government, Property Owner, and Lender agree to execute 
an amended Owner Contract and Lender Contract, and Authorized Representative will record an 
amended Notice of Contractual Assessment Lien.  The Assessment includes the application and 
administration fees authorized by the PACE Program and Section 399.006(e) of the PACE Act. 
Property Owner promises and agrees to pay the Assessment, Contractual Interest thereon, any 
prepayment penalty, and all penalties, interest, fees, and costs due under or authorized by the 
PACE Act and the financing documents executed between Property Owner and Lender (the 
“Financing Documents”) described in or copies of which are attached as Exhibit C attached 
hereto and made a part hereof by reference.  Property Owner will pay such amount in care of or as 
directed by Lender, in satisfaction of the Assessment imposed pursuant to this Owner Contract and 
the PACE Act.  Accordingly, Local Government hereby imposes the Assessment on the Property 
to repay the Financing of the Project, Contractual Interest, any prepayment penalty, and any 
penalties, interest, fees and costs due under or authorized by the PACE Act and the Financing 
Documents, in accordance with the requirements of the PACE Program and the provisions of the 
PACE Act.  



 

v. 7_AR_ONLY PACE Owner Contract  
  

3 

2. Maintenance and Enforcement of Assessment.  In consideration for Lender’s 
agreement to advance Financing to Property Owner for the Project pursuant to the Financing 
Documents, Local Government agrees to maintain and continue the Assessment on the Property 
for the benefit of Lender until the Assessment, Contractual Interest, any prepayment penalty, and 
any penalties, interest, fees, and costs, due under or authorized by the PACE Act and the Financing 
Documents are paid in full, and to release the Assessment upon notice from Lender of such 
payment. Local Government agrees to enforce the assessment lien against the Property at the 
request of Lender in the event of a default in payment by Property Owner, in accordance with the 
provisions set forth in paragraph 5. Authorized Representative will deliver an annual notice of 
assessment to Property Owner by electronic mail each year until the Assessment is released.  If 
requested by Property Owner by marking the box below, Local Government agrees to also deliver 
an annual notice of assessment to Property Owner by first-class mail in the envelope with the tax 
bill of the Property each year until the Assessment is released. 

☐ Property Owner requests an annual notice of assessment from Local Government.   

Any failure of Local Government or Authorized Representative to deliver an annual notice of 
assessment to Property Owner will not affect the Assessment or Property’s Owner’s obligations 
under this Owner Contract.  

3. Installments. The Assessment and Contractual Interest thereon are due and payable 
to Lender in installments (“Installments”), according to the payment schedule set forth in the 
Financing Documents attached hereto as Exhibit C.  The Assessment includes (1) an application 
fee paid by Property Owner to Authorized Representative at closing of the Financing, and (2) a 
recurring administration fee paid by Property Owner to Authorized Representative until the 
Assessment is released.  The recurring administration fee amount will be collected by Lender and 
paid to Authorized Representative within thirty (30) days of receipt by Lender, unless otherwise 
agreed to in writing by Authorized Representative. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of 
a delinquency in the payment of any Installment, Lender will, upon notice to Authorized 
Representative, withhold payment of any administration fee due to Authorized Representative in 
connection with such Installment until the Installment is paid. Any such temporary withholding 
will not reduce the amount of the administration fees included in the Assessment. The amounts 
due to Authorized Representative are identified in Exhibit C hereto. When the Assessment, 
Contractual Interest, any prepayment penalty, and any penalties, interest, fees and costs due under 
or authorized by the PACE Act and the Financing Documents, have been paid in full, Local 
Government’s rights under this Owner Contract will cease and terminate. Upon notice from Lender 
that all amounts due have been paid in full, Authorized Representative will execute a release of 
the Assessment and this Owner Contract and record the release. As required by Section 399.009(a) 
(8) of the PACE Act, the period during which such Installments are payable does not exceed the 
useful life of the Project.   

4. Assignment of Right to Receive Installments or Require Enforcement of Lien.  
Lender will have the right, with or without the consent of Property Owner, to assign or transfer the 
right to receive the Installments or require Local Government to enforce the assessment lien in the 
event of a default in payment, together with all corresponding obligations, provided that all of the 
following conditions are met: 



 

v. 7_AR_ONLY PACE Owner Contract  
  

4 

(a) The assignment or transfer is made to a qualified lender as defined in the 
Lender Contract; 

(b) Property Owner and Authorized Representative are notified in writing of 
the assignment or transfer and the address to which payment of the future Installments 
should be mailed at least 30 days before the next Installment is due according to the 
payment schedule included in the Financing Documents, and 

(c) The assignee or transferee executes a written assumption agreement 
according to the Financing Documents of all of Lender’s rights and obligations under the 
Lender Contract related to the receipt of the Installments or the enforcement of the 
assessment lien and provides a copy of such assumption to Property Owner and Authorized 
Representative within 10 days after execution of the agreement.   

Lender may assign or transfer the right to receive the Installments or the right to require 
enforcement of the assessment lien separately. Upon written notice to Property Owner and 
Authorized Representative of an assignment or transfer that meets all of these conditions, the 
assignor will be released of all of the rights and obligations of the Lender under such Lender 
Contract accruing after the date of the assignment that are specified in the assignment or transfer 
document, and all of such rights and obligations will be assumed by and transferred to the assignee.  
Any attempt to assign or transfer the right to receive the Installments or require enforcement of the 
assessment lien that does not meet all of these conditions is void.  Lender will retain all of the 
rights and obligations of Lender under the Lender Contract until such rights and obligations are 
assigned or transferred according to this paragraph.  

5. Lien Priority and Enforcement. Pursuant to Section 399.014 of the PACE Act: 

(a) Delinquent Installments will incur penalties and interest on the principal of 
the Installment in the same manner and in the same amount as delinquent property taxes, 
that is, a delinquent Installment incurs a penalty of 6% of the principal amount of the 
Installment for the first calendar month it is delinquent plus 1% for each additional month 
or portion of a month the Installment remains unpaid prior to July 1 of the year in which it 
becomes delinquent.  However, an Installment delinquent on July 1 incurs a total penalty 
of 12% of the principal amount of the delinquent Installment without regard to the number 
of months it has been delinquent. A delinquent Installment will also accrue interest on the 
principal of the Installment at the rate of 1% for each month or portion of a month that the 
Installment remains unpaid. Subject to paragraph 16 below, penalties, interest, fees, and 
costs payable under this paragraph will be retained by Local Government to compensate it 
for the cost of enforcing the Assessment. Additional interest at any default rate imposed by 
Lender pursuant to the Financing Documents, along with any other fees that become due 
pursuant to the Financing Documents, may be imposed and retained by Lender.  

(b) The Assessment and any interest or penalties thereon, 

(1) are a first and prior lien against the Property from the date on which 
the Notice of Contractual Assessment Lien is recorded in the real property records 



 

v. 7_AR_ONLY PACE Owner Contract  
  

5 

of Lubbock County, Texas as provided by Section 399.013 of the PACE Act, until 
the Assessment, interest, or penalty is paid; and  

(2) such lien has the same priority status as a lien for any other ad 
valorem tax.  

(c) The lien created by the Assessment runs with the land, and according to 
Section 399.014(b) of the PACE Act, any portion of the Assessment that has not yet 
become due will not be eliminated by foreclosure of (i) a property tax lien, or (ii) the lien 
for a delinquent installment of the Assessment.  In the event of a sale or transfer of the 
Property by Property Owner, the obligation for the Assessment and the Property Owner’s 
obligations under the Financing Documents will be transferred to the succeeding owner 
without recourse to Lender, Local Government, or Authorized Representative. 

(d) In the event of a default by Property Owner in payment of an Installment 
called for by the Financing Documents or the filing of a case under the U.S. Bankruptcy 
Code by or against Property Owner, the lien created by the Assessment will be enforced 
by Local Government for the benefit of Lender, in the same manner according to Texas 
Tax Code Secs. 33.41 to 34.23 that a property tax lien against real property may be enforced 
by a local government, to the extent the enforcement is consistent with Section 50, Article 
XVI, Texas Constitution. 

(e) In a suit to collect a delinquent Installment of the Assessment, Local 
Government will be entitled to recover costs and expenses, including attorney's fees in the 
amount of 15% of the total principal amount of the delinquent Installment, penalties, and 
interest due, in the same manner according to Texas Tax Code Sec. 33.48 as in a suit to 
collect a delinquent property tax. Lender will be entitled to any additional sums due to it 
under the Financing Documents in connection with a suit to collect a delinquent Installment 
of the Assessment. 

(f) As provided in Section 399.014 (a-1) of the PACE Act, after the Notice of 
Contractual Assessment Lien is recorded in the real property records of the county in which 
the Property is located, the lien created by the Assessment may not be contested on the 
basis that the improvement is not a “qualified improvement” or the project is not a 
“qualified project”, as such terms are defined in Section 399.002 of the PACE Act. 

6. Written Contract Required by PACE Act. This Owner Contract constitutes a written 
contract for the Assessment between Property Owner and Local Government as required by 
Section 399.005 of the PACE Act. The Notice of Contractual Assessment Lien will be recorded in 
the real property records of Lubbock County, Texas as public notice of the contractual Assessment, 
in accordance with the requirements of Section 399.013 of the PACE Act. 

7. Qualified Improvements.  Property Owner agrees that all improvements purchased, 
constructed, or installed through the Financing obtained pursuant to this Owner Contract will be 
permanently affixed to the Property and will transfer with the Property to the transferee in the 
event of a sale or transfer of the Property.  Property Owner agrees to provide to Authorized 
Representative within 30 days after the completion of the Project a verification by an independent 



 

v. 7_AR_ONLY PACE Owner Contract  
  

6 

third party reviewer (“ITPR”) that the project was properly completed and is operating as intended.  
Property Owner agrees that Lender may retain the final advance of Financing until such 
verification is submitted or require Property Owner to pay liquidated damages for a failure to do 
so, according to paragraph 19 below. 

8. Water or Energy Savings.  For so long as the Assessment encumbers the Property, 
Property Owner agrees, on or before January 31st of each year, to report to Authorized 
Representative the water or energy savings realized through the Project in accordance with the 
reporting requirements established by Authorized Representative.   

9. Construction and Definitions.  This Owner Contract is to be construed in 
accordance with and with reference to the PACE Program and PACE Act. Terms used herein and 
not otherwise defined herein have the meanings ascribed to them in the PACE Program and/or the 
PACE Act. 

10. Binding Effect. This Owner Contract is binding upon and inures to the benefit of 
the parties hereto and their respective heirs, representatives, successors, and assigns. 

11. Notices.  Unless otherwise specifically provided herein, all notices and other 
communications required or permitted by this Owner Contract shall be in writing and delivered by 
first-class mail or by electronic mail, addressed to the other party at the address stated below the 
signature of such party or at such other address as such party may from time to time designate in 
writing to the other party, and shall be effective from the date of receipt. 

12. Governing Law.  This Owner Contract shall in all respects be governed by and 
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas.   

13. Entire Agreement.  This Owner Contract constitutes the entire agreement between 
Local Government and Property Owner with respect to the subject matter hereof and may not be 
amended or altered in any manner except by a document in writing executed by both parties. 

14. Captions.  Paragraph and section titles are for convenience of reference only and 
shall not be of any legal effect.   

15. Counterparts.  This Owner Contract may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, and each counterpart may be delivered on paper or by electronic transmission, all of 
which when taken together will constitute one agreement binding on the parties, notwithstanding 
that all parties are not signatories to the same counterpart. 

16. Interest.  Interest and penalties in the event of default, as provided above, are 
explicitly authorized by Section 399.014(d) of the PACE Act.  However, in no event will the total 
amount of interest on the Assessment, including statutory interest payable to Local Government 
and Contractual Interest payable to Lender under the Financing Documents, exceed the maximum 
amount or rate of nonusurious interest that may be contracted for, charged, or collected under 
Texas law (the “usury limit”). If the total amount of interest payable to Local Government and 
Contractual Interest payable to Lender exceeds the usury limit, the interest payable to Local 
Government will be reduced and any interest in excess of the usury limit will be credited to the 



 

v. 7_AR_ONLY PACE Owner Contract  
  

7 

amount payable to Local Government or refunded. This provision overrides any conflicting 
provisions in this Owner Contract.  

17. Costs.  No provision of this Owner Contract will require Local Government to 
expend or risk its own funds or otherwise incur any financial liability in the performance of any of 
its duties hereunder.   

18. Further Assurances.  Property Owner further covenants and agrees to do, execute 
and deliver, or cause to be done, executed, and delivered all such further acts for implementing the 
intention of this Owner Contract as may be reasonably necessary or required. 

19. Construction Terms.  The Financing Documents executed by Lender and Property 
Owner must include a requirement that Lender will withhold ______% of the Financing until 
verification that the Project was properly completed and is operating as intended is provided to 
Authorized Representative by an Independent Third Party Reviewer (“ITPR), or Property Owner 
will pay liquidated damages to Lender of $_______ per day for every day after 30 days following 
completion of the Project that such verification of completion is not provided. If verification of 
completion is not provided by Property Owner within 30 days after completion of the Project, such 
verification shall be submitted by Lender.  If the Lender Contract includes requirements related to 
the construction of the Project and disbursement of Financing, such requirements are set forth in 
Exhibit D attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. Such requirements may include, 
among other things, (1) the disbursement schedule and (2) any holdback amount to be funded 
following verification of final project completion. 



 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO  
PACE OWNER CONTRACT [1 OF 2] 

 
 

 
 
PROPERTY OWNER:  
 
      
____________________________________  
 
 
 
By:        

  
      
    
 
      
  
 
 

Email address:  _______________________ 
 
 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 
STATE OF ________  § 
 
COUNTY OF ________ § 

This PACE Owner Contract pursuant to Property Assessed Clean Energy Act was  
acknowledged before me on ______________, ________ by ____________________________, 
_____________________________, on behalf of ________________. 

 
 _________________________________________  
 
________________________________(print name) 
 
NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ________ 

 
 
 

Name:   

Title:   

Address:   

   



 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO  
PACE OWNER CONTRACT [2 OF 2] 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT: 

 
CITY OF LUBBOCK, TEXAS 
 
 
By: TEXAS PROPERTY ASSESSED CLEAN ENERGY AUTHORITY 
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 
Pursuant to Tex. Local Gov’t Code §399.006(b) 
 
 
By: _______________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

Email Address:  charlene@texaspaceauthority.org 
 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 
STATE OF TEXAS  § 
 
COUNTY OF _________ § 

This PACE Owner Contract pursuant to Property Assessed Clean Energy Act was 
acknowledged before me on  ______________, 20__ by Charlene Heydinger, President, Texas 
Property Assessed Clean Energy Authority, dba Texas PACE Authority, a Texas nonprofit 
corporation, on behalf of said corporation as Authorized Representative for the Local 
Government. 
 

 _________________________________________  
 
________________________________(print name) 
 
NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF TEXAS 

 
 

 
 

Name: CHARLENE HEYDINGER 

Title: PRESIDENT, TEXAS PACE AUTHORITY 

Address:   PO BOX 200368 
AUSTIN, TX  78720-0368 



 

 

 

OWNER CONTRACT EXHIBIT A 
 

NOTICE OF CONTRACTUAL ASSESSMENT LIEN  
PURSUANT TO  

PROPERTY ASSESSED CLEAN ENERGY ACT 
  



 

 

OWNER CONTRACT EXHIBIT B 
 

MORTGAGE HOLDER(S) CONSENT  
 

  



 

 

OWNER CONTRACT EXHIBIT C 
 

FINANCING DOCUMENTS 
 
 
 

 Assessment Payment Schedule  
      
 Assessment Total:   
 Payment Frequency:   
    
      

Payment 
Date Total Payment Principal Paid Interest Paid Administration 

Fee 
Remaining 

Balance 

      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      

 
Financing Documents 

 
Document Title Parties Date Executed 

   
 
  



 

 

OWNER CONTRACT EXHIBIT D 

CONSTRUCTION TERMS 

Retainage or Liquidated Damages:  
 
Lender will retain _________% of the Financing until a report of completion by a qualified 
Independent Third Party Reviewer (“ITPR”) is provided to Authorized Representative. 
 
OR 
 
Property Owner will pay liquidated damages to Lender of $_______ per day for every day 
after 30 days following completion of the Project that such a report of completion is not 
provided.  Lender will then provide the report of completion to Authorized Representative. 

  

Additional Construction Terms 
 

Date 
Draw down 

Amount 
Purpose 

   

   

   

   

   

 



 

14 
 

 

EXHIBIT 3 

FORM LENDER CONTRACT  

 

 

 

 



 

v. 8 AR_ONLY PACE Lender Contract  
 

1 

 

FORM PACE LENDER CONTRACT 
 

 

THIS PROPERTY ASSESSED CLEAN ENERGY (“PACE”) LENDER CONTRACT 
including the attached exhibits (“Lender Contract”) is made as of the _________ day of 
___________, ________, (“Effective Date”) by and between the City of Lubbock, Texas (“Local 
Government”) and ________________________ (“Lender”). 

RECITALS 

A. The Property Assessed Clean Energy Act (“PACE Act”), Texas Local Government 
Code Chapter 399, authorizes the governing body of a local government to establish a program 
and designate a region within the local government’s jurisdiction within which an authorized 
representative of the local government may enter into written contracts with the record owners of 
privately owned commercial, industrial, and large multifamily residential (5 or more dwelling 
units) real property to impose assessments on the property to finance the cost of permanent 
improvements fixed to the property intended to decrease water or energy consumption or demand.  

B. Local Government has established a program under the PACE Act pursuant to a 
resolution dated ______________, adopted by the City Council (“PACE Program”), and has 
designated Texas Property Assessed Clean Energy Authority, dba Texas PACE Authority as the 
representative of Local Government (“Authorized Representative”) authorized to enter into the 
written contracts with the owners of such property and the providers of such financing described 
herein, and has designated the entire territory within the boundaries of the City of Lubbock, Texas 
jurisdiction as a region (the “Region”) within which the Authorized Representative and the record 
owners of such real property may enter into written contracts to impose assessments to repay the 
financing by owners of qualified improvements on the owner’s property pursuant to the PACE 
Program.  

C. Pursuant to Application number ________________, ______________________ 
(“Property Owner”), the sole legal and record owner of the following qualified “real property,” 
as defined in Section 399.002 of the PACE Act, within the Region has/have applied to Local 
Government to participate in the PACE Program with respect to certain real property located at 
_____________________, Lubbock, Texas, _____-____ (the “Property”) by installing or 
modifying on the Property certain permanent improvements which are intended to decrease water 
or energy consumption or demand, and which are or will be fixed to the Property as “qualified 
improvements”, as defined in Section 399.002 of the PACE Act (“Qualified Improvements”). 
The installation or modification of such Qualified Improvements on the Property will be a 
“qualified project” as defined in Section 399.002 of the PACE Act (the “Project”).  

D. Property Owner and Local Government have entered into a written contract as 
required by Section 399.005 of the PACE Act, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and 
made a part hereof (the “Owner Contract”), in which Property Owner has requested that Local 



 

v. 8 AR_ONLY PACE Lender Contract  
 

2 

Government impose an assessment (the “Assessment”) on the Property as set forth in the Notice 
Of Contractual Assessment Lien Pursuant To Property Assessed Clean Energy Act to be filed in 
the real property records of Lubbock County, Texas (the “Notice of Contractual Assessment 
Lien”), to repay the financing of such Qualified Improvements. A copy of the Notice of 
Contractual Assessment Lien is attached as Exhibit A to the Owner Contract and made a part 
hereof.  The Property, Qualified Improvements, and Assessment are more fully described in the 
Notice of Contractual Assessment Lien.  

E. Financing for the Project (“Financing”) will be provided to Property Owner by 
Lender in accordance with financing documents which are described in or copies of which are 
attached as Exhibit B attached hereto and made a part hereof (the “Financing Documents”). Such 
Financing will include only those costs and fees for which an assessment may be imposed under 
Section 399.006 (e) of the PACE Act. This Lender Contract is entered into between Local 
Government and Lender as required by Section 399.006(c) of the PACE Act to provide for 
repayment of the Financing through the Assessment.  

F. As required by Section 399.010 of the PACE Act, Property Owner has notified the 
holder(s) of any mortgage liens on the Property at least thirty (30) days prior to the date of the 
Owner Contract of Property Owner’s intention to participate in the PACE Program.  The written 
consent of each mortgage lien holder to the Assessment was obtained on or prior to the date of the 
Owner Contract, as shown by the copy of such consent(s) attached as Exhibit B to the Owner 
Contract.   

AGREEMENT 

The parties agree as follows: 

1. Maintenance and Enforcement of Assessment.  Lender agrees to provide Financing 
for the Project in the total principal amount of $_______________, according to the terms set out 
in the Financing Documents attached hereto as Exhibit B.  In the event the actual total of costs and 
fees for which an assessment may be imposed under the PACE Act is different from the stated 
amount or any other term requires correction, Local Government, Property Owner, and Lender 
agree to execute an amended Owner Contract and Lender Contract, and Authorized Representative 
will record an amended Notice of Contractual Assessment Lien. In consideration for the Financing 
provided or to be provided by Lender for the Project, and subject to the terms and conditions of 
this Lender Contract, Local Government agrees to maintain and continue the Assessment for the 
benefit of Lender until the Assessment, all contractual interest due to Lender according to the 
Financing Documents (“Contractual Interest”), any prepayment penalty, and any penalties, 
interest, fees, or costs due under or authorized by the PACE Act and the Financing Documents are 
paid in full, and to release the Assessment upon notice from Lender of such payment.  Local 
Government will not release, sell, assign or transfer the Assessment or the lien securing it without 
the prior written consent of Lender. Local Government agrees to enforce the assessment lien 
against the Property at the request of Lender in the event of a default in payment by Property 
Owner in accordance with the provisions set forth in paragraph 6. Local Government shall have 
no obligation to repurchase the Assessment and no liability to Lender should there be a default in 
the payment thereof or should there be any other loss or expense suffered by Lender or under any 
other circumstances. 



 

v. 8 AR_ONLY PACE Lender Contract  
 

3 

2. Installments.  The Assessment and Contractual Interest thereon are due and payable 
to Lender in installments (“Installments”) according to the payment schedule set forth in the 
Financing Documents attached hereto as Exhibit B. The Assessment includes (1) an application 
fee paid by Property Owner to Authorized Representative at closing of the Financing and (2) a 
recurring administration fee paid by Property Owner to Authorized Representative until the 
Assessment is released. The recurring administration fee amount will be collected by Lender and 
paid to Authorized Representative within thirty (30) days of receipt by Lender, unless otherwise 
agreed to in writing by Authorized Representative. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of 
delinquency in the payment of any Installment, Lender will, upon notice to Authorized 
Representative, withhold payment of any amounts due to Authorized Representative in connection 
with such Installment until the Installment is paid.  Any such temporary withholding will not 
reduce the amount of administration fees included in the Assessment. The amounts due to 
Authorized Representative are identified in Exhibit B hereto. As required by Section 399.009(a)(8) 
of the PACE Act, the period during which such Installments are payable does not exceed the useful 
life of the Project.  

3. Assignment of Right to Receive Installments or Require Enforcement of Lien.  
Lender will have the right, with or without the consent of Property Owner, to assign or transfer the 
right to receive the Installments or require Local Government to enforce the assessment lien in the 
event of a default in payment, together with the corresponding obligations, provided that all of the 
following conditions are met: 

(a) The assignment or transfer is made to a qualified lender, which may be one 
of the following:  

(1) Any federally insured depository institution such as a bank, savings 
bank, savings and loan association and federal or state credit union; 

(2) Any insurance company authorized to conduct business in one or 
more states; 

(3) Any registered investment company, registered business 
development company, or a Small Business Administration small business 
investment company; 

(4) Any publicly traded entity; or 

(5) Any private entity that: 

(i) Has a minimum net worth of $5 million;  

(ii) Has at least three years’ experience in business or industrial lending or 
commercial real estate lending (including multifamily lending), or has a lending 
officer that has at least three years’ experience in business or industrial lending or 
commercial real estate lending; 

(iii) Can provide independent certification as to availability of 
funds; and 



 

v. 8 AR_ONLY PACE Lender Contract  
 

4 

(iv) Has the ability to carry out, either directly or through a servicer, 
the bookkeeping and customer service work necessary to manage 
the assessment accounts  

(6) A financially stable entity, whether or not from the list 
above, with the ability to carry out, either directly or through a servicer, the 
obligations of this Lender Contract related to the receipt and accounting of 
the Installments or the enforcement of the assessment lien.   

(b) Property Owner and Authorized Representative are notified in writing of 
the assignment or transfer and the address to which payment of the future Installments 
should be mailed at least 30 days before the next Installment is due according to the 
payment schedule included in the Financing Documents; and 

(c) The assignee or transferee executes a written assumption agreement 
according to the Financing Documents of all of Lender’s rights and obligations under this 
Lender Contract related to the receipt of the Installments or enforcement of the assessment 
lien and provides a copy of such assumption to Property Owner and Authorized 
Representative within 10 days after execution of the agreement.  Lender may assign or 
transfer the right to receive the Installments or the right to require enforcement of the 
assessment lien separately. Upon written notice to Property Owner and Authorized 
Representative of an assignment or transfer that meets all of these conditions, the assignor 
will be released of all of the rights and obligations of the Lender under this Lender Contract 
accruing after the date of the assignment that are specified in the assignment or transfer 
document, and all of such rights and obligations will be assumed by and transferred to the 
assignee. Any attempt to assign or transfer the right to receive the Installments or to require 
enforcement of the assessment lien that does not meet all of these conditions is void. Lender 
will retain all of the rights and obligations of Lender under this Lender Contract until such 
rights and obligations are assigned or transferred according to this paragraph.  

4. Financing Responsibility. Lender assumes full responsibility for determining 
the financial ability of the Property Owner to repay the Financing and for advancing the funds as 
set forth in the Financing Documents and performing Lender’s obligations and responsibilities 
thereunder.  In the event the assessment lien on the Property is enforced by foreclosure as provided 
below, Lender will have no further obligations to Property Owner with respect to the Installments 
that were the subject of the foreclosure, but Lender will retain the rights to enforcement of the lien 
for any Installments that are not eliminated by the foreclosure, and the succeeding owner of the 
Property will be subject to such lien.  

5. Lien Priority and Enforcement. As provided in the Owner Contract and Section 
399.014 of the PACE Act:  

(a) Delinquent Installments will incur penalties and interest on the principal of 
the Installment in the same manner and in the same amount as delinquent property taxes, 
that is, a delinquent Installment incurs a penalty of 6% of the principal amount of the 
Installment for the first calendar month it is delinquent plus 1% for each additional month 



 

v. 8 AR_ONLY PACE Lender Contract  
 

5 

or portion of a month the Installment remains unpaid prior to July 1 of the year in which it 
becomes delinquent.  However, an Installment delinquent on July 1 incurs a total penalty 
of 12% of the principal amount of the delinquent Installment without regard to the number 
of months it has been delinquent. A delinquent Installment will also accrue interest on the 
principal of the Installment at the rate of 1% for each month or portion of a month that the 
Installment remains unpaid. Subject to paragraph 16 below, penalties, interest, fees, and 
costs payable under this paragraph will be retained by Local Government to compensate it 
for the cost of enforcing the Assessment.  Additional interest at any default rate imposed 
by Lender pursuant to the Financing Documents, along with any other fees and charges 
that become due pursuant to the Financing Documents may be imposed and retained by 
Lender.     

(b) The Assessment and any interest or penalties thereon,  

(1) are a first and prior lien against the Property from the date on which 
the Notice of Contractual Assessment Lien is recorded in the real property records 
of Lubbock  County, Texas, as provided by Section 399.013 of the PACE Act, until 
the Assessment, interest, or penalty is paid; and  

(2) such lien has the same priority status as a lien for any other ad 
valorem tax.  

(c) The lien created by the Assessment runs with the land, and according to 
Section 399.014(b) of the PACE Act, any portion of the Assessment that has not yet 
become due will not be eliminated by foreclosure of (i) a property tax lien, or (ii) the lien 
for a delinquent Installment of the Assessment.  In the event of a sale or transfer of the 
Property by Property Owner, the obligation for the Assessment and the Property Owner’s 
obligations under the Financing Documents will be transferred to the succeeding owner 
without recourse to Lender, Local Government or Authorized Representative 

(d) In the event of a default by Property Owner in payment of an Installment 
called for by the Financing Documents or the filing of a case under the U.S. Bankruptcy 
Code by or against Property Owner, the lien created by the Assessment will be enforced 
by Local Government for the benefit of Lender according to paragraph 6(c) below in the 
same manner according to Texas Tax Code Secs. 33.41 to 34.23 that a property tax lien 
against real property may be enforced by a local government, to the extent the enforcement 
is consistent with Section 50, Article XVI, Texas Constitution. 

(e) In a suit to collect a delinquent Installment of the Assessment, Local 
Government will be entitled to recover costs and expenses, including attorney's fees in the 
amount of 15% of the total principal amount of the delinquent Installment, penalties, and 
interest due, in the same manner according to Texas Tax Code Sec. 33.48 as in a suit to 
collect a delinquent property tax. Lender will be entitled to any additional sums due to it 
under the Financing Documents in connection with a suit to collect a delinquent Installment 
of the Assessment. 



 

v. 8 AR_ONLY PACE Lender Contract  
 

6 

(f) As provided in Section 399.014(a-1) of the PACE Act, after written notice 
of the Assessment is recorded in the real property records of the county in which the 
Property is located, the lien created by the Assessment may not be contested on the basis 
that the improvement is not a “qualified improvement” or the project is not a “qualified 
project”, as such terms are defined in Section 399.002 of the PACE Act.  

6. Servicing and Enforcement of Assessment.  

(a) Servicing.  The Installments and other amounts due under the Financing 
Documents will be billed, collected, received, and disbursed in accordance with the 
procedures set out in the Financing Documents. Lender or its designee will be responsible 
for all servicing duties other than those specifically undertaken by Local Government in 
this Lender Contract. Authorized Representative will deliver an annual notice of 
assessment to Property Owner by electronic mail each year until the Assessment is 
released.  If requested by Property Owner in the Owner Contract, Local Government agrees 
to also send an annual notice of assessment to Property Owner by first class mail in the 
envelope with the tax bill of the Property each year until the Assessment is released.  
However, any failure of Local Government or Authorized Representative to deliver an 
annual notice of assessment to Property Owner will not affect the Assessment or Property 
Owner’s obligations under the Owner Contract.  

(b) Remittances.  Each of the parties covenants and agrees to promptly remit to 
the other party any payments incorrectly received by such party with respect to the 
Assessment after the execution of this Lender Contract. 

(c) Default and Enforcement.  In the event of a default in payment of any 
Installment according to the Financing Documents, Lender agrees to take at least the 
following steps to collect the delinquent Installment:  

(1) Mail a written notice of delinquency and demand for payment to the 
Property Owner by both certified mail, return receipt requested, and first class mail; 
and  

(2) Mail a second notice of delinquency to the Property Owner and the 
holder of any mortgage lien on the property by both certified mail, return receipt 
requested, and first-class mail at least 30 days after the date of the first notice if the 
delinquency is continuing.  

The holder of any mortgage lien on the property will have not less than a 30-day right to cure the 
delinquency by paying the amount of the delinquent installment.  If the Property Owner fails to 
cure the delinquency within 30 days after the mailing of the second notice of delinquency, Lender 
or its designee may notify Authorized Representative in writing of a default in payment by 
Property Owner.  Upon receipt of such notice and after doing its own due diligence, including 
delivering a notice of foreclosure to Freddie Mac not less than 30 days prior to the foreclosure if 
the mortgage lien is held by Freddie Mac, Authorized Representative will certify the default to 
Local Government, which will enforce the assessment lien for the benefit of Lender pursuant to 
Sec. 399.014(c) of the PACE Act, in the same manner as a property tax lien against real property 



 

v. 8 AR_ONLY PACE Lender Contract  
 

7 

may be enforced, to the extent the enforcement is consistent with Section 50, Article XVI, Texas 
Constitution. However, if a case under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code is filed by or against Property 
Owner or if the enforcement of the assessment lien is prevented by the order of a court, Local 
Government will notify Authorized Representative and will file a proof of claim for the balance 
of the assessment, accrued interest and penalties, and all costs and expenses, including attorney’s 
fees, as authorized by Section 399.014 of the PACE Act.  Authorized Representative will notify 
Lender of the filing of the proof of claim.  Lender will not be required to mail a notice of 
delinquency to Property Owner or a notice of default to Local Government.  Lender will reimburse 
Local Government for any costs and expenses, including attorney’s fees, required to file and 
present the claim.  

 (d)  Priority.  If the assessment lien is enforced by foreclosure or collected 
through a bankruptcy or similar proceeding, the assessment balance and any interest or 
penalties on the assessment will have the same priority status as a lien for any other ad 
valorem tax, pursuant to Sec. 399.014(a)(2) of the PACE Act. 
 

(e) Final Payment and Release.  When the Assessment, Contractual Interest,  
any prepayment penalty, and any penalties, interest, fees, or costs due under or authorized 
by the PACE Act or the Financing Documents have been paid in full, Local Government’s 
rights under the Owner Contract will cease and terminate.  Upon notice from Lender that 
all amounts due have been paid in full, Authorized Representative will execute a release of 
the Assessment and the Owner Contract and record the release.  

(f) Limitations on Local Government’s Actions.  Without the prior written 
consent of Lender, Local Government will not enter into any amendment or modification 
of or deviation from the Owner Contract. Local Government or Authorized Representative 
will not institute any legal action with respect to the Owner Contract, the Assessment, or 
the assessment lien without the prior written request of Lender. 

(g) Limitations of Local Government’s Obligations.  Local Government 
undertakes to perform only such duties as are specifically set forth in this Lender Contract, 
and no implied duties on the part of Local Government are to be read into this Lender 
Contract. Local Government will not be deemed to have a fiduciary or other similar 
relationship with Lender. Local Government may request written instructions for action 
from Lender and refrain from taking action until it receives satisfactory written 
instructions. Local Government will have no liability to any person for following such 
instructions, regardless of whether they are to act or refrain from acting.  

(h) Costs.  No provisions of this Lender Contract will require Local 
Government to expend or risk its own funds or otherwise incur any financial liability in the 
performance of any of its duties hereunder.   

7. Lender’s Warranties and Representations.  With respect to this Lender Contract, 
Lender hereby warrants and represents that on the date on which Lender executes this Lender 
Contract:  



 

v. 8 AR_ONLY PACE Lender Contract  
 

8 

(a) Lender is a qualified lender under the PACE Program, as defined in 
paragraph 3(a) above, and is fully qualified under the PACE Program to enter into this 
Lender Contract and the Financing Documents;  

(b) Lender has independently and without reliance upon Local Government 
conducted its own credit evaluation, reviewed such information as it has deemed adequate 
and appropriate, and made its own analysis of the Owner Contract, the Project, and 
Property Owner’s financial ability to perform the financial obligations set out in the 
Financing Documents; and 

(c) Lender has not relied upon any investigation or analysis conducted by, 
advice or communication from, or any warranty or representation by Local Government, 
Authorized Representative, or any agent or employee of Local Government, express or 
implied, concerning the financial condition of the Property Owner or the tax or economic 
benefits of an investment in the Assessment. 

8. Written Contract Required by the PACE Act. This Lender Contract constitutes a 
written contract between Local Government and Lender, as required under Section 399.006 (c) of 
the PACE Act.  

9. Construction and Definitions.  This Lender Contract is to be construed in 
accordance with and with reference to the PACE Program and PACE Act. Terms used herein and 
not otherwise defined herein have the meanings ascribed to them in the PACE Program, and/or the 
PACE Act. 

10. Binding Effect. This Lender Contract is binding upon and inures to the benefit of 
the parties hereto and their respective heirs, representatives, successors, and assigns. 

11. Notices.  Unless otherwise specifically provided herein, all notices and other 
communications required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and delivered by first-class 
mail or by electronic mail, addressed to the other party at the address stated below the signature of 
such party or at such other address as such party may from time to time designate in writing to the 
other party, and shall be effective from the date of receipt. 

12. Governing Law.  This Lender Contract shall in all respects be governed by and 
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas.  

13. Entire Agreement.  This Lender Contract constitutes the entire agreement between 
Local Government and Lender with respect to the subject matter hereof and shall not be amended 
or altered in any manner except by a document in writing executed by both parties. 

14. Captions.  Paragraph and section titles are for convenience of reference only and 
shall not be of any legal effect. 

15. Counterparts. This Lender Contract may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, and each counterpart may be delivered on paper or by electronic transmission, all of 
which when taken together will constitute one agreement binding on the parties, notwithstanding 
that all parties are not signatories to the same counterpart. 



 

v. 8 AR_ONLY PACE Lender Contract  
 

9 

16. Interest.  Interest and penalties in the event of default, as provided above, are 
explicitly authorized by Section 399.014(d) of the PACE Act.  However, in no event will the total 
amount of interest on the Assessment, including statutory interest payable to Local Government 
and Contractual Interest payable to Lender under the Financing Documents, exceed the maximum 
amount or rate of nonusurious interest that may be contracted for, charged, or collected under 
Texas law (the “usury limit”). If the total amount of interest payable to Local Government and 
Contractual Interest payable to Lender exceeds the usury limit, interest payable to Local 
Government will be reduced and any interest in excess of the usury limit will be credited to the 
amount payable to Local Government or refunded. This provision overrides any conflicting 
provisions in this Lender Contract. 

17. Certification. Local Government certifies that the PACE Program has been duly 
adopted and is in full force and effect on the date of this Lender Contract.  Property Owner has 
represented to Lender and Local Government that the Project is a “qualified project” as defined in 
the PACE Program and Section 399.002 of the PACE Act.  The Assessment has been imposed on 
the Property as a lien in accordance with the PACE Owner Contract and the PACE Act.  Local 
Government has not assigned or transferred any interest in the Assessment or the PACE Owner 
Contract. 

18. Construction Terms.  The Financing Documents executed by Lender and Property 
Owner must include a requirement that Lender will withhold  ______% of the Financing until 
verification that the Project was properly completed and is operating as intended is provided to 
Authorized Representative by an Independent Third Party Reviewer (“ITPR), or Property Owner 
will pay liquidated damages to Lender of $_______ per day for every day after 30 days following 
completion of the Project that such verification of completion is not provided. If verification of 
completion is not provided by Property Owner within 30 days after completion of the Project, such 
verification shall be submitted by Lender. If this Lender Contract includes any additional 
requirements related to construction of the Project and disbursement of Financing, such 
requirements are set forth in Exhibit C attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. Such 
requirements may include, among other things, (1) the disbursement schedule and (2) any holdback 
amount to be funded following verification of final project completion.   

 



 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO  
PACE LENDER CONTRACT [1 OF 2] 

 
 
LENDER:  
 
      
____________________________________  
 
 
 
By:        

  
      
    
 
      
  
 
 

Email Address: _______________________ 
 
 
 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 
STATE OF ________  § 
 
COUNTY OF ________ § 

This PACE Lender Contract pursuant to Property Assessed Clean Energy Act was 
acknowledged before me on ______________, ________ by ____________________________, 
_____________________________, on behalf of ________________. 

 
 _________________________________________  
 
________________________________(print name) 
 
NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Name:   

Title:   

Address:   

   



 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO  
PACE LENDER CONTRACT [2 OF 2] 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT: 

 
__________________________________________________________ 
 
By: TEXAS PROPERTY ASSESSED CLEAN ENERGY AUTHORITY 
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 
Pursuant to Tex. Local Gov’t Code §399.006(b) 
 
 
By: _______________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 
Email Address:  charlene@texaspaceauthority.org 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 
STATE OF TEXAS  § 
 
COUNTY OF ________ § 

This PACE Lender Contract pursuant to Property Assessed Clean Energy Act was 
acknowledged before me on ______________, 20__ by Charlene Heydinger, President, Texas 
Property Assessed Clean Energy Authority, dba Texas PACE Authority, a Texas nonprofit 
corporation, on behalf of said corporation as Authorized Representative for the Local 
Government. 

 
 _________________________________________  
________________________________(print name) 
 
NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF TEXAS 

 
 

Name: CHARLENE HEYDINGER 

Title: PRESIDENT, TEXAS PACE AUTHORITY 

Address:   PO BOX 200368 
AUSTIN, TX  78720-0368 



 

 

 
LENDER CONTRACT EXHIBIT A 

 
OWNER CONTRACT 

  



 

 
 

LENDER CONTRACT EXHIBIT B 
 

FINANCING DOCUMENTS 
 
 
 

 Assessment Payment Schedule  
      
 Assessment Total:   
 Payment Frequency:   
    
      

Payment 
Date Total Payment Principal Paid Interest Paid Administration 

Fee 
Remaining 

Balance 

      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      
      

 
 

Financing Documents 
 

Document Title Parties Date Executed 

   

 
  



 

 
 

LENDER CONTRACT EXHIBIT C 

CONSTRUCTION TERMS 

 
Retainage or Liquidated Damages:  
 
Lender will retain _________% of the Financing until a report of completion by a qualified 
Independent Third Party Reviewer (“ITPR”) is provided to Authorized Representative. 
 
OR 
 
Property Owner will pay liquidated damages to Lender of $_______ per day for every day 
after 30 days following completion of the Project that such a report of completion is not 
provided.  Lender will then provide the report of completion to Authorized Representative. 
 

 

Date 
Draw down 

Amount 
Purpose 

   

   

   

   

   

 



 
 

15 
 

 
EXHIBIT 4 

FORM NOTICE OF CONTRACTUAL ASSESSMENT LIEN  

PURSUANT TO PROPERTY ASSESSED CLEAN ENERGY ACT 

 

 



v.7AR  PACE Notice of Contractual Assessment Lien  
 

1 

 
FORM NOTICE OF CONTRACTUAL ASSESSMENT LIEN 

PURSUANT TO  
PROPERTY ASSESSED CLEAN ENERGY ACT 

 
STATE OF TEXAS  § 
    § 
COUNTY OF LUBBOCK § 

RECITALS 
 

A. The Property Assessed Clean Energy Act (“PACE Act”), Texas Local 
Government Code Chapter 399, authorizes the governing body of a local government to establish 
a program and designate a region within the local government’s jurisdiction within which an 
authorized representative of the local government may enter into written contracts with the 
record owners of privately owned commercial, industrial, and large multifamily residential (5 or 
more dwelling units) real property to impose assessments on the property to finance the cost of 
permanent improvements fixed to the property intended to decrease water or energy consumption 
or demand. Unless otherwise expressly provided herein, all terms used herein have the same 
meanings ascribed to them in the PACE Act. 

B. City of Lubbock, Texas (“Local Government”) has established a program under 
the PACE Act (“PACE Program”) pursuant to a resolution dated _____________, adopted by 
the City Council, and has designated Texas Property Assessed Clean Energy Authority, dba 
Texas PACE Authority, as the representative of Local Government (“Authorized 
Representative”) authorized to enter into and enforce the written contracts with the owners of 
such property and the providers of such financing described herein, and has designated the entire 
territory within the boundaries of  the City of Lubbock, Texas  as a region (the “Region”) within 
which the Authorized Representative and the record owners of such real property may enter into 
written contracts to impose assessments to repay the financing by owners of qualified 
improvements on the owners’ property pursuant to the PACE Program.   

C. _____________________ (“Property Owner”) is/are the sole legal and record 
owner of the qualified “real property,” as defined in Section 399.002 of the PACE Act, within the 
Region located at  _____________, Lubbock, Texas _____-____ and more fully described in 
Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof (the “Property”). 

D. Property Owner has applied to Local Government to participate in the PACE 
Program by installing or modifying on the Property certain permanent improvements described 
in Exhibit B attached hereto and made a part hereof, which are intended to decrease water or 
energy consumption or demand and which are or will be fixed to the Property as “qualified 
improvements”, as defined in Section 399.002 of the PACE Act (the “Qualified 
Improvements”).  The installation or modification of such Qualified Improvements on the 
Property will be a “qualified project” as defined in Section 399.002 of the PACE Act (the 
“Project”). Property Owner has entered into a written contract (the “Owner Contract”) with 
Local Government pursuant to the PACE Act and the PACE Program and has requested Local 



v.7AR  PACE Notice of Contractual Assessment Lien  
 

2 

Government to impose an assessment on the Property to repay the financing of such Qualified 
Improvements. 

E. The financing of such Qualified Improvements will be provided to Property 
Owner by _____________________ (“Lender”), a qualified lender selected by Property Owner, 
pursuant to a written contract executed by Lender and Local Government as required by Section 
399.006(c) of the PACE Act  (the “Lender Contract”).  Lender will be responsible for all 
servicing duties other than those specifically undertaken by Local Government in the Lender 
Contract. 

THEREFORE, Local Government hereby gives notice to the public pursuant to Section 
399.013 of the PACE Act that it has imposed an assessment on the Property in the principal 
amount of $________________ (the “Assessment”).  The Assessment includes only those costs 
and fees for which an assessment may be imposed under Section 399.006(e) of the PACE Act.  
In the event that the actual total of costs and fees for which an assessment may be imposed is 
different from the amount stated or any other term requires correction, Local Government, 
Property Owner, and Lender will execute an amended Owner Contract and Lender Contract, and 
Authorized Representative will record an amended Notice of Contractual Assessment Lien. 

The Assessment and contractual interest thereon due to the Lender (the “Contractual 
Interest”) are due and payable in installments (“Installments”) in accordance with the terms and 
payment schedule included in the financing documents executed between Property Owner and 
Lender that are described in or copies of which are attached hereto as Exhibit C (the “Financing 
Documents”). 

 Pursuant to Section 399.014 of the PACE Act,  

1. The Assessment and any interest or penalties thereon,  

(i) are a first and prior lien against the Property from the date on which this Notice of 
Contractual Assessment Lien is recorded in the real property records of Lubbock County, 
Texas, until the Assessment, interest, or penalty is paid; and  

(ii) such lien has the same priority status as a lien for any other ad valorem tax.   

2. The lien created by the Assessment runs with the land, and according to Section 399.014(b) 
of the PACE Act, any portion of the Assessment that has not yet become due will not be 
eliminated by foreclosure of: (i) a property tax lien, or (ii) the lien for a delinquent 
Installment of the Assessment.  In the event of a sale or transfer of the Property by Property 
Owner, the obligation for the Assessment and the Property Owner’s obligations under the 
Financing Documents will be transferred to the succeeding owner without recourse to 
Local Government, or Authorized Representative. 

As provided in Section 399.014(a-1) of the PACE Act, after this Notice of Contractual 
Assessment Lien is recorded in the real property records of the county in which the 
Property is located, the lien created by the Assessment may not be contested on the basis 
that the improvement is not a “qualified improvement” or the project is not a “qualified 
project”, as such terms are defined in Section 399.002 of the PACE Act. 



v.7AR  PACE Notice of Contractual Assessment Lien  
 

3 

EXECUTED on _________________, _______. 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT:  
 
CITY OF LUBBOCK, TEXAS 
 
 
By:  Texas Property Assessed Clean Energy Authority 
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

   Pursuant to Tex. Local Gov’t Code §399.006(b) 
 
 
   By: _______________________________________________________ 
    
    
 

 
 
 
 

E-mail:  charlene@texaspaceauthority.org 
 

 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 
STATE OF TEXAS  § 
 
COUNTY OF _________ § 

This Notice of Contractual Assessment Lien pursuant to Property Assessed Clean Energy 
Act was acknowledged before me on ______________, 20__ by Charlene Heydinger, President, 
Texas Property Assessed Clean Energy Authority, dba Texas PACE Authority, a Texas nonprofit 
corporation, on behalf of said corporation as Authorized Representative for the Local 
Government. 

       
 
_______________________________ (print name) 
 
NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF TEXAS 
 

 

Name: CHARLENE HEYDINGER 

Title: PRESIDENT, TEXAS PACE AUTHORITY 

Address:   PO BOX 200368 
AUSTIN, TX  78720-0368 



v.7AR  PACE Notice of Contractual Assessment Lien  
 

4 

NOTICE OF LIEN EXHIBIT A 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

 
  



v.7AR  PACE Notice of Contractual Assessment Lien  
 

5 

NOTICE OF LIEN EXHIBIT B 

QUALIFIED IMPROVEMENTS 

 
 
 
  



v.7AR  PACE Notice of Contractual Assessment Lien  
 

6 

NOTICE OF LIEN EXHIBIT C 

FINANCING DOCUMENTS 
 

 Assessment Payment Schedule  

      

 Assessment Total:   

 Payment Frequency:   
      

Payment 
Date Total Payment Principal Paid Interest Paid Administration 

Fee 
Remaining 

Balance 

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      
 

Financing Documents 
 

Document Title Parties Date Executed 
   



v.7AR  PACE Notice of Contractual Assessment Lien  
 

7 

INDEXING INSTRUCTION: 
 
Grantor:    ________________________, Property Owner 
Grantees:  ________________________, Local Government 
  ________________________, Lender 
 
After recording, return to-  Texas PACE Authority 
    Charlene Heydinger 
    PO Box 200368  
    Austin, TX  78720-0368 

 



 

Regular City Council Meeting 8. 7. 
10/26/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution to establish the City of Lubbock Property
Assessed Clean Energy Program (Lubbock City PACE).

Item Summary
The Texas Property Assessed Clean Energy Program (TX-PACE) is an economic development tool that
encourages and incentivizes private sector investment in energy efficiency and water conservation. The
PACE program will be offered to property owners on a strictly voluntary basis and will not require the use
of any public funds or resources. 

Authorized under the PACE Act enacted in 2013, the PACE program is an innovative financing program
that enables private sector owners of privately owned commercial, industrial, and multi-family residential
properties with five or more dwelling units to obtain low-cost, long-term loans to pay for water
conservation, energy-efficiency improvements, and renewable energy retrofits. 

Loans made under the PACE program will be secured by assessments voluntarily imposed by the owner
on the property. The utility cost savings derived from the improvements financed with the PACE loans are
expected to equal or exceed the amount of the assessment. PACE assessments are tied to the property and
follow title from one owner to the next. 

Under the PACE Act, the establishment and operation of the program are considered to be governmental
functions. Following the approval of a Resolution of Intent to establish the PACE program, and conducting
a public hearing, the City Council may consider a Resolution to Establish the Lubbock City PACE
Program. If the program is established, the City will then delegate administration of the PACE program to
the Texas PACE Authority, who will administer the program at no cost to the City. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Resolution - Establish PACE 









 

Regular City Council Meeting 8. 8. 
10/26/2021:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
16202, with Texas Property Assessed Clean Energy Authority (Texas PACE Authority), for administrative
services for the City of Lubbock Property Assessed Clean Energy Program (Lubbock City PACE).

Item Summary
On October 12, 2021, the City Council approved a Resolution of Intent to create the Lubbock City PACE
program. Following a public hearing, and the approval of a Resolution to Establish the program, the City
Council will consider a contract with the Texas PACE Authority for administration of the Lubbock City
PACE Program. 

The City of Lubbock will have no financial obligation as a result of this agreement, and the contract will
remain in place for the life of the program, unless the contact is terminated. The Texas PACE Authority
will provide the following services as part of this agreement:
  

• Community Outreach 
• Application and Approval Process 
• Management and Reporting

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager 
Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 
































	Agenda
	6.01.__Minutes
	       ATT_8.17.2021 S EUB
	       ATT_9.29.2021 S Parks Open House
	       ATT_9.28.2021
	       ATT_9.30.2021 S TML
	7.01.__FY 2021-22 Reimbursement Resolution
	       ATT_Resolution and Exhibit A
	7.02.__Budget Amendment #2
	       ATT_Budget Ordinance
	7.02.1.__Citibus - FY 2021 Section 5310 CRRSAA
	       ATT_Resolution - FTA 5310 CRRSAA FY 2021
	       ATT_Citibus - FTA FY 2021 Section 5310 CRRSAA
	7.03.__10-foot Easement - Tanglewood Addition 
	       ATT_Ordinance Abandon and Close a 10-foot Easement - Tanglewood Addition 
	       ATT_Exhibit A - 10-foot Easement, Tanglewood Addition
	       ATT_Plat- Lot 22-A Tanglewood Addition 
	7.04.__Alley Right-of-Way - Block 7 Original Town 
	       ATT_Ordinance Abandon and Close an Alley Right-of-Way - Block 7 Original Town 
	       ATT_Exhibit A - Closure Alley ROW - Blk 7 Original Town 
	       ATT_Map- Closure of Alley Blk 7 Original Town 
	7.05.__Parking Lot Lease Agmt. - Cast Iron Grill 
	       ATT_Resolution - Parking Lot Lease Agreement  - Cast Iron Grill 
	       ATT_Parking Lot Lease Agreement  - Cast Iron Grill 
	       ATT_Exhibit A -Parking Lot Lease Agreement  - Cast Iron Grill 
	7.06.__Dedicatory Certificate for Milwaukee Est, Tract A 
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Dedicatory Deed
	       ATT_Plat
	7.07.__Agmt for Flood Infrastructure Funds - TWDB
	       ATT_Resolution (r) - TWDB Grant
	       ATT_FIF- Grant -TWBD
	7.08.__Construction Contract, Equip. for Pump Station No. 4 - Garney
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Construction Contract 
	       ATT_Location Exhibit 
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	       ATT_Project Summary Sheet
	7.09.__Change Order 1, 13th & Texas - MH Civil Constructors, Inc.
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Change Order
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	7.10.__Pedestrian and Cyclist AFA
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_AFA Contract
	7.11.__LAHWD - Raw Water Lease - Amend. No. 3
	       ATT_Resolution- LAHWD-RawWater-A3
	       ATT_Contract-LAHWD- RawWater- A3
	7.12.__Contract Amend. No. 1, - Infrastructure Mgmt. Services
	       ATT_Resolution - Infrastructure Mgmt. Extension 
	       ATT_Contract Extension - Infrastructure Mgmt.
	7.13.__Annual Pricing for Concrete Materials
	       ATT_Resolution - MUDco Ready-Mix
	       ATT_Contract - MUDco Ready-Mix
	       ATT_Resolution - West Infrastructure
	       ATT_Contract - West Infrastructure 
	       ATT_Bid Tab Sheet - Concrete Products
	       ATT_Project Summary Sheet - Concrete Materials
	7.14.__School Zone Ordinance Amendment
	       ATT_Ordinance Amending School Zones
	       ATT_Redline Ordinance
	7.15.__Upland Crossing Bylaws 
	       ATT_Resolution - Upland Crossing PID
	       ATT_Bylaws - Upland Crossing PID
	7.16.__CDBG Contract - HUD to City
	       ATT_Resolution - CDBG from HUD
	       ATT_Contract - CDBG From HUD
	7.17.__ESG Contract - HUD to City
	       ATT_Resolution - ESG from HUD
	       ATT_Contract - ESG From HUD
	7.18.__HOME Contract - HUD to City
	       ATT_Resolution - HOME Grant from HUD for CHDO
	       ATT_Contract - HOME Grant from HUD for CHDO
	7.19.__Amendment 6 RS&H, Inc. - Security Upgrades
	       ATT_Resolution Amendment 6- RSandH
	       ATT_Amendment 6 RSandH
	       ATT_Budget Detail - CIP 92361 RSandH
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	7.20.__Citibus Tire Suppliers 2021 - Southern Tire Mart
	       ATT_Resolution - Tires - Southern Tire Mart
	       ATT_Citibus_Southern Tire Mart Contract
	       ATT_Citibus Tire Bid Tab
	       ATT_Citibus - Tires Project Summary
	7.21.__Online Enrollment System - Selerix
	       ATT_Resolution - Dearborn Adding Selerix Admin System
	       ATT_Contract - Dearborn Adding Selerix Admin System
	7.22.__FFE for LP&L GIS Addition
	       ATT_Resolution - Built for Dreams
	       ATT_Contract - Built for Dreams
	       ATT_CIP 92634 Budget Detail - LPandL GIS Addition
	       ATT_Project Summary
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	7.23.__Aljon 600 Compactor for Solid Waste
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Purchase Order
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	7.24.__Lease Renewal - Joyland Amusement Park
	       ATT_Resolution - Joyland
	       ATT_Amendment No. 5
	       ATT_Amendment No.4
	       ATT_Lease Agreement
	7.25.__Live Music Performance Grants
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_CLI Board Letter
	       ATT_LMPG Award Recommendations
	7.26.__2nd Amendment to Master Sales Agreement
	       ATT_Resolution - Amendment 2 to ITRON Master Sales Agreement
	       ATT_Amendment 2 - ITRON Master Sales Agreement
	       ATT_LPandL Resolution - Amendment 2, ITRON Master Sales Agreement
	8.01.__LCAD Board of Directors
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_LCAD Letter
	8.02.__Board Appointments
	8.03.__Northwest Passage Assessment Public Hearing and Ordinance 
	       ATT_Public Hearing Notice 
	       ATT_Assessment Ordinance
	8.04.__Willow Bend Villas PID Public Hearing 
	       ATT_Public Hearing Notice
	       ATT_Map
	8.05.__Willow Bend Villas Creation Resolution 
	       ATT_Resolution 
	       ATT_Exhibit 1
	       ATT_Exhibit 2
	       ATT_Exhibit 3
	8.06.__PACE Public Hearing 
	       ATT_Report
	LUBBOCK PACE REPORT 
	Report-Lubbock Owner contract
	Report-Lubbock Lender contract
	Report-Lubbock Notice of Lien

	8.07.__PACE Creation Resolution 
	       ATT_Resolution - Establish PACE
	8.08.__PACE Professional Services Agreement 
	       ATT_Resolution 
	       ATT_Contract

